
   

   

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

To: Southwest Water Authority Board of Directors 

From: Mary Massad, Manager/CEO     

Subject: April 3, 2017, SWA Board of Directors Meeting 

Date: March 27, 2017  

The next Southwest Water Authority (SWA) Board of Directors meeting will be Monday, April 3, 

at 9:00 a.m. MDT at the SWA O&M Center Office in Dickinson.  

Lance Rambousek, C.P.A.; Brady, Martz & Associates, P.C., will be presenting the audit report for 2016 

to the Board of Directors. If you have financial questions or concerns, now is your opportunity to ask our 

auditing firm.  

There is one Board policy to review and monitor this month, Policy III. C. Board Governance Process – 

Chairperson’s Role. The policy is included in the Board packet for your review.  

I will be presenting the Manager/CEO Internal Report for Policy II. C. Executive Limitations – Financial 

Condition and Policy II. E. Executive Limitations – Asset Protection. These reports are on the agenda 

under decision making. Please let me know if you have any questions.  

It is important for Directors to meet with their legislators about SWA, the SWPP, and continued funding 

and support for the Project. The SWC budget bill, HB1020, has crossed over into the Senate, SWA 

continues pursuit of needed funding for the upcoming biennium. Updated informational handouts are 

included in the board packet for your use in discussions with legislators.  

Board retreat information is once again included in the board packet. This information is always before 

you for your review and to be sure we stay focused on the right path. It would be good for the Board to 

continue considerations for topics and dates for this year’s Board retreat. If you have ideas please let me 

know. I do have a couple of individuals to contact about the Board retreat.  

A construction update on the SWPP will be provided by Sindhu S. Pillai-Grinolds and Jim Lennington. 

Sindhu’s memo is included for your review. Dakota Directional plans for startup on March 28, 2017, for 

the remaining crossings of the Dakota Access Pipeline. A preconstruction meeting will be held March 30, 

2017, for the Second Dickinson Raw Water Reservoir. 

Discussion will also include the funding for the Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP), and what is the 

critical path with reduced funding to keep the Project moving forward and keep southwest North Dakota 

in water. Contract 2-1A, Parallel Pipe from Intake to Zap is ready for bid and depending on bid prices and 

additional funding Contract 3-2E, Residuals Handling Facility, could be bid in the current biennium. 
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High consumption usage is on the agenda for your discussion. At the March 6, 2017, Board meeting the 

Board discussed an increasing block rate for customers using more than their allocation during peak 

months and/or throughout the year. Letters were sent to users that have stressed the SWPP’s ability to 

keep tanks full due to their usage this past year. The letters informed the customers the peak season is near 

and arrangements should be made to keep their usage within their allocation. SWA will closely monitor 

the system during peak season and look at the users going over their allocation on a case by case basis. 

This may provide a more accurate analysis if the Board would like to look at changing rates during the 

budgeting process.  

The Capital Repayment information is included in the board packet.  

Misti Conzemius will give an update on easements in the North Dunn (Dunn Center and Halliday) Service 

Area. SWA representatives continue to work to obtain remaining easements, address reclamation and 

landowner concerns, and answer questions.  

An evaluation form for my annual evaluation has been emailed and mailed to each Director on Monday, 

March 27, 2017. Please fill out and turn in the evaluation to Director Schneider at the April Board meeting. 

Directors unable to attend the April Board meeting can mail or email the evaluation form to Director 

Schneider. The information will be compiled and available for your review at the May Board meeting. If 

you have any questions of me, please know I am always available.  

The Water Coalition met on Wednesday, March 15, 2017, in preparation of HB 1020 hearing. With the 

Senate Appropriations Committee on March 16, 2017.  SWA submitted testimony from Director 

Schneider and I presented information on the SWPP to the Committee. The agenda from this meeting is 

included in the Board packet.  

HB 1020, the State Water Commission Appropriation Bill, was heard before the Senate Appropriations 

Committee. State Engineer Garland Erbele and members of his staff gave an overview of water projects 

across the state on behalf of the SWC. Water project sponsors also presented their needs during the hearing 

which included status of projects and funding needs for the upcoming biennium. SWA’s request is still at 

$17 million, which is only 20% of the initial request of $84 million. SWA continues to look at what can 

be completed in the upcoming biennium with $17 million.   

HB 1374, relating to contracts and financial assistance for water projects and duties of the state engineer, 

types of financial assistance for water projects and the composition and operation of the State Water 

Commission, continues to be worked on in the Committee. Amendments to the bill have been presented.   

HB 1026, a bill to amend sections of the ND One Call Century Code, was signed by the Governor on 

March 10, 2017.  

The next meeting of the SWC will be on March 29, 2017. This will be the first SWC meeting with 

Governor Doug Burgum presiding.  
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Jack Dwyer and Sandy Burwick will update the Board on meetings with cities and the Transfer of Service 

Area Contracts. SWA is working on information to provide to all of our communities.  This information 

will include SWA’s need for funding to construct the necessary upgrades to the system which will provide 

additional capacity for the SWPP and the communities we serve. It is a bigger picture view of the region 

and our continued need to work together.  

SWA received Certificates of Achievement for this past year from the ND Department of Health for the 

Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) of 1974.  These certificates have been issued to four of SWA’s five 

public water systems in appreciation of the accomplishment of satisfying all applicable requirements of 

the SDWA during 2016. These certificates are included. Thank you to SWA’s team of dedicated 

employees for their hard work in making this happen! It is the staff, Board of Directors, State Water 

Commission and our consultants working diligently to meet compliance requirements. 

World Water Day was Wednesday, March 22, 2017. This is an international day of observance for water 

and the opportunity to learn more about water related issues and take action to make a difference. Events 

were held around the globe to help shift how the world values and understands its single most precious 

resource during a global water crisis. World Water Day was also the launch of WATERSHED, the first in 

a series of programs and activities slated for the next five years from a coalition and collaboration of water 

experts and organizations from all around the world.  Information on WATERSHED is included with my 

memo.  

Sandy Burwick will give an update on Perkins County Rural Water System.  

It is with much appreciation SWA would like to wish Al Hecker well and much happiness in his 

retirement.  Al has retired from SWA the end of this month after more than 20 years of service to southwest 

North Dakota.  Al started with SWA March 18, 1996, and has served SWA well over the past 20+ 

years.  We wish him and his wife Kathy well in his retirement.  Thank you Al for your years of service.  At 

his request, SWA is only noting his years of service and retirement.  

SWA continues to record the radio show, the “Southwest Water Cooler.” It is currently airing Tuesday 

mornings at 7:20 a.m. on I94, 93.9 FM. It is also airing on Fridays at 12:40 p.m., and can be heard on 

SWA’s website, www.swwater.com. Please go to “Contact Us” on the header and click on “SWA Social 

Media.” The radio show is at the top of the page.  I ask you let me know what you think of the show and 

pass on suggestions for content to increase our public relations efforts.   

Items are included with my memo is the Mandan Messenger and a thank you letter from NDRWSA for 

our participation and contribution to the Silent Auction during the EXPO. SWA is once again a sponsor 

of the NDWEF Summer water tours and the 2017 NDWEF Summer Water Tours Schedule is also included 

with my memo.  

See you Monday, April 3, 2017, at 9:00 a.m. MDT at the SWA O&M Center Office in Dickinson.  
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HEIDI HEITKAMP 
NORTH DAKOTA 

HART SENATE BUILDING 516 

WASHINGTON, DC 20510 

PH: 202-224--2043 

FAX: 202-224--7776 

TOLL FREE: 1--800--223---4457 

http://www.heitkamp.senate.gov 

Mary Massad 
Southwest Water Authority 
4665 2nd Street Southwest 
Dickinson, ND 58601 -7231 

Dear Mary, 

tlnitrd ~tatrn ~rnatr 
WASHINGTON, DC 20510 

March 27, 2017 

COMMITIEES: 

AGRICULTURE, NUTRITION AND FORESTRY 

BANKING, HOUSING AND 
URBAN AFFAIRS 

HOMELAND SECURITY AND 
GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS 

INDIAN AFFAIRS 

SMALL BUSINESS AND ENTREPRENEURSHIP 

Thank you for taking time out of your busy schedule to join me for lunch recently in Dickinson. 

I very much appreciated your participation in the discussion we had about the Family and 
Medical Insurance Leave (FAMILY) Act. The interest expressed in paid family leave 
throughout North Dakota continues to fuel my belief that the time is now to press this important 
legislation. 

As noted in our discussion, paid family leave supports small business owners and employers and 
would help North Dakota businesses attract and retain a quality workforce. As we all know, 
when employees and their families are healthy, small businesses thrive. 

Again, thanks for joining me. Let's stay in touch as this legislation moves forward. 

HH:OC 

BISMARCK OFFICE: 
228 FEDERAL BUILDING 

220 EAST ROSSER AVENUE 
BISMARCK, ND 58501 

PH: 701 -258-4648 
FAX: 701-258-1254 

DICKINSON OFFICE: 
40 1ST AVENUE WEST 

SUITE 202 
DICKINSON, ND 58601 

PH: 701-225-0974 
FAX: 701-225-3287 

Sincerely, 

di Heitkamp 
United States Senate 

FARGO OFFICE: 
306 FEDERAL BUILDING 

657 SECOND AVENUE NORTH 
FARGO, ND 58102 

PH: 701-232-8030-1-800-223-4457 
FAX: 701-232-6449 

GRAND FORKS OFFICE: 
33 S. 3RD ST., SUITE B 

GRAND FORKS, ND 58201 
PH : 701-775-9601 

FAX: 701-746-1990 

MINOT OFFICE: 
105 FEDERAL BUILDING 
100 FIRST STREET S. W. 

MINOT, ND 58701 
PH: 701-852-0703 

FAX: 701-838-8196 
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POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS 
Population cENsus EsT 

Largest City (incorporated places) cENsus EsT 

Largest City Population cENsus EsT 

Median AgeAcs 

Average Commute Time to Work (minutes)Acs 

HIGHEST EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT ACS 
No High School Diploma(%) 
High School Diploma or Equivalent(%) 
Some College, No Degree(%) 
Associate's Degree(%) 
Bachelor's Degree (%) 

Graduate or Professional Degree(%) 
[Percent of population 25 years and overj 

INCOME AND POVERTY 
Per Capita Personal Income ($) BEA 

Population Below Poverty Level (%)Acs 

Median Household Income ($)Acs 

LABOR FORCE AND UNEMPLOYMENTLAUS 
Labor Force 
Unemployment Rate(%) 
[Civilian population 16 years and over working or actively seeking work] 

EMPLOYMENT AND WAGES 
Employment0cEw 

Average Weekly Wages ($) ocEw 

Hires Rate (%)LED 

Separations Rate (%) LED 

LARGEST EMPLOYMENTQCEW 

Retail Trade 
[Pnvate ;ndustry employment] 

HIGHEST AVERAGE WEEKLY WAGES $ QCEW 
Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 
[Private industry average weekly wages] 

JOB OPENINGS AND ACTIVE RESUMES OJOR 

Job Openings 
Active Resumes 
Active Resumes per Job Opening 

[2015] 

[2015] 

[2015] 

[2011-2015] 

[2011-2015] 

[2015] 

[2011-2015] 

[2011-2015] 

[Q3 2016] 

[Q3 2016] 

[Q3 2015] 

[Q3 2015] 

SUMMARY STATISTICS 

Stark County 

32,154 
Dickinson 

23,765 
35.0 
17.4 

10.0 
30.5 
23.8 
11.4 
17.5 
6.8 

85,677 
6.7 

72,099! 
j 

18,716 
3.4 

18,258 
1,095 

13.91 
17.61 

2,215 

1,897 

749 
466 
0.6 

North Dakota 

756,835 
Fargo 

118,523 
35.4 
17.2 

8.3 
27.4 
23.4 
13.2 
20.1 

7.6 

55,950 
11.5 

57,181 

427,558 
3.0 

418,137 

966 
14.0 
16.0 

l 

14,3441 
7,299 

0.5 

Quarterly time period definitions: Q1=Jan-Mar; Q2=Apr-Jun; Q3=Jul-Sep; Q4=0ct-Dec. Data are not seasonally adjusted. Asterisks(***) 
indicate data cannot be released due to reliability, availability or confidentiality restrictions. 
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CLASS OF WORKER ACS 

Private Wage and Salary Workers(%) 
Government Workers(%) 
Self-Employed Workers(%) 
Unpaid Family Workers(%) 
[Percent of civilian employed pcpulation 16 years and over] 

WORKER OCCUPATIONSACS 

[2011-2015] 

[20 

SUMMARY STATISTICS 

Stark County 

77.5 
13.6 
8.9 
0.1 

North Dakota 

75.2 
16.4 

8.1 
0.3 

Management, Business, Science, and Arts Occupations(%) 
Service Occupations(%) 

27.7 
16.1 

35.0 
16.9 

Sales and Office Occupations (%) 
Natural Resources, Construction, and Maintenance 
Occupations(%) 

Production, Transportation, and Material Moving 
Occupations(%) 
[Percent of civilian employed population 16 years and over] 

USUAL WORKER HOURSACS 

Work 35 or More Hours per Week(%) 
Work Between 15 and 34 Hours per Week(%) 
Work Less Than 15 Hours per Week (%) 
Average Weekly Hours 
[Percent of employed population 16 to 64 years] 

HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS ACS 

Occupied Housing Units(%) 
Rental Vacancy Rate(%) 

BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENTSQCEW 

Business Establishments 

LARGEST EMPLOYERS QCEW 

Stark County 
1 DICKINSON PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2 [Nondisclosable] 

3 MISSOURI BASIN WELL SERVICE 

4 WAL-MART 

5 ROCKPILE MANAGEMENT LLC 

6 ST JOSEPH'S HOS PIT AL 

7 STEFFES 

8 ST BENEDICT'S HEAL TH CENTER 

9 DICKINSON STATE UNIVERSITY 

10 [Nondisclosable] 

Summary Statistic Sources: 

QCEW Labor Market Information Center, Job Service ND, 

Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages 

LAUS Labor Market Information Center, Job Service ND, 

Local Area Unemployment Statistics 

OJOR Labor Market Information Center, Job Service ND, 

Online Job Openings Report 

23.2! 

17.5 

15.5· 

81.4 
14.4 
4.2 

43.7 

89.3 
11.11 

I 
1,498 

22.5 

13.2 

12.4 

78.3 
17.2 
4.5 

40.5 

87.9 
5.9 

32,130 

Educational Services 

Truck Transportation I 
General Merchandise Stores I 
Support Activities for Mining 

Hospitals 

Machinery Manufacturing 

Nursing and Residential Care Facilities 

Educational Services 

CENSUS EST U.S. Census Bureau, Intercensal Population Estimates 

CENSUS DEC U.S. Census Bureau, Decennial Population Counts 

ACS U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 

LED U.S. Census Bureau, Local Employment Dynamics 

BEA U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis 

6



001i1.ons in Rur01 L. 
'0-e-..iJ 'vil)Q' 

N QR TH , D AKO A 

RuralWat r 
March 27, 2017 

Mary Massad 
Manager 
Southwest Water Authority 
4665 2nd St SW 

SYSTEMS ASSOCIATION 

Dickinson, ND 58601Agassiz Water Users District 

Dear Mary, 

Thank you for choosing to be a member ofNorth Dakota Rural Water Systems Association (NDRWSA). Your 
membership represents a commitment to the water industry and allows us to proudly assert ourselves as a true 
grassroots force. By being a part of NDRWSA you are helping North Dakota's rural and small community 
utilities take leadership in protecting the environment, insuring public health, and promoting economic 
development. 

Your membership demonstrates a commitment to our mission. We really can't do it without you. With your 
membership we can accomplish our goals! 

• Member Services: To enrich and meet our member's needs. 

• Financial Stability: To diversify and strengthen the stability of the association's finances. 
• Legislative and Regulatory: To provide a unified voice at the state and national levels. 

• Public Relations: To improve and promote the image of the association and its member systems. 
• Operation and Governance: To enhance the capabilities of the association. 
• Education: To educate water and wastewater systems in supplying North Dakotans with the highest 

quality water and services at the lowest cost. 

Your continued membership WILL HELP accomplish the vital work that will keep the water industry growing 
into the new millennium. Thank you, for your continued support. To receive updated information on training, 
legislative reports, and our quarterly newsletter, go to www.ndrw.org and join our mailing list. 

Eric Volk 
Executive Director 

Enclosure 
Membership Certificate 

Training & On-Site Assistance • Circuit Rider Program • Wastewater Program 
Ground Water Protection • Source Water Program • Operator Certification Program 

2718 Gateway Avenue #201 • Bismarck, ND 58503 • Phone: 701 -258-9249 • FAX: 701-258-5002 
Email: ndrw@ndrw.org • www.ndrw.org 
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North Dakota Rural Water Systems Association · 

Let it be known to all people that 

Southwest Water Authority 
Is a fully paid 

2017 Rural Water System Member 

of the North Dakota Rural Water Systems Association 
and is thereby entitled to all the rights 

and privileges of said organization. 

March 27, 2017 
Executive Director Date 
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NORTH DAKOTA PO Box 2254, Bismarck, ND 58502 
\ V / A "JER 701-223-8332eFax:701-223-4645 
W r\ --------------------------- Email: ndwater@btinet.net 

EDUCATION FOUNDATION 

March 16, 2017 

MaryMassad 
Southwest Water Authority 
4665 2nd Street SW 
Dickinson, ND 58601-7231 

Dear Mary: 

On behalf of the North Dakota Water Education Foundation (NDWEF), I would like to thank you for your 
continuing sponsorship of the Summer Water Tours, and ask you to contribute $2,500 to this year's water 
tours program. 

In 201 7, we have several tours back by popular demand. The Devils Lake Solutions in Action, Managing the 
Mighty Mouse and Fargo-Moorhead Flood Facilities tours will highlight flooding issues. We will explore the 
oil impact and water supply needs in the Western Area Water Supply tour. Our Missouri River Expedition and 
Stutsman/Kidder County Irrigation tours will round out the season's tours. A detailed description of the 2017 
tours is enclosed. 

We look forward to working with you again, and hope you will help the Foundation facilitate the 2017 tours 
highlighting these critical water issues in the state. Because of your sponsorship we are able to continue to 
offer tours at an affordable rate for all participants, even with the rising costs of transportation, meals and 
materials. 

Again this year, we would like to include promotional items from your organization into the participant 
packets - smaller items such as note pads, pens, literature, etc. If you are interested in providing items, please 
send 250 of them to us and we will include them in all of the tour packets. 

For your convenience, we are enclosing an invoice for the requested amount. Please contact me at 
(701) 223-8332 or waterone@btinet.net if you need additional information. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Jackie Nye 
Tour Coordinator 

------------------------- water information and education for North Dakota 
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2017 
North Dakota Water Education Foundation 

Summer Water Tours 

The 2017 water tours offer a firsthand look at North Dakota's critical water issues. Water supply and quality, 
environmental restoration, fish and wildlife, flood management, water conservation and more are all illustrated and 
addressed by a wide variety of speakers representing different viewpoints during these one-day tours. Individual 
registration is $20 per person and includes tour transportation, meals, refreshments, informational material and a one
year subscription to the North Dakota Water magazine. 

Devils Lake Solutions in Action - June 21 
The states west end outlet was completed in 2005 and in the summer of 2010 the capacity was increased to 250 cubic 
feet per second (cfs). In addition to this outlet, the state constructed an east end outlet to move another 250 cfs from 
East Devils Lake, located near Jerusalem Channel, as well as a flood control structure on Tolna Coulee to limit 
discharge should the lake spill over. This tour will focus on the critical outlets and flood control infrastructure 
components in the Devils Lake Basin. The tour begins and ends in Devils Lake. 

Fargo-Moorhead Flood Facilities Tour - June 28 
Major flooding in the Red River Valley has become commonplace in the Fargo-Moorhead area. Stops on this tour 
will include levels of protection around the city, existing flood control facilities and projects under construction on 
both sides of the river. These tours begin and end in Fargo. 

Managing the "Mighty" Mouse - July 14 
The Mouse River begins in Saskatchewan, winds its way into north central North Dakota, then turns north and returns 
to Canada. While in Canada, the river is known as the Souris, the French word for mouse; however, a 1961 North 
Dakota law states the river, while in North Dakota, is to be called the Mouse. This half-day tour will focus on sites 
around Minot and surrounding region, including the Water Treatment Plant/HMGP Floodwall, Mouse River 
Enhanced Flood Protection Project - Burlington Phase, Highway 83 Bypass and the Mouse River Enhanced Flood 
Protection Project Phases 1, 2, 3 through Minot. The tour begins and ends in Minot. 

Stutsman/Kidder County Irrigation- August 2 
Irrigation in North Dakota is a significant asset to the agricultural industry, and many industries are thriving as a 
result of irrigated agriculture. This tour will focus on irrigation and the facilities necessary to get water from the 
source to the field. Stops will include an irrigated farm, Oakes test area facilities and Oakes irrigation research site. 
The tour begins and ends in Jamestown. 

Missouri River Expedition -August 16 
Explore the incredible Missouri River and learn about critical Missouri River issues including fishing, recreation, 
water use and management, the Corps of Engineers, endangered species, natural resources, water quality and conflicts 
among states. Stops will include popular sites along the Missouri River. The tour begins and ends in Bismarck. 

Western Area Water Supply-August 30 
This tour will take participants through areas around the northwest region to look at oil-impacted areas in McKenzie 
and Williams counties, showing firsthand some of the infrastructure impacts that come with oil development. Learn 
how the Western Area Water Supply Project is working together with industry, rural and municipal customers to meet 
the critical water needs of the area. Tour stops include the Williston water plant, Watford City Event Center and High 
School and Oneok gas plant. The tour begins and ends in Watford City. 

2016 Water Tour sponsors were: Ackerman-Estvold Engineering, AE2S, Garrison Diversion 
Conservancy District, HDR, Houston Engineering, Image Printing, North I)akota Game and Fish 
Department, North Dakota Irrigation Association, North Dakota State Water Commission, North 
Dakota Water Resource Districts Association, North Dakota Water Users Association, Southwest 
Water Authority and Western Area Water Supply. Other contributors were Barr Engineering, Basin 
Electric, Devils Lake Basin Joint Water Resource Board and North Dakota Rural Water Systems 
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iPad Tutorial 

To turn on the iPad:  
Touch the home screen button on the
center right side or the top left corner side
button. 

• Slide your finger to unlock

• Enter passcode (last four digits of
social security number)

To turn completely off or to turn on, hold
the top left corner side button. If turning
off, slide your finger to shut down. If
turning on the apple icon will appear while
loading.  

Home Screen:  
Bottom Tool Bar 

• Mail

• Safari

• Adobe Reader

• Notes

• SWA Web Portal

Mail: 

• Email address is
firstnamelastname@swwater.com

• Tool Bar on top right (left to right):
o Flag Messages
o Move to Folder
o Trash
o Reply
o New Message

• Mailboxes on the left side of the
screen allow you to jump between
folders (inbox, sent, etc).

• Edit on top left corner allows you to
select multiple emails to mark with a
flag, as unread, move to folder or
trash.

Touch the home screen button on the 
center right side or the top left corner side 

Slide your finger to unlock

Enter passcode (last four digits of

To turn completely off or to turn on, hold 
the top left corner side button. If turning 
off, slide your finger to shut down. If 
turning on the apple icon will appear while 

firstnamelastname@swwater.com

ight (left to right):

side of the
allow you to jump between

Edit on top left corner allows you to
mails to mark with a

unread, move to folder or

Web Portal: 

• Touch icon to open web portal

• Enter with password

• Click on link to download
information. A PDF will open in a
new window.

• Click Open in “Adobe Reader”

Adobe Reader: 

• Documents and Recent
downloaded information

• When PDF is open,
icon then my documents
home screen 

• Eyeglass icon (lower left
Mode 

• Speech balloon & pen icon
o Add note
o Highlight text
o Strike out text
o Underline text
o Add text
o Draw
o Add signature

• Magnify glass – Search

• Box with up arrow
o Share file
o Share public link
o Save to Adobe Document

Cloud
o Open in…
o Print Document

• Book icon (bottom right)
Bookmarks

o Have to be in
chapter to bring up
subchapters

Touch icon to open web portal

Enter with password

Click on link to download
information. A PDF will open in a

Click Open in “Adobe Reader”

Documents and Recents will show 
downloaded information 

When PDF is open, click the home 
icon then my documents to return to 

lower left) – View 

Speech balloon & pen icon - Tools:

Highlight text
Strike out text
Underline text

Add signature

Search

Box with up arrow – 

Share public link
Save to Adobe Document

Print Document

Book icon (bottom right) - 

to be in bookmark 
bring up

subchapters
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iPad Tutorial 

• Paper Clip
o See attachments

• Jump to pages using the scroll bar
or enter a page number

Notes: 

• Title is first sentence

• All notes automatically save

• Trash can icon – touch note to
delete

• Air drop icon – Share through
message, mail, copy or print

• Paper & pen icon – Add new note

Safari: Internet Browser  
Icon options (left to right): 

• Back and forth arrows on top left
hand side

• Air drop – Share the webpage
o Message
o Mail
o Twitter
o Facebook
o Bookmark
o Add to Reading List
o Add to Home Screen
o Copy
o Print

• Book icon – Bookmarks
o Use Air drop to add new

• Plus sign - + add open new
webpage

Jump to pages using the scroll bar

automatically save

touch note to

Share through
message, mail, copy or print

Add new note

arrows on top left

Share the webpage

Add to Reading List
Add to Home Screen

Use Air drop to add new

+ add open new

Miscellaneous: 

• To zoom in - reverse pinch

• To zoom out – pinch

• Double Tap – zoom in or zoom out

• Hit the home button to return
home screen

• To close open windows, double click
the home button, 
by swiping up

• iPad life is shown in a battery icon
top right corner

• Keyboard does not have life
hours capacity

• Do not drop, get
leave in extreme cold or hot
temperatures. This will damage
the iPads 

reverse pinch

pinch

zoom in or zoom out

button to return to the 

To close open windows, double click
, and close window

iPad life is shown in a battery icon

Keyboard does not have life icon, 60 

 the iPad wet, or 
leave in extreme cold or hot 
temperatures. This will damage 
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SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Monday April 3, 2017, 9:00 a.m. MDT 
SWA O&M Center Office, Dickinson, ND 

Board Agenda 

Assignments: Flip Chart Recorder Director Stang 
Process Observer  Director Roth 
Minutes Laura Jonio 

9:00 a.m. 1. Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance Chairperson Bares 

9:03 a.m. 2. iPad Tutorial Sandy Burwick 

9:10 a.m. 3. Agenda
A. Review Agenda
B. Consent Agenda*

Official Minutes of March 6, 2017, Board of Directors Meeting
  Accounts Payable & Financial Reports 

Chairperson Bares 
Board of Directors 

9:15 a.m. 4. Independent Auditor’s Report for 2016* Lance Rambousek, C.P.A.; Brady, 
Martz & Associates, P.C. 

9:30 a.m. 5. Board Policy Review and Monitoring
A. Policy III.C. Board Governance Process-Chairperson’s Role* Board of Directors 

9:35 a.m. 6. Decision Making
A. Policy II.C. Executive Limitations-Financial Condition and

Manager/CEO Internal Report*
B. Policy II.E. Executive Limitations-Asset Protection and

Manager/CEO Internal Report*
C. Resolution of Appreciation for Allen Hecker, SWA Assistant Chief

Water Distribution Operator*

Mary Massad 

Mary Massad 
Mary Massad 
Mary Massad 

9:45 a.m. 7. Board Member Reports
A. Board Retreat
B. Meetings with Legislators
C. Manager/CEO Evaluation

Board of Directors 
Board of Directors 
Board of Directors 

9:55 a.m. 8. Incidental Information
A. SWPP Update Sindhu Pillai-Grinolds/Jim 

Lennington 

10:15 a.m. Break
10:30 a.m. B. Update from Manager/CEO/SWA Staff

1. High Consumption Users
2. Capital Repayment
3. Easement/Signup Update
4. Water Depot Usage
5. SWPP Funding and Project Review

6. Legislative Update
7. SWC Meeting and Water Coalition Meeting

8. City  Meetings and Contract Updates
9. Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 Certificates of Achievement for 2016

10. Legislative Employee Benefits Committee

Sandy Burwick 
Mary Massad 
Misti Conzemius 
Mary Massad 
Mary Massad/Board of 
Directors/Sindhu Pillai-Grinolds 
Board of Directors/Mary Massad 
Mary Massad/Sindhu Pillai-
Grinolds/George Nodland 
Sandy Burwick/Jack Dwyer 
Mary Massad 
Sandy Burwick 

11:25 a.m.  C.  Perkins County Rural Water System Update Sandy Burwick 

11:30 a.m. 9. Review issues pending/Parking lot/Plan next agenda Director Stang/Board of Directors 

  11:35 a.m.       Adjourn for Lunch 

*Items require Board action. Please Download Board Packet to your iPad prior to the Meeting.
Additional incidental information presented at this meeting includes reports from the CFO/Office Administrator, Marketing
Manager, and Customer Service.

If auxiliary aids or services such as readers, signers, or Braille material are required, please contact Southwest Water 
Authority, 4665 2nd St. SW, Dickinson, North Dakota 58601 or call (701) 225-0241 prior to the meeting. 
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Minutes of Meeting 

Southwest Water Authority 

Board of Directors 

March 6, 2017 

SWA O&M Center Office, Dickinson, ND 

 

 

1. Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance  

 
The Southwest Water Authority Board of Directors met on Monday, March 6, 2017, at the SWA O&M Center Office, 

Dickinson, ND. Chairperson Bares called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. MST, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

Present at the meeting were: Directors Larry Bares, James Odermann, Steve Schneider, Jonathan Eaton, Glenn 

Eckelberg, Dave Juntunen, Brian Roth, George Saxowsky, Rick Seifert and Mike Tietz. Also present were; Mary 

Massad, SWA Manager/CEO; Sandra Burwick, SWA CFO/Office Administrator; Misti Conzemius, SWA Marketing 

Manager; Andy Erickson, SWA Water Distribution Manager; Jen Murray, SWA Executive Assistant; Laura Jonio, 

SWA Administrative Assistant; Sindhu S. Pillai-Grinolds, SWC; George Nodland, SWC; Jim Lennington, Bartlett & 

West/AECOM; Jack Dwyer, Legal Counsel; Duane DeKrey, Garrison Diversion; Director Allen, Director Johnson, 

Director Stang and Melanie Goetz, Hughes & Stuart, joined the meeting via Skype and Director Schaible and Director 

Leingang, joined the meeting via telephone conference.  

 

Introductions 
 

Duane DeKrey of Garrison Diversion was introduced. 

 

2. IPad Tutorial 

 

Burwick presented a PowerPoint on how to close windows in the Web Portal. 

 

3. Agenda 

 

3.A.  Review Agenda  
 

3.B. Consent Agenda*  

Minutes of February 6, 2017, Board of Directors Meeting 

and Accounts Payable & Financial Reports 

 

Chairperson Bares asked for approval of the consent agenda items: Minutes of February 6, 2017, Board of Directors 

and Accounts Payable & Financial Reports.  Copies are on file with the official minutes.  

 

Motion by Director Eckelberg, seconded by Director Seifert, to approve item 3.B. Minutes of February 6, 2017, 

Board of Directors Meeting and Accounts Payable & Financial Reports on the consent agenda. Motion carried by 

voice vote without dissent.  

 

4. Board Policy Review and Monitoring 

 

4.A. Policy III. Board Governance Process-General Governance Commitment* 

 

Chairperson Bares asked if there were any comments or additions to Policy III. Board Governance Process-General 

Governance Commitment and its monitoring. There were none.  A copy of the policy is on file with the official 

minutes. 

 

Motion by Director Roth, seconded by Director Juntunen, to approve Policy III. Board Governance Process-General 

Governance Commitment and its monitoring.  Motion carried by a voice vote without dissent.   
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4.B. Policy III.F. Board Governance Process-Annual Board Planning Cycle* 

 

Chairperson Bares asked if there were any comments or additions to Policy III.F. Board Governance Process-Annual 

Board Planning Cycle and its monitoring. There were none.  A copy of the policy is on file with the official minutes. 

 

Motion by Director Eaton, seconded by Director Schneider, to approve Policy III. F. Board Governance Process-

Annual Board Planning Cycle and its monitoring.  Motion carried by a voice vote without dissent.   

 

5. Decision Making 

 

5.A. Policy II.A. Executive Limitations-Staff Treatment-Manager/CEO and Internal Report* 

 

Massad reviewed Policies II.A. Manager/CEO Internal Reports. 

 

Chairperson Bares asked if there were any comments or additions to Policy II.A. Executive Limitations-Staff 

Treatment-Manager/CEO and Internal Report. There were none.  A copy of the policy is on file with the official 

minutes. 

 

Motion by Director Schneider, seconded by Director Saxowsky, to approve Policy II.A. Executive Limitations-Staff 

Treatment-Manager/CEO and Internal Report. Motion carried unanimously by a roll call vote. 

 

6. Board Member Reports 

 

6.A. Meetings with Legislators  
 

Chairperson Bares reminded Board members to visit with their legislators. 

 

6.B. Board Retreat Information 

 

Informational handouts are included in the board packet for your use in discussions with legislators.  

 

6.C. NDRWSA 31st Annual Water Systems Expo & Conference 

 

The NDRWSA 31st Annual Water Systems Expo & Conference was held on February 14-16, 2017, at the Ramkota in 

Bismarck. Delvin DeBoer, AE2S, spoke on the issues facing Flint, MI. The ND Department of Health gave an update 

on regulations. It was a good conference and several SWA Directors and staff attended. Dan Roller received the 

Outstanding Water Works Employee of the Year Award during the Expo.  Massad thanked Dan for his service and 

dedication to SWA. 

 

6.D. SWA Board of Directors Budget Committee Meeting 

 

Director Odermann reported the SWA Board of Directors Budget Committee Meeting was held February 23, 2017, at 

the SWA O&M Center Office.  The next meeting will be held on April 3, 2017, after the SWA monthly Board of 

Directors meeting.  Director Odermann invited members of the Board to contact Director Bares or any other member of 

the committee with questions or comments for the committee to explore.  A copy of Director Odermann’s report is on 

file with the official minutes. 

 

6.E. Corps of Engineers Meeting 

 

Director Saxowsky reported on the February 8, 2017, meeting with the Corps of Engineers on the Missouri River 

Recovery Plan-Environmental Impact Statement.  Half of the 44 attendees were from the Corps of Engineers in Omaha, 

NE.  The Department of Fishery reported on the ecology of sturgeon and conflict with bird habitats.  The Corps has 

extended the public comment period to April 22, 2017, and continues to explore options.  
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7. Incidental Information 

 

7.A. SWPP Update 

 

OMND (Oliver, Mercer, North Dunn) Regional Service Area 

 

Rural Distribution Contracts: 

The contractor, Swanberg Construction, refused to complete field order items for Contract 7-9G Bid Schedule 1,  so the 

contractor, Northern Improvement Company has agreed to complete those items as a part of Contract 7-9G Bid 

Schedule 2.  Contract 7-9G Bid Schedule 1 completion date has been extended to June 2018.  Contract 7-9G Bid 

Schedule 2 has a completion date of September 2017. 

 

Other Contracts 

 

Contract 1-2A Supplemental Raw Water Intake: 

The contractor is working on cleaning out the shaft and has reached the shaft bottom.  The contractor has installed the 

plug over the intake pipe. The first shipment of the MTBM parts was delivered to the site the second week of February. 

The first shipment of the new intake pipe has also been received. An application for a new easement and construction 

license has been filed with the Corps of Engineers. The builder’s risk insurance company has filed a lawsuit against the 

contractor and the NDSWC disputing the insurance payouts. 

 

Lennington reported the steel plug has been installed over the intake pipe.  The contractor has finished sand and water 

removal from the caisson. The contractor is in the process of installing a new floor.  A stronger seal to be welded on the 

plug has been requested. 

 

Contract 3-2D Dickinson WTP: 

The slab over the wet well remains to be poured on the first floor slab pours.  The contractor is working on the second 

floor slab between the wet well and the ozone basin. Work on the steel columns and steel joists has begun in the 

administration area. The precast wall installation began the week of February 27th. Painting and masonry block wall 

installation in the basement is ongoing. Installation of electrical conduits, HVAC ducts and fire sprinkler pipes is 

progressing in the basement.   

 

Contract 5-1A and 5-2A 2nd Dickinson and 2nd Richardton Reservoir: 

Work on these contracts is expected to begin in the spring. The preconstruction conference for the 2nd Dickinson Raw 

Water Reservoir is scheduled for March 30, 2017, at the SWA O&M Center Office. 

 

Contract 2-1A Raw Water Parallel Pipe from Intake to Zap: 

Design on this contract is mostly complete. Easement acquisition will begin soon. The SWC hopes to advertise this 

contract for bids in early April. 

 

Contract 3-2E Residual Handling Facility 

Design is ongoing.  The plan is advertise for bids this biennium. 

 

7.B. Update from Manager/CEO/SWA Staff 

 

7.B.1. Capital Repayment 

 

Massad reviewed the spreadsheet which shows capital repayment through February 28, 2017, in the amount of 

$53,087,708.70.  The spreadsheet is on file with the official minutes. 

 

7.B.2. Easement/Signup Update
 

Conzemius reviewed the Sign-up and Easement Report.  Subsequent cost quotes and customer complaints were 

reported.  A copy of the report is on file with the official minutes. 
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7.B.3. ND Rural Water Rates 

 
Massad reviewed the updated rate spreadsheets for rural water systems for the state of North Dakota.  The average 

monthly minimum is $43.00, the lowest is $20.00 and the highest is $68.00.  Several water systems are requesting 

grants in addition to loan dollars to assist in keeping their rates low.  

 

George Nodland reported water systems are continuing to request grants from the SWC and some are still granted. 

However, with budget constraints, loans with interest are being offered more often.     

 

7.B.4. High Consumption Users 

 

Burwick reported high consumption letters were sent to customers using more than their allocation as requested by the 

Board at the February 2017 Board meeting. There were 242 letters sent out.  Burwick reviewed spreadsheets broken 

down by high consumption users for a 12-month average, during peak months May through September and customers 

using over their allocation and no capacity.  Each director received copies of the letters sent to customers in their 

respective counties.  Several customers contacted Directors, Massad and staff with various questions regarding the 

letter.  One concern that arose was satellite customers cannot read their meters and cannot manage their usage.  SWA 

staff has determined a user name and password can be provided to the customer to have the capability to monitor their 

usage through IDT.  If the customer were to choose to obtain this access, SWA would no longer monitor their usage.  

Currently an SWA staff member reviews usage reported by the IDT system for unusual usage and contacts the 

customer to determine the cause, such as a leak.  Another issue that arose, was customers who were required to sign up 

as a standard even though they wanted a pasture tap should not be penalized because the ESU cost was too high. The 

SWC policy for customers who use their allocation of water, is to levy a fine.  SWA does not have the same authority 

as the SWC does.  Now that the letters have been sent, how should staff proceed with customers who will not abide by 

the SWA Rules and Regulations?  Options include, disconnection of service, levy a fine or charge a higher rate for 

water used over their allocation.  Currently SWA works individually with each customer to resolve their usage.  

 

Massad stated over usage by two individual customers with feedlots, using hundreds of thousands of gallons over their 

allocation in the Bowman area have caused substantial stress to the system.  These customers need to be addressed so 

they can establish an alternative source of water prior to the beginning of peak season.  SWA also needs to address all 

the remaining customers who use more than their allocation.  SWA needs to consistently apply the rules.  

 

Director Odermann asked if standard customers can only have 25,000 gpm, why wouldn’t they switch to a pasture tap 

to have access to the water they need. Lennington reported in the transmission design there is .5 gpm per service unit. A 

standard service is equal to one service unit, which is 25,000 gallons, and a pasture tap is equal to two-thirds of a 

service unit. The transmission flow is designed for 05.N+C gallons per minute. The peak flow out of the tank is 

designed for 0.9N+13.6+C gallons per minute. C is the constant flow amount. The difference between the .9 and the .5 

is tank volume. Pasture taps at two-thirds of a service unit is not .5 gpm. It is .3 gpm which equals 480 gpd or 14,400 

gallons in a 30-day month. So, the amount of water in the pump station design is less for a pasture tap than a standard. 

Pasture tap users are restricted to five gallons per minute.  There are many pasture taps who do not use their allocation 

of water which allows others to use more than their allocation and creates the false idea they will be able to 

continuously use more. 

 

Massad requested the Board review the options and determine what action SWA should take going forward. Massad 

stated SWA staff will continue to review. 

 

7.B.5. Water Depot Usage 
 

Massad reviewed the Oil Industry Usage/Revenue and Projections spreadsheets and the Depot Sales vs. Projections 

spreadsheet. Copies are on file with the official minutes. 

 

7.B.6. SWPP Funding and Project Review 

 

Massad reviewed the Project Funding Spreadsheets.  For the 2015-2017 biennium, $39.6 million has been committed to 

projects. There is $15.3 million remaining funds for construction in the current biennium. HB 1020 has crossed over 

from the House to the Senate with the recommendation SWA be grouped into the regional water supply bucket along 
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with WAWS, NAWS and RRVSP.  This bucket currently has $58 million in funding to be divided amongst these 

systems. 

 

Duane DeKrey of Garrison Diversion reported Red River Valley Water Supply Project is requesting $30 million.  The 

House has taken very little input during legislative hearings from water systems. Water systems are hoping the Senate 

will be more engaged in the discussion of funding.   

 

Duane DeKrey reported Garrison Diversion met with the Bureau of Reclamation in January 2017.  At this meeting a 

spreadsheet was provided showing $25 million allocated for North Dakota.   The allocation spreadsheet came out 

before the presidential election in November.  The only projects completed in the last biennium were water towers due 

to the decreased land size to complete environmental studies on versus the studies that would be required to install lines 

across acres and acres of land.  

 

7.B.7. City Meetings and Contract Updates 

 

Jack Dwyer reviewed the memo dated March 1, 2017, updating the progress of the Transfer of Service Agreements and 

future meetings with the cities.   

 

7.B.8. Legislative Update and Events 

 
Massad reported SWA is sponsoring Coffee with the Legislators at Dickinson City Hall on March 25. It is important 

for Directors to meet with their legislators about SWA, the SWPP, and continued funding. During meetings with the 

cities we serve, SWA received requests for increased capacity. SWA needs to communicate with the cities that in order 

to increase capacity, more construction is required.  The SWC budget bill, HB 1020, has crossed over to the Senate.  

The next hearing will be held Thursday, March 16.  The bucket system is currently looking to be how the monies will 

be appropriated.  HB 1023 was presented in which NDPERS would change some procedures and the make-up of the 

Board of Directors.    

 

George Nodland stated HB 1020 and HB 1374 both passed the House.  He suggested SWA reach out to the Senate 

members regarding HB 1020 to gain support for the SWPP. 

 

The Water Coalition will meet on Wednesday, March 15.   

 

7.B.9. SWA Board of Directors Calling Tree 

 

Massad reviewed the SWA Board of Directors calling tree chart.  Directors have the responsibility to contact two other 

directors to inform them of important matters, such as legislative or operational actions that need to be taken. Copies 

are available if anyone would like them.   

 

7.B.10. System Hydraulic Capacity Analysis – Fairfield Service Area 

 
Lennington reported on the updated hydraulic study for the Fairfield service area which includes Grassy Butte and 

served out of the OMND WTP. Change orders added in Contract 7-9G Bid Schedule 2 and additional users added to 

the project reduced the number of people that can hook-up from the waiting list.  The Fairfield service area currently 

has a long waiting list.  If people chose to sign up when the project was being designed and constructed, there wouldn’t 

be a problem now.  A substantial number of customers were added on during construction.  A special request came 

from McKenzie County Grazing Association to B&W to determine water availability in their area.  Four customers 

were removed from the project design and still no extra water would be available for McKenzie County Grazing 

Association. SWA staff is contacting customers in the Grassy Butte area to determine if they are still interested in 

water.  B&W will perform hydraulic analysis on customers still interested in the water to determine availability.  

Bottom line, all the customers on the Grassy Butte waiting list will not be able to get water.  There are some 

possibilities for design and construction improvements to add capacity such as adding parallel lines and storage tanks. 

The only way to know if users from the waiting list can be served is to look at a hydraulic analysis on a case by case 

basis.  The current issue as to why we cannot add people to the line, is the size of the pipe, however more problems 

could arise if a bigger pipe was installed or parallel lines were constructed.  Lennington stated had these users from the 

waiting list signed up when the project was under design there would not be an issue in serving them today. 
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7.C. Perkins County Rural Water System Update 
 

A copy of Perkins County Rural Water System’s February 9, 2017, meeting minutes and a construction update are on 

file with the official minutes.   

 

8. Review issues pending/Parking Lot/Plan next agenda 

 

There being no further business, Chairperson Bares adjourned the meeting at 12:09 p.m. MST. 

 

 

                                                                                      

Larry Bares, Chairperson                                    Steve Schneider, Secretary/Treasurer     
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MEMORANDUM 

To: Mary Massad, Manager/CEO  

From: Sandra Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator 

Subject: Financial, Administration and Customer Service – Incidental Information 

Date: March 21, 2017 

The financial statements included for your review are for February 2017. These include a 

summary income & expense statement that compares to budget, a detailed income statement of 

actual income and expenses for the year and the balance sheet.  I am also including a detailed 

statement of board expenses for the month of February.   

The accounts receivable listing for rural customers is for February 2017 and the transmission 

accounts receivable listing is for March 2017. The checks written for the month are from 

February 23, 2017 through March 21, 2017. 

Total rural usage for February 2017 was 23,565,000 gallons.  By comparison, in February 2016 

rural water sales were 21,309,100 gallons.  This is an increase of 10.59%.  During the month of 

February, we had four customer hookups; one in 7-4, two in 7-9F and one in 7-9G.  There are 881 

customers using our Automatic Payment Plan, 101 paid online with a credit card and 258 paid 

online with a checking account.  We had 121 spot checks (two months without a reading or the 

same reading). 

As of the end of February 2017, SWA had 227 tenants.  Deferred revenue includes 294 signups, 

103 extra units and a customer balance due of $2,775.50.  Attached to this memo are 

spreadsheets for power costs, mill levy income and signup income for the month of February.  

SWA sold a total of 136,475,550 gallons of water for the month of February.  The projection for 

the year 2017 is 2,574,813,000 gallons.  A comparison of total usage through February is listed 

at the top of the next page.  The difference shown in the first column is the difference between 

year-to-date for the year (2016) and 2017.  This shows a historical year-to-date comparison.  

Also listed are the usage and the difference for the last two months.  Sales through February were 

less than last year’s sales through February by 7.6%.  The water loss for February was 3.83%.   

SWA had 6,877 active accounts with 1,925 subsequent users in February.  
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Page 2 
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The 2015 financial statements have been restated to reflect the changes from the June 30, 2015 

valuation report for the North Dakota Public Retirement System NDPERS retirement plan. The 

effects of this adjustment were to decrease deferred pension outflows by $55,925, increase net 

pension liability by $218,636, decrease deferred pension inflows by $97,580, increase employee 

benefits by $176,981 and decrease unrestricted net position by $176,981. This is due to the North 

Dakota Public Retirement System’s July 2015 valuation report which did not come out until May 

4, 2016.  

The 2016 financial statements have been adjusted to reflect the changes from the June 30, 2016, 

valuation report for the NDPERS retirement plan. The effects of this adjustment were to increase 

deferred pension outflows by $481,060, increase net pension liability by $1,020,505, decrease 

deferred pension inflows by $25,452, increase employee benefits by $319,012 and decrease 

unrestricted net position by $319,012. Because 2016 was already closed, this is reflected on the 

February 28, 2017, balance sheet as a decrease to reserve funds. This is due to the North Dakota 

Public Retirement System’s July 2016 valuation report which did not come out until March 17, 

2017.   

As of the end of February, SWA has installed 43 satellite units: 3 units for subsequent customers, 

6 units for OMND customers and 32 units for current customers.  There are 447 units in 

inventory for customers. 

Attached is information from NDRWSA regarding water rates for rural water systems in the state 

of North Dakota. This information, which was previously reported, has been sorted by the 

number of customers per entity as reflected in the third column.   

A listing of Accounts Payables (aged trial balance) is included. In addition to the regular 

accounts payables, included in the listing are: Advanced Technology Services, Inc. for $1,501.50 

for electrical components for the Jung Lake VFD; Bartlett & West Engineers, Inc. for $7,781.02 

which includes $3,919.77 for hydraulic analyses, $1,198.53 for Board meeting attendance, 

$1,900.00 for 19 hydraulic studies, $368.40 for 2-3E Dry Creek Crossing replacement, $199.75 

for DAPL and $194.57 for GIS; BHG, Inc. for $72.00 for an annual subscription to the Hazen 

Star and the Center Republican; Cole Papers, Inc. for $884.00 for paper; The Dickinson Press 

Comparisons 

thru February 

Listed in   

thousand gallons 

2008 205,427.60    January 2017 155,947.67 

2009 209,569.90   February 2017         136,475.55 

2010 213,746.30   difference (19,472.12 

2011 237,656.90 

2012 286,610.50 

2013 318,513.79 

2014 330,091.34 

2015 336,715.88 

2016 314,567.24 

2017 292,423.22 

difference      (22,144.02) 

26



Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
Page 3  
March 21, 2017 

 

 

for $72.00 for an annual subscription; Frontier Precision, Inc. for $2,925.00 for annual warranty 

for GEO XT survey units; Great Plains Technical for $1,218.00 for service and repair of a pump 

at the Scranton BPS; Hettinger Chamber of Commerce for $300.00 for an annual membership; 

The Herald for $41.00 an annual subscription; Information Data Technologies for $14,286.35 

which includes $13,060.00 for 2,612 airtime minutes at $5.00 each and $1,226.35 for one 

satellite tuner for the OMND office; JK Excavation & Construction, Inc. for $5,600.00 which 

includes $2,066.67 to excavate a 10” MTL and install a new hymax at the Beach BPS,  

$1,766.67 for a 2” road bore to install new yellowmine at Allan Richard’s in Contract 2-8A and 

$1,766.66 to excavate a 10” MTL and tighten a hymax at the Beach PRV; John Crane Inc. for 

$2,984.76 for a spare PB3 at the Intake; ND Department of Health-Chemistry for $14,060.56 for 

mandatory testing from January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016, John Crane for $2,984.76 for a 

seal assembly at the Intake; ND Department of Health-Microbiology for $114.00 which includes 

$50.00 for one BacT test at the WTP in Dickinson, $64.00 for one each BacT tests for $16.00 

each at the OMND WTP, Crown Butte, Junction Inn and Tower Hill; ND Water Education 

Foundation for $7,881.00 which includes $5,381.00 for 5,381 copies of the ND Water Magazine 

and $2,500.00 to sponsor the 2017 Water Tours; Northwestern Power Equipment Co. Inc. for 

$4,056.07 for control valves for inventory; One Call Concepts for $177.95 for 173 locate calls 

and seven emergency locate calls and Presort Plus for $3,104.64 to print and mail 5,760 monthly 

statements. 
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ND Rural Water System Rates as of January 2017

Sorted by Number of Users

SYSTEM # of Users # of Users Minimum Cost Minimum Gal. $/1000 Gal. $/6000 Gal.

R&T Water Supply Association 75 75 $45.00 0 $4.10 $69.60
State Line Water Cooperative 452 452 $35.00 0 $5.00 $65.00
Garrison Rural Water Association 526 526 $25.00 0 $3.12 $43.72
Upper Souris Water District 625 625 $30.00 0 $9.00 $84.00
McLean Sheridan Rural Water 520 $49.00 0 $6.91 $90.46
McLean Sheridan Rural Water/Washburn Project 150 670 $59.00 0 $6.91 $100.46
Central Plains Water District 775 775 $30.00 0 $5.50 $63.00
Dakota Rural Water District 599 $43.00 0 $4.60 $70.60
Dakota Rural Water District Expansion 188 787 $51.00 0 $4.60 $78.60
Traill Rural Water District 779 779 $55.00 0 $7.00 $97.00
Tri-County Water District 700 $43.00 0 $6.00 $79.00
Tri-County Water District Expansion 9 $54.00 1000 $6.00 $84.00
Tri-County Water District Expansion 240 949 $54.00 2000 $6.00 $78.00
McKenzie County Water Resource District 1175 1175 $45.00 0 $5.46 $77.76
All Seasons Water Users District System 1-4 722 $32.00 0 $7.00 $74.00
All Seasons Water Users District System 4 Phase 1&2 107 $42.00 0 $7.00 $84.00
All Seasons Water Users District System 5 480 1309 $42.00 0 $7.00 $84.00
Agassiz Water Users District 1334 1334 $20.00 0 $4.50 $47.00
Walsh Rural Water District C1 21 $42.00 0 $7.00 $84.00
Walsh Rural Water District C2 4 $68.00 0 $7.00 $110.00
Walsh Rural Water District R1 1290 $36.00 0 $7.00 $78.00
Walsh Rural Water District R3 147 $48.00 0 $7.00 $90.00
Walsh Rural Water District R4 74 1536 $55.00 0 $7.00 $97.00
North Central Regional Water District 1554 1554 $65.00 0 $7.25 $108.50
Missouri West Water System 1654 1654 $35.00 0 $7.88 $82.28
Barnes Rural Water District  #1 1377 $43.00 0 $5.00 $73.00
Barnes Rural Water District  #2 261 $59.00 0 $5.00 $89.00
Barnes Rural Water District #3 350 1988 $52.00 0 $5.00 $82.00
Williams Rural Water District 2124 2124 $45.00 0 $8.57 $96.42
Greater Ramsey Water District 1892 $30.00 0 $4.00 $54.00
Greater Ramsey Water District  Expansion 351 2243 $45.00 0 $4.00 $69.00
Stutsman Rural Water District 1241 $40.00 0 $5.00 $70.00
Stutsman Rural Water District Expansion Project 1049 2290 $48.00 0 $5.00 $78.00
Northeast Regional Water District/Langdon Branch 962 $55.00 0 $6.00 $91.00
Northeast Regional Water District/North Valley Branch 1369 2331 $39.00 0 $6.00 $75.00
North Prairie Rural Water District 2549 2549 $49.00 0 $7.21 $92.26
Grand Forks Traill Water District 315 $55.00 0 $5.78 $89.68
Grand Forks Traill Water District 2429 2744 $29.40 0 $5.78 $64.08
Southeast Water Users District Central 791 $45.00 0 $5.75 $79.50
Southeast Water Users District East 1699 $26.00 0 $4.50 $53.00
Southeast Water Users District West 544 3034 $45.00 0 $3.50 $66.00
Cass Rural Water District 4337 4337 $27.00 0 $4.70 $55.20
South Central Regional Water District 1100 $40.00 0 $5.15 $70.90
South Central Regional Water District 5000 6100 $34.00 500 $7.50 $75.25
Southwest Water Authority 6858 6858 $40.32 0 $4.84 $69.36

Yearly Average $1,157.04
50798 50798

Median $43.00 $5.78 $78.00
Average $43.33 $5.87 $78.06

Yearly Average $936.70

3/28/201711:06 AMB:\Board of Directors\NDRW Rates\2017 NDRW Rates.xlsx
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Date: 3/23/2017  Southwest Water Authority Page: 1 

Board of Directors Expenses

For 1/1/2017 to 2/28/2017

Current Current  2017 BUDGET  2017 BUDGET

Period YTD YTD Budget

Board of Directors Expenses

Per Diem  -- Board of Directors $4,956.00 $6,903.00 $11,283.34 $67,700.00 

Workers Compensation Expense -- Board of Directors 12.26 24.52 41.66 250.00 

FICA Expense  -- Board of Directors 329.85 484.38 816.66 4,900.00 

Medicare Expense -- Board of Directors 77.12 113.28 200.00 1,200.00 

Professional & Purchased Services -- Board of
Dir

2,395.37 2,395.37 9,916.66 59,500.00 

Office Supplies -- Board of Directors 31.85 31.85 100.00 600.00 

Copies & Duplication -- Board of Directors 0.00 0.00 16.66 100.00 

Public Relations & Development -- Board of Dir 844.30 1,297.42 2,833.34 17,000.00 

Development & Education -- Board of Directors 250.00 1,375.00 2,416.66 14,500.00 

Mileage Reimbursement -- Board of Directors 1,273.30 1,819.00 3,550.00 21,300.00 

Vehicle Gas Expense -- Board of Directors 0.00 0.00 16.66 100.00 

Vehicle Insurance -- Board of Directors 4.28 8.56 16.66 100.00 

Lodging and Meals  -- Board of Directors 877.58 1,677.56 2,416.66 14,500.00 

Travel Expenses -- Board of Directors 0.00 0.00 2,333.34 14,000.00 

Telephone Expense -- Board of Directors 3.28 6.11 50.00 300.00 

Internet Access -- Board of Directors 342.85 685.70 1,333.34 8,000.00 

Postage & Pitney Bowes -- Board of Directors 5.06 17.07 33.34 200.00 

Dues & Subscriptions -- Board of Directors 1,978.46 5,306.92 4,500.00 27,000.00 

Insurance-Liability  -- Board of Directors 1,261.52 2,523.04 2,250.00 13,500.00 

 

Total Board of Director Expense $14,643.08 $24,668.78 $44,124.98 $264,750.00 

Depreciation Expense -- Board of Directors $306.84 $613.68 $116.66 $700.00 

Total Expenses $14,949.92 $25,282.46 $44,241.64 $265,450.00 

$14,949.92 $25,282.46 $44,241.64 $265,450.00 
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 Southwest Water Authority

BALANCE SHEET

As of 2/28/2017

Page: 1Date: 3/29/2017

ERROR

Current

YTD

Assets

Current Assets

Cash

Cash in Checking-American Bank Center (ABC)-O&M $355,049.37 

Cash in Checking - ABC Payroll 373,129.09 

ABC-O&M Money Market 9,000.06 

ABC-O&M Money Market-Reserve/Transmission 44,724.38 

ABC--O&M Money Market-Reserve/Distribution 19,621.90 

ABC-O&M DDM-Reserve/Transmission 10,648.59 

ABC-O&M DDM-Reserve/Distribution 202.19 

Cash in Checking - Bank of the West 55,916.67 

Petty Cash 200.00 

 

Total Cash $868,492.25 

Short-Term Investments

Investment(O&M)American Trust Center (ATC)Short Te $51,645.16 

Investment(General Fund) - ATC - Short Term 102,407.82 

Investment (Reserve Fund/Gen Op) - ATC- Short Term 51,225.51 

Investment (Escrow )-ATC-Short Term 31,882.79 

Investment (Replace & EM)-ATC-Short Term 1,848,226.53 

 

Total Short-Term Investments $2,085,387.81 

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable-Distribution Prepayments ($50,391.18) 

Accounts Receivable-Transmission 480,568.94 

Accounts Receivable-Distribution 392,620.13 

Accounts Receivable-MWWS 10,343.33 

Accounts Receivable-Other (184,938.65) 

Allowance For Doubtful Accounts (2,928.24) 

Allowance For Doubtful Accounts-MWWS (260.53) 

 

Total Accounts Receivable $645,013.80 

Interest Receivable

Interest Receivable $11,853.39 

 

Total Interest Receivables $11,853.39 

Inventory

Inventory Contributed Capital $102,020.67 

Inventory - User Spare Parts 366,578.59 

Inventory -- WTP 107,188.13 

Inventory -- OMND WTP 118,789.23 
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Date: 3/29/2017  Southwest Water Authority Page: 2 
BALANCE SHEET

As Of 2/28/2017

Current

YTD

 

Total Inventory $694,576.62 

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid Expenses $38,085.60 

Prepaid Deposit - MISO 9,782.00 

Prepaid Insurance 74,119.92 

Prepaid Postage 3,354.14 

Prepaid Workers Compensation 9,935.99 

 

Total Prepaid Expenses $135,277.65 

 

Total Current Assets $4,440,601.52 

Long-Term Investments

Investment (O&M) American Trust Center (ATC)- Long $572,248.65 

Investment (Gen Op) - ATC - Long Term 505,612.99 

Investment  (Reserve Fund/Gen Op)-ATC-Long Term 296,100.89 

Investment (Escrow)-ATC-Long Term 507,223.70 

Investment (Replace & EM)-ATC-Long Term 15,482,527.46 

 

Total Long-Term Investments $17,363,713.69 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land $109,347.07 

Building & Improvements 3,903,642.76 

Office Furniture And Fixtures 263,302.14 

Vehicles 926,831.16 

Contributed Vehicles 46,093.08 

Other Fixed Assets 4,011.00 

Computer Equipment 267,129.99 

Machinery & Equipment 2,247,524.56 

Contributed Equipment 63,664.87 

Computer Software 241,616.06 

 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment $8,073,162.69 

Accumulated Depreciation

Accum Depr-Building & Improve. $498,071.50 

Accum Depr-Office Furn & Fixt 124,170.02 

Accum Depreciation-Vehicle 475,430.79 

Accum Depr-Contributed Vehicle 46,093.08 

Accum Depr-Other Fixed Assets 4,011.00 

Accum Depr-Computer Equipment 231,113.24 

Accum Depr-Machinery & Equipment 949,413.28 

Accum Depr-Contributed Equipment 63,664.87 

Amortized Software Costs 217,011.19 
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Date: 3/29/2017  Southwest Water Authority Page: 3 
BALANCE SHEET

As Of 2/28/2017

Current

YTD

Total Accumulated Depreciation $2,608,978.97 

Other Assets

Deferred Pension Outflows $944,467.00 

 

Total Other Assets $944,467.00 

 

Total Assets $28,212,965.93 
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Date: 3/29/2017  Southwest Water Authority Page: 4 
BALANCE SHEET

As Of 2/28/2017

Current

YTD

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable $714,123.61 

Accrued Annual Leave Payable 172,536.66 

Accrued Sick Leave Payable 65,472.16 

Employee Benefits Payable 101,774.10 

 

Total Accounts Payable $1,053,906.53 

Taxes Payable

ND State Withholding Payable $5,146.00 

Employer Matching FICA 16,165.89 

Employer Matching Medicare 3,780.73 

 

Total Taxes Payable $25,092.62 

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Salaries Payable $264,498.24 

Construction Costs Due ND SWC 47,050.57 

 

Total Other Current Liabilities $311,548.81 

 

Total Current Liabilities $1,390,547.96 

Long-Term Debt

Deferred Revenue $77,157.00 

Rental Deposits from Tenants 16,625.00 

Rental Deposits from Tenants-MWWS 375.00 

Customer Escrow Deposit 40,000.00 

Deferred Pension Inflows 156,402.00 

Net Pension Liability 2,652,647.00 

 

Total Long-Term Debt $2,943,206.00 

 

Total Liabilities $4,333,753.96 

Reserve Funds

Reserve Account--O&M Transmission $1,119,196.26 

Reserve Account -- O&M Distribution 1,323,532.49 

Reserve Account -- O&M Treatment (1,071,800.21) 

Reserve Account -- General Operating Fund 346,737.79 

Reserve Account -- Replace & EM--Transmission 15,460,489.60 

Reserve Account-Repl & EM -- Distribution 448,668.12 

Interest Income - Replacement & Extraordinary Main 1,219,275.74 

Dividend Income - Replacement & Extraordinary Main 219,181.48 
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Date: 3/29/2017  Southwest Water Authority Page: 5 
BALANCE SHEET

As Of 2/28/2017

Current

YTD

 

Total Reserve Funds $19,065,281.27 

Equity

Unappropriated Funds $4,547,414.66 

Contributed Capital 468,940.92 

Net Profit/(loss) (202,424.88) 

 

Total Equity $4,813,930.70 

 

Total Liabilities and Equity $28,212,965.93 
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Date: 3/23/2017  Southwest Water Authority Page: 1
Statement of Income & Expenses

For 1/1/2017 To 2/28/2017

3/23/20173/23/2017

Current Current YTD 2017 YTD % Budget total

Period YTD Budget of Budget  2017

Sales

Sales of Water $846,934.39 $1,779,380.43 $2,488,816.66 11.92% $14,932,900.00 

Sales of Equipment $19,470.56 $29,932.56 $29,500.00 16.91% $177,000.00 

Sales of Services $4,744.09 $9,844.09 $7,583.32 21.64% $45,500.00 

Other Income -- Transmission $11.46 $11.46 $166.66 1.15% $1,000.00 

 

Gross Sales $871,160.50 $1,819,168.54 $2,526,066.64 12.00% $15,156,400.00 

O&M Expense --Transmission $540,872.12 $1,117,974.33 $1,391,570.78 13.39% $8,349,425.00 

O&M Expense --Distribution $307,996.32 $606,575.25 $799,640.00 12.64% $4,797,840.00 

O&M Expense -- Treatment $159,052.27 $298,628.20 $371,030.88 13.41% $2,226,185.00 

Customer Service Expense $16,427.25 $27,893.09 $30,451.64 15.27% $182,710.00 

 

Total Expenses $1,024,347.96 $2,051,070.87 $2,592,693.30 13.19% $15,556,160.00 

 

Gross Profit On Sales ($153,187.46) ($231,902.33) ($66,626.66) 58.01% ($399,760.00) 

Other Income

Mill Levy Income $132,434.83 $241,789.65 $103,333.36 39.00% $620,000.00 

Other Income $6,078.25 $16,455.85 $29,891.68 9.18% $179,350.00 

 

Total Other Income $138,513.08 $258,245.50 $133,225.04 32.31% $799,350.00 

Board of Directors Expense $14,643.08 $24,668.78 $44,124.98 9.32% $264,750.00 

Administrative Expense $18,522.04 $38,464.19 $49,020.00 13.08% $294,120.00 

Easement Acquisition Expense $14,226.75 $29,141.92 $38,830.82 12.51% $232,985.00 

Rural Water Signup Expense $15,481.15 $30,110.44 $37,772.52 13.29% $226,635.00 

Other Expense $385.00 $385.00 $750.00 8.56% $4,500.00 

Depreciation Expense $41,859.25 $84,253.16 $91,049.96 15.42% $546,300.00 

Replacement & EM Fund Expense $4,883.61 $21,402.96 $269,783.32 1.32% $1,618,700.00 

Gain/Loss on Asset Disposal $5,339.03 ($341.60) $0.00 0.00% $0.00 

 

Net Income/Expenses ($119,336.23) ($202,424.88) ($464,733.22) 7.26% ($2,788,400.00) 

 

35



Payables Management

                                                             Southwest Water Authority                                                              

AGED TRIAL BALANCE

First - Last

First - Last

First - Last
First - Last

First - Last
First - Last
First - Last

Document Date Vendor ID
Document Date

Sorted By:
Aging Date:

Vendor ID:

Vendor Name:

Class ID:

Ranges:
Accts Payable:

Payment Priority: Document Number:

Age By:
Credit Balance, Zero Balance, No Activity, Unposted Applied Credit Documents, Multicurrency Info

3/28/2017 11:32:10 AM
3/28/2017

SUMMARYPrint Option: Exclude:

Posting Date:

12/31/2017

Page: 1
User ID: Cindy

System:
User Date:

Vendor ID: Name:AD8151 ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY SERVICES INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $1,501.50 

Vendor ID: Name:AG6652 AGPRO EQUIPMENT

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $56.16 

Vendor ID: Name:AI6318 AIRGAS ON-SITE SAFETY SERVICES, INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $242.00 

Vendor ID: Name:AM1955 AMAZON

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $759.67 

Vendor ID: Name:AM3577 AMERICAN INSURANCE CENTER

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $233.00 

Vendor ID: Name:AN7361 ANTHRAFILTER INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $12,040.00 

Vendor ID: Name:AQ7167 AQUA-PURE, INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $9,440.00 

Vendor ID: Name:BA6742 BARTLETT & WEST ENGINEERS, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

3 $7,781.02 

Vendor ID: Name:BH3351 BHG, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $72.00 

Vendor ID: Name:BO6225 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

10 $1,226.05 

Vendor ID: Name:BR2557 BRENNTAG PACIFIC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $391.06 

Vendor ID: Name:CH3771 CHI ST. ALEXIUS HEALTH

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $27.00 

Vendor ID: Name:CH4313 CH DIAGNOSTIC & CONSULTING SERVICES

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $365.00 

Vendor ID: Name:CO5371 COLE PAPERS, INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $884.00 

Vendor ID: Name:DA4660 DAKOTA PUMP INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $220.04 

Vendor ID: Name:DA4963 DAKOTA SUPPLY GROUP
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AGED TRIAL BALANCE

Southwest Water Authority

3/28/2017 11:32:10 AM Page:System: 2
3/28/2017 CindyUser Date: User ID :

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $1,556.40 

Vendor ID: Name:DI1449 DICKINSON PRESS

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $167.00 

Vendor ID: Name:DO5723 DON'S FILTER & FURNACE INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $63.72 

Vendor ID: Name:DW9264 DWYER LAW OFFICES

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $10,502.98 

Vendor ID: Name:ET3155 ETHANOL PRODUCTS, LLC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $3,178.41 

Vendor ID: Name:EU6523 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $135.00 

Vendor ID: Name:FA1274 FARMERS UNION-BEULAH

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $397.80 

Vendor ID: Name:FA3192 FARMERS UNION HAZEN

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $47.89 

Vendor ID: Name:FE2200 FEDERAL EXPRESS

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $36.02 

Vendor ID: Name:FE6377 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $32.33 

Vendor ID: Name:FR5573 FRONTIER PRECISION, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $2,925.00 

Vendor ID: Name:GA4426 THE GALLERY COLLECTION

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $155.36 

Vendor ID: Name:GI3449 GILLY'S AUTO & TIRE CENTER

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $456.00 

Vendor ID: Name:GR1955 GRAYMONT CAPITAL INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

3 $12,644.68 

Vendor ID: Name:GR2180 GREAT PLAINS TECHNICAL SERVICES INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $1,218.00 

Vendor ID: Name:HA1315 HACH COMPANY

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $354.33 

Vendor ID: Name:HA8435 HAWKINS INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

4 $3,444.37 

Vendor ID: Name:HA9253 HAZEN HARDWARE HANK

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $16.86 

Vendor ID: Name:HE1315 HETTINGER CHAMBER OF COMM.
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AGED TRIAL BALANCE

Southwest Water Authority

3/28/2017 11:32:10 AM Page:System: 3
3/28/2017 CindyUser Date: User ID :

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $300.00 

Vendor ID: Name:HE1566 THE HERALD

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $41.00 

Vendor ID: Name:IN2566 INFORMATIONAL DATA TECHNOLOGIES LLC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $14,286.35 

Vendor ID: Name:JE6552 JEROME DISTRIBUTING, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

3 $173.59 

Vendor ID: Name:JK2811 JK EXCAVATION & CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $5,600.00 

Vendor ID: Name:JO3516 JOHN CRANE, INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $2,984.76 

Vendor ID: Name:MA1735 MAC'S INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $105.98 

Vendor ID: Name:MA6152 MARC NELSON OIL PRODUCTS

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $7,028.33 

Vendor ID: Name:ME2125 SANFORD HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $159.00 

Vendor ID: Name:MO6361 MOR-GRAN-SOU ELECTRIC COOP.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $8,947.39 

Vendor ID: Name:MO6756 MORTON COUNTY RECORDER

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $10.00 

Vendor ID: Name:MO7355 MOTION INDUSTRIES

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $106.14 

Vendor ID: Name:NA6169 NAPA- HAZEN

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

3 $92.35 

Vendor ID: Name:NE8197 NEWBY'S ACE HARDWARE

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

4 $62.13 

Vendor ID: Name:NO6275 ND DEPT OF HEALTH-MICROBIOLOGY

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

5 $114.00 

Vendor ID: Name:NO6301 ND DEPT. OF HEALTH - CHEMISTRY

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $14,060.56 

Vendor ID: Name:NO6310 ND RURAL WATER SYSTEMS ASSOC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $252.00 

Vendor ID: Name:NO6727 ND WATER EDUCATION FOUNDATION

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $7,881.00 

Vendor ID: Name:NO6739 NORTHWESTERN POWER EQUIP CO INC
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AGED TRIAL BALANCE

Southwest Water Authority

3/28/2017 11:32:10 AM Page:System: 4
3/28/2017 CindyUser Date: User ID :

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $4,056.07 

Vendor ID: Name:NO7122 NORTH DAKOTA SAFETY COUNCIL

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $90.00 

Vendor ID: Name:OL7558 OLSON'S SERVICE

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

7 $303.00 

Vendor ID: Name:ON2114 ONE CALL CONCEPTS

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $177.95 

Vendor ID: Name:PI7531 PITNEY BOWES INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $417.69 

Vendor ID: Name:PR2137 PRECISION MACHINE & WELDING, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $290.00 

Vendor ID: Name:PR2756 PRESORT PLUS

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $3,104.64 

Vendor ID: Name:QU1437 QUALITY QUICK PRINT, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $195.00 

Vendor ID: Name:QU1438 QUALITY XTERMINATORS

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

3 $195.00 

Vendor ID: Name:QU2255 QUEEN CITY MOTORS, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $58.90 

Vendor ID: Name:RR1775 R & R AUTO, FARM & ELECTRIC, INC.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

6 $873.48 

Vendor ID: Name:RU5535 RUNNINGS SUPPLY, INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

10 $689.72 

Vendor ID: Name:SA8557 SAX MOTOR CORP.

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $164.37 

Vendor ID: Name:SH2683 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS/DICKINSON

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $49.80 

Vendor ID: Name:SO8965 SOUTHWEST BUSINESS MACHINES

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

2 $198.98 

Vendor ID: Name:SP1671 SPARTAN STORES, LLC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

5 $10.78 

Vendor ID: Name:TR3515 TRIMBLE NAVIGATION LIMITED

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $536.36 

Vendor ID: Name:TR7281 TRUE VALUE HARDWARE/ELGIN

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $6.99 

Vendor ID: Name:UP7268 UPS
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AGED TRIAL BALANCE

Southwest Water Authority
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Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

3 $215.80 

Vendor ID: Name:VI7111 VISA

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

17 $1,018.82 

Vendor ID: Name:WE7726 TOTAL SAFETY U.S., INC

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

4 $469.94 

Vendor ID: Name:XE6581 XEROX CORPORATION

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $178.64 

Vendor ID: Name:XE6582 XEROX CORPORATION-LEASE

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $957.62 

Vendor ID: Name:ZE6651 ZEP SALES & SERVICE

Aged Totals:Voucher(s):
Due 

1 $146.87 

Vendor Totals: 

Due 

$149,181.65                   75 

Vendor(s) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors 
Southwest Water Authority 
Dickinson, North Dakota 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of  
Southwest Water Authority, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
AND CONSULTANTS 

www.bradymartz.com 
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the business-type activities of Southwest Water Authority, as 
of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1 and 4 to the financial statements, Southwest Water Authority adopted 
the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter. 

As discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements, Southwest Water Authority has restated its 
2015 financial statements to reflect the pension related financial amounts using the June 30, 2015 
valuation report from the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System. Our opinions are 
not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of employer’s share of net pension liability 
and the schedule of employer’s contributions, as listed in the table of contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The schedules of expenses and 
the schedule of percentage change are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The schedule of expenses and the schedule of percentage change are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
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standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
23, 2017 on our consideration of Southwest Water Authority's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
Bismarck, North Dakota 

March 23, 2017
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As management of the Southwest Water Authority (the “Authority”), we offer readers of the 
Authority’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of 
the Authority for the fiscal years ended December 2016, 2015 and 2014.  We encourage readers 
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements 
and footnotes, which are presented within this report. Please note the 2015 financial statements 
were restated to properly reflect the June 30, 2015 actuary report for the retirement plan as 
disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

The assets of the Authority totaled $26,779,757 as of the end of the year 2016 compared with 
$26,457,240 as of the end of the year 2015 and $24,754,790 as of the end of the year 2014.  This 
is an increase in total assets of $322,517 between 2016 and 2015 and an increase in total assets 
of $1,702,450 between 2015 and 2014. The liabilities totaled $4,154,727 for 2016 compared with 
$3,313,182 for 2015 and $1,575,744 for 2014.  This is an increase in liabilities of $841,545 
between 2016 and 2015 and an increase in liabilities of $1,737,438 between 2015 and 2014. The 
assets exceeded liabilities at the end of the year 2016 by $23,413,095 compared with 
$23,221,174 at the end of the year 2015 and $23,179,046 at the end of the year 2014. This is an 
increase in net position of $191,921 between 2016 and 2015, and an increase in net position of 
$42,128 between 2015 and 2014. The deferred pension outflows totaled $944,467 for year-end 
2016 compared with $258,972 for year-end 2015. This is an increase in deferred pension outflows 
of $685,495 between 2016 and 2015. The deferred pension inflows totaled $156,402 for year-end 
2016 compared with $181,856 for year-end 2015. This is a decrease in deferred pension inflows 
of $25,454 between 2016 and 2015. 

Assets held at the American Trust Center total $18,583,567 at year-end 2016 compared with 
$17,214,849 at year-end 2015 and $14,803,008 at year-end 2014. The amount that is the 
Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance Fund is $16,634,830 year-end 2016 compared with 
$15,284,405 year-end 2015 and $13,169,194 at year-end 2014. This is an increase of $1,350,425 
between 2016 and 2015, and an increase of $2,115,211 between 2015 and 2014.  The North 
Dakota Legislature established the Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance Fund when the 
Southwest Pipeline Project was authorized. This fund was created to cover costs of an 
extraordinary nature and/or to replace parts of an aging distribution system. It is funded by water 
customers system wide.  The current rate is $.65 per 1,000 gallons sold to all customers. In 
addition, $.10 per 1,000 gallons sold to rural customers for the rural distribution system is also 
collected. The rate is $7.33 per 1,000 gallons sold to oil industry customers, and $5.14 per 1,000 
gallons sold to oil industry customers at the SWA Water Depot. The fees are deposited on a 
monthly basis into this fund. 

The amount in the Escrow Fund is $520,191 year-end 2016 compared with $519,292 year-end 
2015 and $508,819 at year-end 2014.  This is an increase of $899 between 2016 and 2015, and 
an increase of $10,473 between 2015 and 2014.  Of this amount $81,657 in 2016 compared to 
$201,657 in 2015 and $284,970 is restricted in 2014. This is a decrease of $120,000 between 
2016 and 2015 and a decrease of $83,313 between 2015 and 2014. These are the hookup fees 
paid by customers who sign up for water.  When water becomes available, the hookup fees are 
recognized as revenue. If however, the Authority is unable to serve these individuals, the hookup 
fees must be refunded. 

Total cash in bank as of the end of the year 2016 is $2,814,542 compared with $2,795,762 at the 
end of 2015 and $6,371,541 at the end of 2014. This is an increase of $18,780 between 2016 
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and 2015 and a decrease of $3,575,779 between 2015 and 2014. This is made up of checking 
and money market accounts. 

The liabilities total $4,154,727 for year-end 2016 compared with $3,313,182 for year-end 2015 
and $1,575,744 for yearend 2014.  This is an increase in liabilities of $841,545 between 2016 and 
2015, and an increase in liabilities of $1,737,438 between 2015 and 2014. Of this amount, 
$1,300,243 is current liabilities mostly in the form of accounts payable. This compares with 2015 
year-ending balance of $1,371,110 in current liabilities and year-ending balance of $1,140,419 in 
current liabilities for 2014. This is a decrease in current liabilities of $70,867 between 2016 and 
2015 and an increase in current liabilities of 230,691 between 2015 and 2014.  The long-term 
liabilities total $2,854,484 at year-end 2016 compared with $1,942,072 at year-end 2015 and 
$435,325 at year-end 2014.  Of this amount $2,652,647 is the net pension liability for year-end 
2016 and $1,650,142 for year-end 2015.  Net pension liability is not included in 2014.  Also 
included in long-term liabilities are unearned hookup fees and rental deposits from 
tenants/customers. Unearned hookup fees for year-end 2016 are $81,657, compared with 
$201,657 year-end 2015 and $284,970 year-end 2014.  Unearned hookup fees are held in escrow 
for customers who have signed up for water service with the Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP).  
When service becomes available, these funds will be released and will then be recognized as 
revenue.  If the SWPP is unable to provide water service, these hookup fees will be refunded to 
the individual.  Rental deposits from tenants/customers for year-end 2016 are $56,850, compared 
with $54,900 for year-end 2015 and $54,375 for year-end 2014. 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position shows a separate section for deferred pension 
outflows. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resource 
(expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred pension outflows represents actuarial differences 
within NDPERS pension plans as well as amounts paid to the plans after the measurement date.  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position shows a separate section for deferred
pension inflows. This separate financial statement element, deferred pension inflows, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of revenue until that time. Deferred pension inflows represents actuarial differences within 
NDPERS pension plans. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources 
in the period that the amounts become available.  

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic 
financial statements.  The Authority’s basic financial statements comprise four components: 1) 
Statement of Net Position 2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position, 
3) Statement of Cash Flows and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements.  This report also contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases 
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in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is 
improving or deteriorating. 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
2016 2015 2014*

ASSETS
Unrestricted current assets 4,664,999$     5,500,012$     6,768,435$     
Restricted noncurrent assets 16,634,829     15,284,405     13,169,194     
Capital assets 5,479,929       5,672,823       4,817,161       

Total Assets 26,779,757     26,457,240     24,754,790     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
  Deferred Pension Outfolws 944,467          258,972          -                      

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 1,300,243       1,371,110       1,140,419       
Long-term liabilities 2,854,484       1,942,072       435,325          

Total liabilities 4,154,727       3,313,182       1,575,744       

DEFERRED INFLOWS
  Deferred Pension Inflows 156,402          181,856          -                      

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,479,929       5,672,823       4,817,161       
Restricted net position 16,634,830     15,284,405     13,169,194     
Unrestricted net position 1,298,336       2,263,946       5,192,691       

Total Net Position 23,413,095$   23,221,174$   23,179,046$   

*The Authority implemented the new GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, which requires governmental agencies to report their proportionate share of pension
expense and liability. This statement was implemented into the 2015 financial statements. Prior
year financial statements were not restated, as detailed information is not available for prior years.
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents information 
showing how the entity’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in 
net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in 
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
2016 2015 2014*

Operating revenues:
Sales 14,631,863$  13,821,981$  15,114,385$
Hook up fee transfers 219,675 279,435 124,213
Other 4,706 179,756 88,919

Total operating revenues 14,856,244   14,281,172   15,327,517

Operating expenses:
Transmission 7,186,684     6,421,447     6,288,480     
Distribution 4,238,498     3,716,083     3,311,204     
Board of directors 201,881        234,303        190,159        
Administrative 938,451        897,043        788,328        
Easement acquisition 177,015        187,405        154,937        
Rural water sign-up 201,821        172,465        121,606        
Customer service 186,044        176,335        142,003        
Treatment 2,056,136     1,903,458     1,793,155     

Total operating expenses 15,186,530   13,708,539   12,789,872

Operating income/(loss) (330,286)       572,633        2,537,645     

Nonoperating revenue:
Property taxes 621,831        552,410        484,219        
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments (534,730)       (151,361)       441,703        
Investment income 435,106        510,665        412,788        

Total nonoperating revenue before contributions 522,207        911,714        1,338,710     

Change in net position 191,921        1,484,347     3,876,355     

Total net position - beginning of year 23,221,174   23,179,046   19,302,691
GASB 68 implementation adjustment -                  (1,442,219)    -                  

Total net position - beginning of year restated 23,221,174   21,736,827   19,302,691

Total net position - end of year 23,413,095$  23,221,174$  23,179,046$

*The Authority implemented the new GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, which requires governmental agencies to report their proportionate share of pension expense and
liability. This statement was implemented into the beginning 2015 financial statements. Prior year financial
statements were not restated, as detailed information is not available for prior years.
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Fund financial statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Authority uses fund accounting to 
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  The Authority has 
one fund, an enterprise fund.  The enterprise fund is for the Operations and Maintenance of the 
SWPP.  The main sources of revenue for this fund are from the sale of water and from a mill levy 
that is levied by the Authority in the amount of one mill in each of the twelve counties that are a 
part of the Authority.

The revenues from the sale of water for 2016 totaled $14,631,863 compared with $13,821,981 
for 2015 and $15,114,385 for 2014.  This is an increase in revenues of $809,882 between 2016 
and 2015 and a decrease in revenues of $1,292,404 between 2015 and 2014.  The net income/net 
losses by department for 2016 are transmission net loss of $439,298, distribution net loss of 
$92,519 and treatment net loss of $251,747.  This compares with net income/net loss for 2015 
are transmission net loss of $172,167, distribution net income of $100,939 and treatment a net 
loss of $173,756 and net income/net loss by department for 2014 of transmission net income of 
$652,209, distribution net income of $328,075 and treatment net loss of $25,370. 

The mill levy generated income of $621,831 for 2016 compared with $552,410 for 2015 and 
$484,219 for 2014.  This is an increase of $69,421 between 2016 and 2015 and an increase of 
$68,191 between 2015 and 2014. In 2016 the administration activities had a net income of 
$46,353 compared with a net income of $114,451 for 2015, and a net loss of $51,965 for 2014.  
Administration includes activities for the board of directors, administration, sign up and 
easements.

The actual revenues exceeded budget by 7% over projections.  The expenses were under budget 
by .01%. 

The Authority sold a total of 2,377,511,360 gallons of water in 2016 compared with 2,365,418,450 
gallons of water in 2015 and 2,380,427,270 gallons of water in 2014.  This is an increase of 
12,092,910 between 2016 and 2015 and a decrease of 15,008,820 between 2015 and 2014.  This 
is .57% over the projection for the year of 2,364,145,000 gallons for 2016. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all 
those with an interest in the Authority’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 
Chief Financial Officer, Southwest Water Authority, 4665 Second Street SW, Dickinson, ND 
58601-7231.  You can also contact the Authority online at swa@swwater.com or visit on the web 
at www.swwater.com.
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Restated
2016 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 714,675$        1,926,802$     
Investments 2,046,370 1,969,206
Receivables:

 Accounts (net of allowance of $3,189 and $1,670 1,169,744 970,316
in 2016 and 2015, respectively)

Interest 11,853 16,117
Prepaid expenses 50,183 40,939
Inventory 672,174 576,632

Total current assets 4,664,999       5,500,012       

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 142,502          167,473          
Investments 16,390,030 14,986,376
Interest receivable 102,297          130,556          

Capital Assets:
Land 109,255 109,196
Improvements, furniture and equipment, net 5,370,674 5,563,627

Total noncurrent assets 22,114,758     20,957,228     

Total Assets 26,779,757     26,457,240     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred Pension Outflows 944,467$        258,972$        

51



SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

SEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

- 10 - 

Restated
2016 2015

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 667,280$        750,146$        
Accrued salaries 259,757 300,609
Compensated absences, current portion 174,679          168,585          
Accrued expenses 127,275 128,253
Construction costs due SWWC 71,252            23,517            

Total current liabilities 1,300,243       1,371,110       

Long-term Liabilities
Compensated absences, net of current portion 63,330 35,373
Unearned hookup fees 81,657 201,657
Rental/customer deposits 56,850 54,900
Net pension liability 2,652,647       1,650,142       

Total long-term liabilities 2,854,484       1,942,072       

Total liabilities 4,154,727       3,313,182       

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred Pension Inflows 156,402          181,856          

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,479,929       5,672,823       
Restricted for replacement 16,634,830     15,284,405     
Unrestricted 1,298,336       2,263,946       

Total Net Position 23,413,095$   23,221,174$    

LIABILITIES
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Restated
2016 2015

Operating revenues:
Sales 14,631,863$    13,821,981$    
Hook up fee transfers 219,675 279,435
Other 4,706 179,756

Total operating revenues 14,856,244     14,281,172

Operating expenses:
Transmission 7,186,684       6,421,447
Distribution 4,238,498       3,716,083
Board of directors 201,881          234,303
Administrative 938,451          897,043
Easement acquisition 177,015          187,405
Rural water sign-up 201,821          172,465
Customer service 186,044          176,335
Treatment 2,056,136       1,903,458

Total operating expenses 15,186,530     13,708,539

Operating gain(loss) (330,286)         572,633

Nonoperating revenue:
Property taxes 621,831 552,410
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments (534,730)         (151,361)
Investment income 435,106 510,665

Total nonoperating revenue 522,207          911,714

Change in net position 191,921          1,484,347

Total net position - beginning of year 23,221,174     21,736,827

Total net position - end of year 23,413,095$    23,221,174$    
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Restated
2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers 13,847,046$    13,706,399$    
Receipts from others 4,706             179,756          
Payments to suppliers (10,546,748)    (8,133,538)      
Payments to employees (3,292,795)      (3,070,796)     

Cash provided (used) by operating activities 12,209            2,681,821      

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Property taxes revenue 621,831          552,410         

Cash flows used by capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (323,219)         (1,358,461)     

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of investments 14,146,713     6,897,162       
Purchases of investments (16,162,261)    (11,920,351)     
Investment income 467,629          449,801         

Cash provided (used) by investing activities   (1,547,919)      (4,573,388)     

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,237,098)      (2,697,618)      

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 2,094,275       4,791,893      

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 857,177$        2,094,275$      

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 714,675$        1,926,802$      
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 142,502          167,473         

Total cash and cash equivalents 857,177$        2,094,275$      

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Unrealized increase (decrease) in investments (534,730)$       (151,361)$       
Purchase of equipment with trade-in 2,768             22,610            
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Restated
2016 2015

Reconciliation of operating gain to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities
Operating income (loss) (330,286)$     572,633$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating gain  to
   net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 516,113         483,745        
Deferred outflows - pension (685,495)        (258,972)       
Deferred inflows - pension (25,454)          181,856        
Effects on operating cash flows due to changes in:

Accounts receivable (199,428)        (443)             
Prepaid expenses (9,244)            (15,277)         
Inventory (95,542)          (19,159)         
Accounts payable (35,131)          76,953          
Accrued salaries (40,852)          82,825          
Accrued expenses (978)              23,584          
Compensated absences 34,051           (13,278)         
Unearned hookup fees/rental/customer deposits (118,050)        (82,788)         
Net pension liability 1,002,505      1,650,142    

Total adjustments 342,495         2,109,188    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 12,209$         2,681,821$   
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principal Activity 

The Authority was created in 1991 by an Act of the North Dakota Legislature.  The Authority was 
established to provide for the supply and distribution of water from the Missouri River to the people 
of southwestern North Dakota through a pipeline transmission and delivery system.  The pipeline 
transmission and delivery system was constructed and is owned by the North Dakota State Water 
Commission.  The Authority is responsible for the operation and maintenance of the SWPP. The 
business and affairs of the Authority is managed by a Board of 15 directors elected in accordance 
to sections 61-24.5-06 through 61-24.5-09 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

On April 1, 2000, the Authority assumed the operational responsibilities of the Dickinson Water 
Treatment Plant.  Prior to this date, the City of Dickinson operated the facility and billed the 
Authority the cost of treating the water which the Authority sold.  The City of Dickinson retained 
the ownership of the facility.

Effective July 1, 2014, all water service contracts were amended in order to enforce the permit 
conditions on SWPP customers and to follow the North Dakota State Water Commission’s Water 
Supply Cost Share Policy of domestic water supply having priority over industrial water supply.  
The amendment included any community selling water for oil and gas be sold at the Authority oil 
industry rates.

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental 
units.  These financial statements represent the financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows of the Authority for fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. The more significant 
of the Authority's accounting policies are described below. 

Reporting Entity 

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units.  The decision to include a potential component unit in 
the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, 'The Financial Reporting Entity'.  Southwest Water 
Authority has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, 
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
Authority are such that exclusion would cause the Authority's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria 
to be considered in determining financial accountability.  These criteria include appointing a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body and (1) the ability of the Authority to impose its will 
on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits 
to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Authority.  Based upon the application of these 
criteria, the Authority is not includable as a component unit within another reporting entity and the 
Authority does not have a component unit. 

56



SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

- 15 - 

 Fund Accounting

The Authority uses fund accounting to report on its financial position and the results of its 
operations.  The activities of the various funds are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, net position, revenues and 
expenses. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial 
management by segregating transactions related to certain functions and activities. 

The following fund type is used by the Authority: 

Proprietary Fund Type 

The Proprietary Funds measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position, 
and changes in financial position.  These funds are used to account for activities that are similar 
to those found in the private sector.  They are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting.  The 
following is the Authority’s Proprietary Fund type: 

Enterprise Funds: account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises- where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis by financing or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Basis of Accounting 

The Authority follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB), which is the nationally accepted standard setting body for establishing accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental entities.  

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and 
reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and 
use the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of the 
related cash flows.  The accounting objective of this measurement focus is the determination of 
operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows.  
All assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activities are 
reported.  Proprietary Fund equity is classified as net position. Proprietary Funds distinguish 
operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Authority 
are water sales, hook up transfers and other income.  Operating expenses include transmission, 
distribution, board of directors, administrative, easement acquisition, rural water sign-up, 
customer service and treatment.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

57



SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

- 16 - 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy 
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Budgets - Legal Compliance 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  In July of each year the board of directors shall estimate and itemize 
all the administrative expenses and obligations of the Authority, including expenses of directors, 
expenses of operating the office, and any other obligations and liabilities relating to administrative, 
clerical, engineering, surveying, investigations, legal and other related expenses of the Authority.  
Upon the completion and adoption of such budget, the board of directors shall make a tax levy in 
the amount sufficient to meet such budget.  Such levy must be in the form of a resolution adopted 
by a majority vote of the members of the board of directors of the Authority.  Such resolution must 
levy in mills, but may not exceed one mill, and must be sufficient to meet the administrative, 
engineering, surveying, investigations, legal and related expenses, obligations, and liabilities of 
the Authority as provided in the budget.  Upon adoption to the mill levy by the board of directors, 
but no later than October 1, the secretary of the board shall send one certified copy of the mill 
levy to the county auditor of each county which is a member of the Authority.  The board shall 
also prepare and adopt an annual budget for operation, management, maintenance, and 
repayment of the Southwest Pipeline Project.  Revenues for operation, management, 
maintenance, and repayment of the Southwest Pipeline Project must come from water service 
contract revenues. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Authority considers all checking, savings, and 
certificates of deposit, with an original maturity of three months or less, to be cash equivalents. 

Investments

Investments are accounted for at fair value.  Fair value is “the amount that can reasonably be 
expected to be received for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing 
seller.”  Fair value was determined by reference to published market data.  Net increase 
(decrease) is determined by calculating the change in the fair value of investments between the 
end of the year and the beginning of the year, less purchases of investments at cost plus sales of 
investments at fair value.  This change is included in investment income for the year. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 72, 
Fair Value Measurement and Application, which addresses accounting and financial reporting 
issues related to fair value measurements. This statement provides guidance for determining fair 
value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This statement also provides guidance for 
applying fair value to certain investments and financial derivative instruments and disclosures 
related to all fair value measurements. The Authority’s implementation of this statement required 
no adjustment to prior periods; however it expanded the disclosure requirements for items carried 
at fair value. 
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Inventories and Prepaid Items 

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.   

Payments made to vendors for items or services for a future period beyond fiscal year end, are 
recorded as prepaid expenses. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical 
cost is not known.  Contributed assets are recorded at estimated fair value on the date received.  
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an 
asset are capitalized.  Costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. 

The Authority’s capitalization threshold (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are 
added to the capital asset accounts) is $1,500 and a useful life of at least three years. 

The Authority depreciates its buildings over a 40-year period and its equipment and furnishings 
over 3 to 10 years.  

Equity Classifications 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

� Net investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

� Restricted for replacement – A reserve fund for replacement and extraordinary 
maintenance of project works must be maintained.  The reserve is maintained in 
accordance with NDCC Section 61-24.5. 

� Unrestricted net position – All other net position that do not meet the definitions of 
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or “restricted for replacement.” 

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay 

Annual leave is a part of permanent employees’ compensation.  Employees are entitled to earn 
annual leave based on tenure of employment, within a range of a minimum of one working day 
per month of employment, to a maximum of two working days per month of employment, to be 
fixed by rules and regulations adopted by the employing unit.  No more than 240 hours of annual 
leave may be carried forward beyond December 31st of each year.  Employees are paid for 
unused annual leave upon termination or retirement.  Permanent employees are entitled to accrue 
sick leave in a range of eight to twelve hours per month with unlimited accumulation.  Employees 
with at least 10 years of employment are paid one-tenth of their accumulated sick leave when the 
employee terminates employment. 
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Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) and additions 
to/deductions from NDPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by NDPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

Unearned Hookup Fees 

The Authority reports unearned hookup fees on its balance sheet.  Unearned hookup fees arise 
when resources are received by the Authority before it has a legal claim to them, as when hookup 
fees are collected prior to service being provided to the member.  In subsequent periods, when 
the Authority has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned hookup fees is removed 
from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resource (expense/expenditures) until then.  The Authority has 
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category named Deferred Pension Outflows which 
represents actuarial differences within NDPERS pension plans as well as amounts paid to the 
plans after the measurement date. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents and acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The Authority has one type 
of item that qualifies for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, the item, Deferred Pension 
Inflows, represents actuarial differences within NDPERS pension plans.  This amount is deferred 
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Restatement

The December 31, 2015 financial statements were restated to properly reflect the pension related 
items using the NDPERS valuation as of June 30, 2015.    
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NOTE 2 DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk associated with the failure of a depository financial institution.  In 
the event of a depository financial institution’s failure the Authority would not be able to recover 
its deposits or collateralized securities that are in the possession of the outside parties.  The 
Authority does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk.  

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amounts of the Authority’s deposits were 
$2,537,177 and $2,774,275 respectively. The bank balances were $2,814,542 and $2,795,762 
respectively. The bank balance and deposits are collateralized and insured. 

NOTE 3 INVESTMENTS

The Authority has set up five investment accounts with a local trust company.  The escrow account 
represents hookup fees, which have been collected as deposits from future potential customers.  
The reserve account represents funds set aside for emergency situations.  The general fund 
operating account is set up for general fund operations.  The O&M account is set up for O&M 
operations. The Reserve Fund for Replacement represents funds set aside for the purpose of 
replacement and extraordinary maintenance of Project works.  The reserve for replacement 
account is restricted. 

The Authority invests in certificates of deposits, U.S. government securities and U.S. government 
backed securities. 

The total fair value of the investments as of December 31, 2016 $18,436,400 and its cost is 
$19,048,026.  The total fair value of the investments as of December 31, 2015 $16,955,582 and 
its cost is $17,032,479. 

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment.  The price of a debt security typically moves in the opposite 
direction of the change in interest rates.  The Authority does not have a formal investment policy 
that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to potential fair value losses 
arising from future changes in interest rates.
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At December 31, 2016, the following table shows the investments by investment type and 
maturity. 

At December 31, 2015, the following table shows the investments by investment type and 
maturity. 

Total Market Less than More Than
Investment Type Value 1 Year 1 - 6 Years 6 - 10 Years 10 Years

Corporate Bonds 893,940$        -$                494,500$       399,440$       -$                  
Government Bonds 14,881,045 1,443,240   5,080,333      6,627,627      1,729,846
Government Mortgage-Backed 2,384 -                  -                    -                    2,384             
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income (Ginnie Mae) 985,030 985,030      -                    -                    -                    
Certificates of Deposit 1,674,000 250,000      1,424,000      -                    -                    

Total Debt Securities 18,436,399$   2,678,270$ 6,998,833$    7,027,067$    1,732,230$    

 Investment Type 
 Total Market 

Value 
 Less Than 

1 Year  1-6 Years  6-10 Years 
More Than 10 

Years 

Government Bonds 15,082,760$   -$                8,280,105$    4,425,924$    2,376,731$    
Government Mortgage-Backed 450,199 -                  -                    -                    450,199
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income (Ginnie Mae) 741,582 741,582      -                    -                    -                    
Certificates of Deposit 681,041 -                  681,041         -                    -                    

Total Debt Securities 16,955,582$   741,582$    8,961,146$    4,425,924$    2,826,930$    
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations.  The Authority does not have an investment policy that specifically addresses credit 
risk.  The following table represents the Authority’s ratings as of December 31, 2016. 

The following table represents the Authority’s ratings as of December 31, 2015. 

Government
Total Corporate Government Mortgage Mutual Funds

S&P Market Value Bonds Bonds Backed (Ginnie Mae)

AAA 2,384$               -$                     -$                     2,384$            -$                 
AA+ 12,003,934        399,440           11,604,494      -                     -                   
NR 4,756,082          494,500           3,276,552        -                     985,030       

Total credit risk
Debt securities 16,762,400        893,940$         14,881,046$    2,384$            985,030$     

Investments not subject
to categorization:

Certificates of deposit 1,674,000          

Total debt securities 18,436,400$      

 Government 
Total Government Mortgage Mutual Funds

S&P Market Value Bonds Backed (Ginnie Mae)

AAA 450,199$           -$                 450,199$         -$               
AA+ 11,115,685        11,115,685      -                   -                 
A- 548,090             548,090           -                   -                 
NR 4,160,567          3,418,985        -                   741,582          

Total credit risk
Debt securities 16,274,541        15,082,760      450,199           741,582          

Investments not subject
to categorization:

Certificates of deposit 681,041             

Total debt securities 16,955,582$      
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NOTE 4 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources are grouped at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in 
which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine 
fair value. These levels are: 

Level 1: Valuation is based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

Level 2: Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, 
and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are 
observable in the market. 

Level 3: Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions 
not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect our own 
estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or 
liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash 
flow models and similar techniques. 

The following table below presents the balances of assets, deferred outflow of resources, and 
deferred inflow of resources measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2016. 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 
Markets 

 Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

 Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS

Corporate Bonds 893,940$           -$                    893,940$      -$                 
Government Bonds 14,881,046        -                      14,881,046   -                   
Government Mortgage-Backed 2,384                 -                      2,384            -                   
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 985,030             985,030          -                   -                   

985,030$        15,777,370$ -$                 

Investments not subject to categorization:
Certificates of deposit 1,674,000          

Total 18,436,400$      
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The following table below presents the balances of assets, deferred outflow of resources, and 
deferred inflow of resources measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2015. 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 
Markets 

 Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

 Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS
Government Bonds 15,082,760$      -$                    15,082,760$ -$                 
Government Mortgage-Backed 450,199             -                      450,199        -                   
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income 741,582             741,582          -                   -                   

Total 741,582$        15,532,959$ -$                 

Investments not subject to categorization:
Certificates of deposit 681,041

Total 16,955,582$      
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NOTE 5 LAND, STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT

The following is a summary of changes in land, structures and equipment for the years ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

Land, Structures and Equipment
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Balance - December 31, 2014 109,196$    

Additions -                  
Deletions -                 

Balance - December 31, 2015 109,196      
Additions 59               
Deletions -                 

Balance - December 31, 2016 109,255$   

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings, improvements and equipment
Balance - December 31, 2014 6,473,471$

Additions 1,381,071
Deletions (156,568)    

Balance - December 31, 2015 7,697,974
Additions 325,928      
Deletions (65,754)      

Balance - December 31, 2016 7,958,148$

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings, improvements and equipment
Balance - December 31, 2014 1,765,506$

Additions 483,746      
Deletions (114,906)    

Balance - December 31, 2015 2,134,346
Additions 516,113      
Deletions (62,985)      

Balance - December 31, 2016 2,587,474$

Land, structures and equipment, net 5,479,929$
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NOTE 6 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The Authority’s liability for accumulated unpaid leave as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was 
$238,009 and $203,958 respectively.  A summary of compensated absences follows: 

NOTE 7    DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (Main System)

The following brief description of NDPERS is provided for general information purposes only. 
Participants should refer to NDCC Chapter 54-52 for more complete information. 

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers 
substantially all employees of the State of North Dakota, its agencies and various participating 
political subdivisions. NDPERS provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to 
administer the plan is financed through the contributions and investment earnings of the plan. 

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS defined benefit pension plan is assigned to a 
Board comprised of seven members.  The Board consists of a Chairman, who is appointed by the 
Governor; one member appointed by the Attorney General; one member appointed by the State 
Health Officer; three members elected by the active membership of the NDPERS system; and 
one member elected by the retired public employees.  Effective July 1, 2015, the board was 
expanded to include two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the 
legislative management.

Pension Benefits

Benefits are set by statute.  NDPERS has no provisions or policies with respect to automatic and 
ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases.  Member of the Main System are entitled to unreduced 
monthly pension benefits beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service equal or 
exceed 85 (Rule of 85), or at normal retirement age (65).  For members hired on or after January 
1, 2016 the Rule of 85 will be replaced with the Rule of 90 with a minimum age of 60.  The monthly 
pension benefit is equal to 2.00% of their average monthly salary, using the highest 36 months 
out of the last 180 months of service, for each year of service.  The plan permits early retirement 
at ages 55-64 with three or more years of service. 

2016 2015

Balance - January 1 203,958$ 217,236$   

Additions 208,729   155,307     

Reductions (174,678) (168,585)

Balance - December 31 238,009$ 203,958$

Amounts Due Within One Year 174,679$ 168,585$
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Members may elect to receive the pension benefits in the form of a single life, joint and survivor, 
term-certain annuity, or partial lump sum with ongoing annuity.  Members may elect to receive 
the value of their accumulated contributions, plus interest, as a lump sum distribution upon 
retirement or termination, or they may elect to receive their benefits in the form of an annuity.  For 
each member electing an annuity, total payment will not be less than the members’ accumulated 
contributions plus interest. 

Death and Disability Benefits 

Death and disability benefits are set by statute.  If an active member dies with less than three 
years of service for the Main System, a death benefit equal to the value of the member’s 
accumulated contributions, plus interest, is paid to the member’s beneficiary.  If the member has 
earned more than three years of credited service for the Main System, the surviving spouse will 
be entitled to a single payment refund, life-time monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of 
the member’s accrued normal retirement benefit, or monthly payments in an amount equal to the 
member’s accrued 100% Joint and Survivor retirement benefit if the member had reached normal 
retirement age prior to date of death.  If the surviving spouse dies before the member’s 
accumulated pension benefits are paid, the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse’s 
designated beneficiary. 

Eligible members who become totally disabled after a minimum of 180 days of service, receive 
monthly disability benefits equal to 25% of their final average salary with a minimum benefit of 
$100.  To qualify under this section, the member has to become disabled during the period of 
eligible employment and apply for benefits within one year of termination.  The definition for 
disabled is set by the NDPERS in the North Dakota Administrative Code. 

Refunds of Member Account Balance 

Upon termination, if a member of the Main System is not vested (is not 65 or does not have three 
years of service), they will receive the accumulated member contributions and vested employer 
contributions, plus interest, or may elect to receive this amount at a later date.  If the member has 
vested, they have the option of applying for a refund or can remain as a terminated vested 
participant.  If a member terminated and withdrew their accumulated member contribution and is 
subsequently reemployed, they have the option of repurchasing their previous service. 

Member and Employer Contributions  

Member and employer contributions paid to NDPERS are set by statute and are established as a 
percent of salaries and wages.  Member contribution rates are 7% and employer contribution 
rates are 7.12% of covered compensation. 

The member’s account balance includes the vested employer contributions equal to the member’s 
contributions to an eligible deferred compensation plan. The minimum member contribution is $25 
and the maximum may not exceed the following: 

1 to 12 months of service – Greater of one percent of monthly salary or $25 
13 to 24 months of service – Greater of two percent of monthly salary or $25 
25 to 36 months of service – Greater of three percent of monthly salary or $25 
Longer than 36 months of service – Greater of four percent of monthly salary or $25 

68



SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

- 27 - 

 Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2016, the Southwest Water Authority reported a liability of $2,652,647 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 
30, 2016 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on the Authority’s share of covered payroll in the Main System pension plan relative to the 
covered payroll of all participating Main System employers.  At June 30, 2016, the Authority’s 
proportion was 0.272279 percent, which was an increase of 0.029605 percent from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2015.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Authority recognized pension expense of $412,061. 
At December 31, 2016 the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected   
and actual experience $ 39,863 (24,750)
Changes of assumptions 244,630 (131,832)
Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 370,219 __
Changes in proportion and 
differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 270,534 —
Employer contributions 
subsequent to the 
measurement date (see below)      19,221           —
      Total $ 944,467 ($156,402)

$19,221 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the 
Authority’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2017. 
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2017 $ 149,660
2018 149,660
2019 230,422
2020 168,756
2021 70,346

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2016 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation  3.50%  
Salary increases  4.50% per annum 
Investment rate of return  8.00%, net of investment expenses  
Cost-of-living adjustments  None  

For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality rates were based on the 
RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table set back two years for males and three years for 
females, projected generationally using the SSA 2014 Intermediate Cost scale from 2014.  For 
disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set back 
one year for males (no setback for females) multiplied by 125%.  

The actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
completed in 2015. They are the same as the assumptions used in the July 1, 2016, funding 
actuarial valuation for NDPERS.

As a result of the 2015 actuarial experience study, the NDPERS Board adopted several changes 
to the actuarial assumptions effective July 1, 2015.  This includes changes to the mortality tables, 
disability incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary scale, and percent 
married assumption. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class included in the Fund’s target asset allocation are summarized in the following table: 

70



SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

- 29 -

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Domestic Equity 31% 6.90% 
International Equity 21% 7.55% 
Private Equity  5% 11.30% 
Domestic Fixed Income 17% 1.52% 
International Fixed Income 5% 0.45% 
Global Real Assets 20% 5.38% 
Cash Equivalents 1% 0.00% 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8 percent as of 
June 30, 2016. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that 
member and employer contributions will be made at rates equal to those based on the July 1, 
2016, Actuarial Valuation Report. For this purpose, only employer contributions that are intended 
to fund benefits of current plan members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer 
contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan members and their 
beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from future plan members, are not included. 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members as of June 30, 
2016. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 
2016.

Sensitivity of the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in 
the discount rate. The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability calculated using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the Authority’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage-point lower (7 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9 percent) than the 
current rate: 

1% Decrease (7%) 
Current Discount 

Rate (8%) 1% Increase (9%) 
Authority’s
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability $3,764,115 $2,652,647 $1,717,978 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued NDPERS financial report. Requests to obtain or 
review this report should be addressed to Executive Director – NDPERS, P.O. Box 1657, 
Bismarck, North Dakota, 58502. 

NOTE 8    RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  Political 
subdivisions have joined together to form the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a 
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program 
for the state and over 2,000 political subdivisions.  All members joined to help capitalize the 
NDIRF.  The Authority pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its general insurance, personal 
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injury insurance, and inland marine insurance coverage.  The coverage by NDIRF is limited to 
losses of $2,000,000 per occurrence.  The Authority does participate in the North Dakota fire and 
tornado fund, state bonding fund, and the North Dakota Workforce Safety & Insurance workers’ 
compensation program. 

The Authority continues to carry insurance for all other risks of loss, including auto insurance, 
employee health and accident insurance, with coverage up to $2,000,000 per occurrence. 

Any settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the 
past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 9    RESTATEMENT

The Authority has adjusted its 2015 financial statements to reflect the changes from the June 30, 
2015 valuation report for the NDPERS retirement plan.  The effects of this adjustment was to 
decrease deferred pension outflows by $55,925, increase net pension liability by $218,636, 
decrease deferred pension inflows by $97,580, increase benefit expenses by $176,981 and 
decrease ending unrestricted net position by $176,981. 

NOTE 10 FUTURE GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS 

GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans, is to improve the usefulness of information about postemployment benefits other 
than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external 
financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing 
accountability.  This Statement is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2016. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments 
for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It 
also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial 
support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.  This Statement is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units and amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 14, amends the blending requirements for the financial statement 
presentation of component units of all state and local governments.  The additional criteria require 
blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary 
government is the sole corporate member.  The additional criterion does not apply to component 
units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to the provisions of Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organization Are Component Units.  The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.  Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, provides recognition and 
measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. 
This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable 
split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the 
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inception of the agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize 
assets representing its beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are 
administered by a third party, if the government controls the present service capacity of the 
beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a government recognize revenue when the 
resources become applicable to the reporting period. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and should be 
applied retroactively. Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 
73, provides further guidance regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in 
required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of 
deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, 
and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) 
contribution requirements. This Statement amends GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68 to 
require the presentation of covered payroll to be defined as the payroll on which contributions to 
a pension plan are based, rather than the payroll of employees that are provided with pensions 
through the pension plan. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of this Statement for the selection of 
assumptions in a circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date 
other than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for 
the selection of assumptions are effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which 
the measurement date of the pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, addresses accounting and 
financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). This Statement establishes 
criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and corresponding 
deferred outflow of resources for AROs. It also establishes disclosure of information about the 
nature of a government’s AROs, the methods and assumptions used for the estimates of the 
liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible capital assets. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. 
Earlier application is encouraged. 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, provides guidance regarding the identification of 
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should 
be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and 
local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling 
the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship 
exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment 
benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective 
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

Management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the Authority's 
financial statements. 
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*Complete data for this schedule is not available prior to 2015 

Employer’s 
proportion of 

the net 
pension 

liability (asset)

Employer’s 
proportionate 

share of the net 
pension liability 

(asset)

Employer’s 
covered-

employee 
payroll

Employer’s proportionate 
share of the net pension 

liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-

employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary 
net position as 
a percentage of 

the total 
pension liability 

2016 0.272279% 2,652,647$      2,743,931$ 96.67% 70.46%
2015 0.246740% 1,650,142        2,161,934   76.33% 77.15%

74



SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF THE EMPLOYER’S CONTRIBUTIONS 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS* 

- 33 - 

*Complete data for this schedule is not available prior to 2015 

Statutorily 
required 

contribution

Contributions in 
relation to the 

statutorily required 
contribution

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Employer’s 
covered-

employee 
payroll

Contributions as a 
percentage of 

covered-employee 
payroll

2016 198,656$        (196,491)$              2,165$       2,743,931   7.16%
2015 164,216          (175,694)               (11,478)      2,161,934   8.13%
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NOTE 1 NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Changes of assumptions

Amounts reported in 2016 reflect actuarial assumption changes effective July 1, 2015 based on 
the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2015. This includes changes to the 
mortality tables, disability incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary scale, 
and percent married assumption. 
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SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF PERCENTAGE CHANGE 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

- 37 - 

Percent
2016 2015 Change

Salaries 3,285,994$    3,140,343$    4.64%
Benefits 1,522,928      1,240,710      22.75%
Payroll taxes 247,052         228,285         8.22%
Professional fees 367,544         271,878         35.19%
Supplies 33,280           35,830           -7.12%

Utilities 1,337,380      1,314,178      1.77%
Repairs 1,178,423      708,627         66.30%
Travel 180,847         184,121         -1.78%
Telephone 51,622           48,981           5.39%

Capital repayment 4,952,365      4,753,499      4.18%
Insurance 77,125           54,545           41.40%
Maintenance 673,602         498,448         35.14%
Printing and promotion 119,475         123,602         -3.34%
Postage 48,386           44,370           9.05%

Dues and subscriptions 48,309           40,520           19.22%
Development and education 6,522             17,926           -63.62%
Water testing 20,152           20,474           -1.57%
Chemicals 489,020         469,058         4.26%

Bad Debts 3,347             5,486             -38.99%
Rent 6,000             6,000             0.00%
Depreciation 516,113         483,745         6.69%
Miscellaneous 21,044           17,913           17.48%

15,186,530$  13,708,539$  10.78%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors 
Southwest Water Authority 
Dickinson, North Dakota 

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
business-type activities of Southwest Water Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2017. 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Southwest Water 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Southwest Water Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Southwest Water Authority’s internal control.  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
AND CONSULTANTS 

www.bradymartz.com 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwest Water Authority’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
Bismarck, North Dakota 

March 23, 2017 
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III. POLICY TYPE: BOARD GOVERNANCE PROCESS

C. POLICY TITLE:  CHAIRPERSON’S ROLE

Adopted 10/4/99 - Amended 8/6/07; 4/7/14 

______________________________________________________________________________  
The work of the Chairperson is, primarily, the integrity of the Board’s process and, secondarily, occasional 

representation of the Board to outside parties.  The Chairperson is the only Board member authorized to speak 

for the Board (beyond simply reporting Board decisions), other than in rare and specifically authorized 

instances.  

1. The  work of the Chairperson is that the Board behavior is consistent with its own rules and

those legitimately imposed upon it from outside the organization.

A. Meeting discussion content will only be those issues which, according to Board policy,

clearly belong to the Board to decide, not the manager/Chief Executive Officer.

B. Deliberation will be fair, open, and thorough, but also efficient, timely, orderly, and

kept to the point.

C. Consistent with the Board stated commitment ground rules.

2. The authority of the Chairperson consists in making decisions that fall within the topics covered

by Board policies on Governance Process and Board-manager/Chief Executive Officer

Relationship, except where the Board specifically delegates portions of this authority to others.

The Chairperson is authorized to use any reasonable interpretation of the provisions in these

policies.

A. The Chairperson is empowered to chair Board meetings with all the commonly

accepted power of that position (e.g., ruling, recognizing).

B. The Chairperson has no authority to make decisions about policies created by the Board

within Aims/Ends and Executive Limitations policy areas. Therefore, the Chairperson

has no authority to supervise or direct the manager/Chief Executive Officer.

C. The Chairperson may represent the Board to outside parties in announcing Board-stated

positions and in stating Chair decisions and interpretations within the area delegated to

the Chair.

D. The Chairperson is accountable for all monitoring and reporting as assigned by the

Board.  The Chairperson may delegate and/or share the responsibility.

_____________________________________________________________________________  
MONITORING: 

Method: Board of Directors Internal Report 

Frequency: Annually 

Month:  April 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
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II. POLICY TYPE:  EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS
C. POLICY TITLE:  FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Adopted 10/4/99 - Amended 5/3/10; 1/5/17  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

With respect to the actual, ongoing condition of the organization’s financial health, the manager/Chief 
Executive Officer may not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy nor a material deviation of 
actual expenditures from Board priorities established in Aims/Ends policies.   

Accordingly the manager/Chief Executive Officer may not: 

1. Expend more funds than have been received unless four months of total operating 
reserves are in place.

2. Use any Long Term Reserves.

3. Use any Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance Fund Reserves.

4. Conduct inter-fund shifting in amounts greater than can be restored by otherwise 
unencumbered revenues within the fiscal year.

5. Allow cash to drop below the amount needed to settle payroll and debts in a timely 
manner.

6. Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be overdue or 
inaccurately filed.

7. Submit a deficit budget without also submitting a balanced budget. 

 ______________________________________________________________________________ 
MONITORING: 

Method: 
Frequency: 
Month:  

Manager/CEO Internal Report 
Quarterly  
January, April, July, October 

External Report (Audit 
Report) Annually  
April 

______________________________________________________________________________  
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II. POLICY TYPE: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS
C. POLICY TITLE:  FINANCIAL CONDITION

MONITORING: DECEMBER 2016 THROUGH FEBRUARY 2017 AND APRIL 2017  
With respect to the actual, ongoing condition of the organization’s financial health, the 
manager/Chief Executive Officer may not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy nor 
a material deviation of actual expenditures from Board priorities established in Aims/Ends 
policies.   

Accordingly the manager/Chief Executive Officer may not: 

1. Expend more funds than have been received unless four months of total operating
reserves are in place.

Income thru 2/28/17 - $2,077,414.04 

Expenses thru 2/28/16 - $2,279,838.92 

Net Income thru 2/28/17 - ($202,424.88)

Total Operating Reserves thru 2/28/17 - 2.51 months 

The Board approved ending the year with 2.64 months in reserve at the 

November 7, 2016, Board of Directors meeting.

2. Use any Long Term Reserves.
Only additions to reserves. List attached.

3. Use any Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance Fund Reserves.
No Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance Funds were used during this 

time.  As of March 28, 2017, the balance in the Replacement and Extraordinary 

Maintenance Fund is $16,971,397.30. 

4. Conduct inter-fund shifting in amounts greater than can be restored by otherwise
unencumbered revenues within the fiscal year.

No inter-fund transfers.

5. Allow cash to drop below the amount needed to settle payroll and debts in a timely
manner.

All payroll debts were settled without penalties or late fees.  

Attached list shows sufficient funds for payroll and debt payments.

6. Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be overdue or
inaccurately filed.

Attached is the schedule for tax filings. All payroll debts were settled without 

penalties or late fees.   

Worksheets, confirmation numbers and bank statements verifying filing date to 

meet IRS requirements are available at the O&M Center. 

According to IRS tax code, the due date for filing is three business days after the 

date of payroll. 

7. Submit a deficit budget without also submitting a balanced budget.
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The audit report is presented separately by Brady, Martz & Associates, P.C. at the April 3, 2017, 
Board of Directors meeting. Specific questions regarding the financial condition and health can 
be asked of Lance Rambousek, C.P.A. at the meeting.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                       3/28/2017               
Manager/Chief Executive Officer                        Date 
 
This information is current as of       3/28/2017        . 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
MONITORING:   

Method: Manager/CEO Internal Report          External Report (Audit Report) 

Frequency: Quarterly          Annually  

Month:        January, April, July, October      April  
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CASH MANAGEMENT 1Q17

PAYROLL O&M GENERAL FUND

BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE

AMOUNT OF  AFTER AMOUNT OF  AFTER AMOUNT OF  AFTER

DATE PAYMENT PAYMENT DATE PAYMENT PAYMENT DATE PAYMENT PAYMENT

01/03/17 $241,340.98 $130,385.22 01/05/17 $232,618.62 $50,339.31 01/03/17 $200.00 $7,928.04

01/04/17 $72,053.40 $58,331.82 01/06/17 $25,327.87 $52,813.44 01/09/17 $200.00 $42,351.00

01/05/17 $45,417.54 $12,914.28 01/09/17 $20,000.00 $157,602.51 01/11/17 $2,683.39 $80,031.24

01/10/17 $20,585.05 $12,529.23 01/10/17 $287.74 $167,252.43 01/13/17 $25,682.38 $91,328.99

01/11/17 $2,368.01 $10,161.22 01/13/17 $71,264.94 $409,369.59 01/23/17 $80.10 $96,847.55

01/12/17 $381.38 $12,709.50 01/17/17 $4,968.93 $576,336.35 01/30/17 $50,000.00 $51,406.55

01/27/17 $7,927.55 $4,781.95 01/20/17 $45.00 $752,351.24 01/31/17 $40,300.00 $11,107.21

01/23/17 $486,866.14 $291,754.57

02/01/17 $245,749.57 $126,032.38 01/24/17 $168.37 $295,623.98 02/06/17 $250.00 $48,368.32

02/05/17 $118,362.35 $9,075.15 01/26/17 $62.83 $306,149.79 02/07/17 $40.00 $51,065.32

02/10/17 $18,228.72 $9,146.43 01/27/17 $14,462.74 $296,155.32 02/08/17 $8,170.00 $51,321.36

02/13/17 $4,912.83 $4,233.60 01/30/17 $47.82 $301,039.39 02/09/17 $300.00 $105,492.76

02/15/17 $813.94 $9,308.43 01/31/17 $327,162.73 $36,279.07 02/10/17 $1,045.09 $111,929.68

02/13/17 $24,259.64 $103,615.54

03/01/17 $298,169.26 $74,959.83 02/03/17 $53,324.58 $411,405.42 02/15/17 $385.00 $103,230.54

03/06/17 $63,087.08 $13,277.87 02/06/17 $161,773.37 $279,127.81 02/24/17 $46,005.10 $87,185.93

03/10/17 $21,976.05 $11,901.82 02/08/17 $33,701.00 $280,266.50 02/28/17 $40,000.00 $55,916.67

03/15/17 $6,272.57 $11,952.84 02/09/17 $18,000.00 $378,343.00

03/24/17 $66.00 $11,886.84 02/10/17 $11,224.07 $677,427.98 03/03/17 $2,160.00 $127,699.1803/24/17 $66.00 $11,886.84 02/10/17 $11,224.07 $677,427.98 03/03/17 $2,160.00 $127,699.18

02/13/17 $62,439.37 $764,818.09 03/06/17 $278.00 $232,562.14

Total Payments $1,167,712.28 02/14/17 $126.59 $779,422.14 03/09/17 $400.00 $271,951.77

02/15/17 $500.83 $853,607.17 03/10/17 $2,305.03 $269,793.21

02/21/17 $501,554.63 $521,007.39 03/14/17 $7,012.50 $282,773.89

02/23/17 $548.69 $543,356.30 03/24/17 $32,513.30 $267,405.09

02/24/17 $3,964.90 $658,143.84

02/27/17 $45.00 $674,495.11 Total Payments $284,269.53

02/28/17 $324,334.73 $355,049.37
Total Payments 

Less Payroll 

Transfers $3,391,812.13

03/06/17 $185,572.53 $222,755.92

03/09/17 $20,200.00 $577,064.31

03/10/17 $50,849.43 $537,126.58

03/16/17 $192.62 $747,928.26

03/17/17 $14,584.53 $766,932.29

03/21/17 $449,350.02 $446,845.45

03/22/17 $40.32 $462,292.89

03/23/17 $52.90 $477,171.74

03/24/17 $31,878.76 $453,052.42

Total Payments $3,107,542.60
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GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS/FILINGS 1Q17

DATE DESCRIPTION

01/03/17 FTD FOR 01/03/17 PAYROLL

01/10/17 FTD FOR 01/10/17 PAYROLL

01/12/17 FTD FOR 01/12/17 BOD PAYROLL

01/31/17 QUARTERLY STATE W/H

01/31/17 QUARTERLY SUTA

01/31/17 QUARTERLY FEDERAL TAX

02/01/17 FTD FOR 02/01/17 PAYROLL

02/10/17 FTD FOR 02/10/17 PAYROLL

02/15/17 FTD FOR 02/15/17 BOD PAYROLL

03/01/17 FTD FOR 03/01/17 PAYROLL

03/10/17 FTD FOR 03/10/17 PAYROLL

03/15/17 FTD FOR 03/15/17 BOD PAYROLL
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Item #2.  Use any Long Term Reserves

Monitoring Period: December 2016 through February 2017

Bonds Called or Sold

CostAmountDate

Reserve Fund for Replacement$27.12$26.3512/15/16

Reserve Fund for Replacement$4,570.33$4,380.0312/20/16

Reserve Fund for Replacement$28.31$27.5001/17/17

Reserve Fund for Replacement$4,527.71$4,339.2301/20/17

Reserve Fund for Replacement$17.48$16.9802/15/17

Reserve Fund for Replacement$3,646.62$3,494.8102/21/17

$12,817.57$12,284.90

Bonds Purchased

AccountCostAmountDate

Reserve Fund for Replacement$400,000.00$400,000.0012/20/16

Reserve Fund$9,000.00$9,000.0012/23/16

General Fund$11,000.00$11,000.0012/23/16

Escrow Fund$12,000.00$12,000.0012/23/16

O&M Fund$5,000.00$5,000.0012/23/16

$437,000.00$437,000.00
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II.  POLICY TYPE:  EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS 

E.  POLICY TITLE:  ASSET PROTECTION 
Adopted 10/4/99 - Amended 1/7/08; 8/2/10 

______________________________________________________________________________  
The manager/Chief Executive Officer may not allow assets to be unprotected, inadequately maintained nor 
unnecessarily risked.   
Accordingly, the manager/Chief Executive Officer may not: 
 

1. Fail to insure against theft and casualty losses to at least 80 percent replacement value and 
against liability losses in the amount of $2 million to Board members, staff or the 
organization itself. 

 
 2. Allow non-bonded personnel access to material amounts of funds. 
 

3. Subject plant and equipment to improper wear and tear nor insufficient maintenance. 
 

4. Unnecessarily expose the organization, its Board or staff to claims of liability or loss. 
 

5. Make any unbudgeted purchase or commit the organization to any unbudgeted expenditure 
of greater than $5,000.00.   

 
 6. Make any purchase:  

A.  wherein normally prudent protection has not been given against conflict of 
interest 

B. of over  $2,500.00 without having obtained comparative prices and quality 
   C.  of over  $10,000.00 without a stringent method of assuring the balance of long 

term cost and quality 
D. without following North Dakota Century Code Chapter 44-08 

 
7. Receive, process or disburse funds under controls which are insufficient to meet the Board-

appointed auditor’s standards. 
 

8. Invest or hold operating capital except as directed by N.D.C.C. Chapter 21-04, 21-06-07. 
 
 9. Acquire, encumber or dispose of real property. 
 

10. Fail to work with suppliers in developing long-term relationships and involvement in new 
service development. 

 
 
 
 

 
______________________________________________________________________________   
MONITORING: 
 Method: Manager/CEO Internal Report 

 Frequency: Quarterly 

 Month:  January, April, July, October 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
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II.  POLICY TYPE: EXECUTIVE LIMITATIONS 
E.  POLICY TITLE:  ASSET PROTECTION 

MONITORING: DECEMBER 2016 THROUGH FEBRUARY 2017   
The manager/Chief Executive Officer may not allow assets to be unprotected, inadequately 
maintained nor unnecessarily risked.   
 
Accordingly, the manager/Chief Executive Officer may not: 
 

1. Fail to insure against theft and casualty losses to at least 80 percent replacement 
value and against liability losses in the amount of $2 million to Board members, 
staff or the organization itself. 

Property is insured at 90% replacement value. Liability losses are insured 

for $2 million for Board members, staff and SWA. Documentation is 

available at the SWA O&M Center Office. 
 

2. Allow non-bonded personnel access to material amounts of funds. 
All employees bonded through ND State Bonding Fund. Documentation is 

available at the SWA O&M Center Office. 
 

3. Subject plant and equipment to improper wear and tear nor insufficient 
maintenance. 

Planned maintenance per schedules at pump stations, O&M Center, 

and treatment plants.  Documentation is available at the SWA O&M 

Center Office, pump stations and water treatment plants.  
 

4. Unnecessarily expose the organization, its Board or staff to claims of liability or 
loss. 

There are no known claims of liability or loss. 
 

5. Make any unbudgeted purchase or commit the organization to any unbudgeted 
expenditure of greater than $5,000.   

All purchases within budget. Documentation is available at the SWA O&M 

Center Office. 
 

6. Make any one-item purchase:  
A.  wherein normally prudent protection has not been given against conflict 

of interest;  
B. of over $2,500 without having obtained comparative prices and quality; 
C. of over $10,000 without a stringent method of assuring the balance of 

long term cost and quality.  
D. without following North Dakota Century Code Chapter 44-08. 

 
Comparative pricing was used for the purchase of three trucks with trade-ins for O&M.  

Documentation is available at the SWA O&M Center Office. 
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7. Receive, process or disburse funds under controls which are insufficient to meet 
the Board-appointed auditor’s standards. 

Follow accounting manual approved by auditors. 
 

8. Invest or hold operating capital except as directed by North Dakota Century Code 
Chapter 21-04, 21-06-07.  

Investments through American Trust Center following Century Code.  

See attached listing of investments. STEP bonds start out with a certain rate.  
For example, a bond will start at a rate of 1.50%; it will pay that rate for 

two years, then STEP up to a rate of 1.75%, then up to 2.00%, then up to 

2.50%, etc. There are different starting rates and different step 

percentages on STEP bonds. The STEPS are generally every two years, 

but they can be anywhere from one to five years. This adds diversification 

in bonds when rates are so low. 

 
9. Acquire, encumber or dispose of real property. 

SWA has not acquired, encumbered or disposed of real property. 
 
10. Fail to work with suppliers in developing long-term relationships and involvement 

in new service development. 
SWA has long-term relationships with many suppliers including Border 

States Electric Supply, Dakota Supply Group, Ferguson Waterworks, 

Pitney Bowes Inc., R&R Auto, Farm & Electric, Inc. and Total Safety 

U.S.,Inc. SWA has new service developments in the form of service 

agreements with City Air Mechanical for the HVAC System at the OMND 

WTP; CO2 Systems for the CO2 System at the WTP in Dickinson; Trimble 

Navigation LTD for the vehicle tracking system and Presort Plus for 

sending the monthly billing.  

Documentation is available at the SWA O&M Center Office.  
 
 
 
 

 

                                                       3/28/2017               
Manager/Chief Executive Officer                        Date 
 
This information is current as of       3/28/2017        . 
 
  
MONITORING: 

Method: Manager/CEO Internal Report 

Frequency: Quarterly 

Month:        January, April, July, October  
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Southwest Water Authority Reserve Fund For Replacement 

Account#: 8053 Account Detail On: 02/28/2017 

Estimated 
Shares Unit Price Cost Market Value Annual Income Accrual 

Cash 

Cash 0.00 0.00 

Cash Equivalents 

CD· Other %, of Portfolio: 8.55% 

American Express Centurion Bk CD 2.20% Due 250,000.000000 1.0000 250,000.00 250,000.00 5,500.00 2,070.05 
10-14-20 

Bank of the Pacific (WA) CD 1.25% Due 05-24-21 250,000.000000 1.0000 250,000.00 250,000.00 3,125.00 1,609.59 

Capital One Bk USA NA 2.25% Due 10-28-20 200,000.000000 1.0000 200,000.00 200,000.00 4,500.00 1,520.60 

Discover Bk Ct! Dep Dtd 8-10-16 1.50% Mat 250,000.000000 97.3340 250,000.00 243,335.00 3,750.00 186.46 
08-10-21 

First Bank Charleston .60% Due 4-13-17 250,000.000000 1.0000 250,000.00 250,000.00 1,500.00 61.64 

Great Plains Bank CD 1.25% Due 06-16-21 250,000.000000 1.0000 250,000.00 250,000.00 3,125.00 1,007.40 

CD - Other Total 1,450,000.000000 1,450,000.00 1,443,335.00 21,500.00 6,455.74 

Money Market % of Portfolio: 2.36% 

Federal Trust 398,226.530000 1.0000 398,226.53 398,226.53 1,742.20 0.00 

Cash Equivalents Total 1,848,226.530000 1,848,226.53 1,841,561.53 23,242.20 6,455.74 

Fixed 

Bond - Corporate % of Portfolio: 5.29% 

Fed Farm Credit Bank 2.67% due 12/20/23 400,000.000000 99.9800 400,000.00 399,920.00 10,680.00 2,076.67 

Private Export FOG Corp (05/13) 2.05% Due 500,000.000000 98.4100 510,082.50 492,050.00 10,250.00 3,758.33 
11-15-22 

Bond - Corporate Total 900,000.000000 910,082.50 891,970.00 20,930.00 5,835.00 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Ex'l!nq:IIJ'ortfolio: 50.88% 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (03/17) 1.65% Due 500,000.000000 98.4600 500,000.00 492,300.00 8,250.00 4,102.21 
03-01-21 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (04/17) 1.40% Due 400,000.000000 98.7700 400,000.00 395,080.00 5,600.00 2,123.08 
04-13-20 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (07/17) 2.04% Due 650,000.000000 96.0300 650,000.00 624,195.00 13,260.00 1,758.23 
07-11-24 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (10/16) 1.75% Due 900,000.000000 97.3300 899,587.62 875,970.00 15,750.00 9,354.28 
07-19-22 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (3/17) 1.96% Due 3-29-22 1, 100,000.000000 98.5100 1,100,000.00 1,083,610.00 21,560.00 9,052.82 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (5/17) 2.00% Due 5-16-23 600,000.000000 97.3600 600,000.00 584,160.00 12,000.00 9,414.36 

Fed Farm Credit Bank 1.73% Due 11/09/22 500,000.000000 96.6000 500,000.00 483,000.00 8,650.00 2,652.35 

Fed Home Loan Bk (03/17) 2.125% Due 9-2-26 625,000.000000 93.2700 625,000.00 582,937.50 13,281.25 6,567.25 

Fed Home Loan Bk (06/17) 2.52% Due 06-15-26 750,000.000000 96.5400 750,000.00 724,050.00 18,900.00 3,894.23 

Fed Home Loan Bk STEP (03/17) 1.50% Due 450,000.000000 99.0300 449,561.26 445,635.00 6,750.00 2,792.47 
09-30-26 

Fed Home Loan Bk STEP (03/17) 1.75% Due 1,000,000.000000 96.2900 999,512.51 962,900.00 17,500.00 7,239.72 
09-30-26 

F,ad Home Loan Bk STEP (12/16) 1.50% Due 585,000.000000 98.1000 585,142.60 573,885.00 8,775.00 1,442.47 
06-30-26 

Govt Nat'I Mtg Assn CMO 4.00% Due 09-20-33 1, 173.860000 99.9680 1,224.85 1,173.48 46.95 1.03 

Page2 of5 
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Southwest Water Authority Reserve Fund For Replacement 

Account#: 8053 

Shares 

Fixed 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Ex'ijmptf'orlfolio: 50.88% 
Tennessee Valley Auth 2.875% Due 09-15-24 725,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Exempt) Total 8,786, 173.860000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxabl!I) of Portfolio: 28.59% 
Fed Agric MC 3.04% Due 06-01-18 650,000.000000 

Fed Agric MC 5.10% Due 01-27-25 500,000.000000 

Fed Agric MC 5.125% Due 04-19-17 1,300,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn (04/17) 1.45% Due 04-27-20 600,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn (09/17) 2.25% Due 09-21-28 
• 

750,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn STEP (04/17) 2.41% Due 600,000.000000 
04-28-31 

Housing URB Dev (08/19) 5.42% Due 08-01-28 358,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxable) Total 4,758,000.000000 

Mortgage Backed Security % of Portfolio: 

Govt Nat'I Mtg Assn CM0(12/01)7.00% Due 
12-15-29 

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income % of Portfolio: 

Vanguard GNMA Adm 

Capital Gain/Loss Summary 

Capital Gain Term 

Long Term 

0.01% 
2,078.970000 

4.32% 
68,299.157000 

Fixed Total 14,514,551.9870 ... 

Grand Total 16,362,778.5170 ... 

YTDAmount 

($341.60) 

Account Detail On: 02/28/2017 

Estimated 
Unit Price Cost Market Value Annual Income Accrual 

102.4900 787,018.45 743,052.50 20,843.75 10,090.48 

8,847,047.29 8,571,948.48 171,166.95 70,484.98 

102.1800 659,737.00 664,170.00 19,760.00 4,831.43 

117.5900 572,915.00 587,950.00 25,500.00 2,254.14 

100.5700 1,378,804.00 1,307,410.00 66,625.00 24,160.71 

98.8900 600,000.00 593,340.00 8,700.00 2,972.50 

92.8800 750,000.00 p96,600.00 16,875.00 7,453.13 

97.7700 599,137.84 586,620.00 14,250.00 4,815.25 

106.7000 418,860.00 381,986.00 19,403.60 1,447.23 

4,979,453.84 4,818,076.00 171,113.60 47,934.39 

112.1500 2,140.05 2,331.56 145.53 5.18 

10.5400 743,803.78 719,873.11 16,870.74 0.00 

15,482,527.46 15,004,199.15 380,226.82 124,259.55 

17,330,753.99 16,845,760.68 403,469.02 130,715.29 

Reported gains are based on settlement date to coincide with your transaction statement. 
For complete tax infonnation, including trade details, contact your account administrator. 
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Southwest Water Authority - Reserve Fund 

Account#: 8052 Account Detail On: 02/28/2017 

Estimated 
Shares Unit Price Cost Market Value Annual Income Accrual 

Cash 

Cash 0.00 0.00 

Cash Equivalents 

CD - Other % of Portfolio: 14.80% 

American Express Centurion Bk CD 2.20% Due 25,000.000000 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00 550.00 207.01 
10-14-20 

Capital One Bk USA NA 2.25% Due 10-28-20 25,000.000000 1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00 562.50 190.08 

CD - Other Total 50,000.000000 50,000.00 50,000.00 1,112.50 397.09 

Money Market % of Portfolio: 0.36% 

Fetleral Trust 1,225.510000 ' 1.0000 1,225.51 1,225.51 5.36 0.00 

Cash Equivalents Total 51,225.510000 

Fixed 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Ex'iimptportfolio: 54.07% 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (04/17) 1.92% Due 30,000.000000 
04-19-22 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (07/17) 2.04% Due 70,000.000000 
07-11-24 

Fed Home Loan Bk (03/17) 2.125% Due 9-2-26 25,000.000000 

Fed Home Loan Bk (06/17) 2.52% Due 06-15-26 35,000.000000 

Fed Home Loan Bk STEP (03/17) 1.75% Due 30,000.000000 
09-30-26 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Exempt) Total 190,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxabl!j) of Portfolio: 14.56% 

Fed Nat'! Mtg Assn (04/17) 1.45% Due 04-27-20 25,000.000000 

Fed Nat'! Mtg Assn STEP (04/17) 2.41 % Due 25,000.000000 
04-28-31 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxable) Total 50,000.000000 

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income% of Portfolio: 16.21% 

Vanguard GNMA Adm 5,194.102000 

Fixed Total 245, 194.102000 

Grand Total 296,419.612000 

Capital Gain/Loss Summary 

Capital Gain Term YTDAmount 

51,225.51 51,225.51 1,117.86 397.09 

98.2300 30,000.00 29,469.00 576.00 208.88 

96.0300 70,000.00 67,221.00 1,428.00 189.35 

93.2700 25,000.00 23,317.50 531.25 262.69 

96.5400 35,000.00 33,789.00 882.00 181.73 

96.2900 29,985.38 28,887.00 525.00 217.19 

189,985.38 182,683.50 3,942.25 1,059.84 

98.8900 25,000.00 24,722.50 362.50 123.85 

97.7700 24,964.08 24,442.50 593.75 200.64 

49,964.08 49,165.00 956.25 324.49 

10.5400 56,151.43 54,745.87 1,283.00 0.00 

296,100.89 286,594.37 6,181.50 1,384.33 

347,326.40 337,819.88 7,299.36 1,781.42 

Reported gains are based on settlement date to coincide with your transaction statement. 
For complete tax information, including trade details, contact your account administrator. 
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Southwest Water Authority - General Fund 

Account#: 8051 

Shares 

Cash 

Cash 

Cash Equivalents 

CD-Other % of Portfolio: 16.92% 

American Express Centurion Bk CO 2.20% Due 75,000.000000 
10-14-20 

Capital One Bk USA NA 2.25% Due 10-28-20 25,000.000000 

CD -Other Total 100,000.000000 

Money Market % of Portfolio: 0.41% 
Federal Trust 2,407.820000 

Cash Equivalents Total 102,407.820000 

Fixed 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Exlmlptportfolio: 30.41% 
Fed Farm Credit Bank (07/17) 2.04% Due 70,000.000000 
07-11-24 

Fed Home Loan Bk (03/17) 2.125% Due 9-2-26 25,000.000000 

Fed Home Loan Bk (06/17) 2.52% Due 06-15-26 15,000.000000 

Fed Home Loan Bk STEP (12/16) 1.50% Due 50,000.000000 
06-30-26 

Tennessee Valley Auth 2.875% Due 09-15-24 25,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Exempt) Total 185,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxabl~ of Portfolio: 37.22% 
Fed Agric MC 5.10% Due 01-27-25 30,000.000000 

Fed Agric MC 5.125% Due 04-19-17 125,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn (04/17) 1.45% Due 04-27-20 30,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn STEP (04/17) 2.41% Due 30,000.000000 
04-28-31 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxable) Total 215,000.000000 

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income% of Portfolio: 15.04% 

Vanguard GNMA Adm 8,438.644000 

Fixed Total 408,438.644000 

Grand Total 510,846.464000 

Capital Gain/Loss Summary 

Capital Gain Term YTDAmount 

Account Detail On: 02/28/2017 

Estimated 
Unit Price Cost Market Value Annual Income Accrual 

0.00 0.00 

1.0000 75,000.00 75,000.00 1,650.00 621.02 

1.0000 25,000.00 25,000.00 562.50 190.08 

100,000.00 100,000.00 2,212.50 811.10 

1.0000 2,407.82 2,407.82 10.53 0.00 

102,407.82 102,407.82 2,223.03 811.10 

96.0300 70,000.00 67,221.00 1,428.00 189.35 

93.2700 25,000.00 23,317.50 531.25 262.69 

96.5400 15,000.00 14,481.00 378.00 77.88 

98.1000 50,012.19 49,050.00 750.00 123.29 

102.4900 27,138.57 25,622.50 718.75 347.95 

187,150.76 179,692.00 3,806.00 1,001.16 

117.5900 34,374.90 35,277.00 1,530.00 135.25 

100.5700 132,635.00 125,712.50 6,406.25 2,323.15 

98.8900 30,000.00 29,667.00 435.00 148.63 

97.7700 29,956.90 29,331.00 712.50 240.76 

226,966.80 219,987.50 9,083.75 2,847.79 

10.5400 91,495.43 88,943.32 2,084.41 0.00 

505,612.99 488,622.82 14,974.16 3,848.95 

608,020.81 591,030.64 17,197.19 4,660.05 

Reported gains are based on settlement date to coincide with your transaction statement. 
For complete tax information, including trade details, contact your account administrator. 
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Southwest Water Authority - Escrow Fund 

Account#: 8050 

Shares 

Cash 

Cash 

Cash Equivalents 

CD - Other % of Portfolio: 5.75% 

Capital One Bk USA NA 2.25% Due 10-28-20 30,000.000000 

Money Market % of Portfolio: 0.36% 

Federal Trust 1,882. 790000 

Cash Equivalents Total 31,882.790000 

Fixed 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Ex!!mptporlfolio: 36.05% 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (04/17) 1.92% Due 30,000.000000 
04-19-22 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (07/17) 2.04% Due 60,000.000000 
07-11-24 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (09/16) 1.78% Due 30,000.000000 
12-13-21 

Fed Home Loan Bk (03117) 2.125% Due 9-2-26 25,000.000000 

Fed Home Loan Bk (06/17) 2.52% Due 06-15-26 50,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Exempt) Total 195,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxabl~ of Portfolio: 38.01% 

Fed Agric MC 5.10% Due 01-27-25 20,000.000000 

Fed Agric MC 5.125% Due 04-19-17 125,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn (04/17) 1.45% Due 04-27-20 20,000.000000 

Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn STEP (04/17) 2.41% Due 30,000.000000 
04-28-31 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxable) Total 195,000.000000 

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income % of Portfolio: 19.83% 

Vanguard GNMA Adm 9,827.250000 

Fixed Total 399,827.250000 

Grand Total 431,710.040000 

Capital Gain/Loss Summary 

Capital Gain Term YTDAmount 

Account Detail On: 02/28/2017 

Estimated 
Unit Price Cost Market Value Annual Income Accrual 

0.00 0.00 

1.0000 30,000.00 30,000.00 675.00 228.09 

1.0000 1,882.79 1,882.79 8.24 0.00 

31,882.79 31,882.79 683.24 228.09 

98.2300 30,000.00 29,469.00 576.00 208.88 

96.0300 60,000.00 57,618.00 1,224.00 162.30 

98.0900 30,000.00 29,427.00 534.00 375.56 

93.2700 25,000.00 23,317.50 531.25 262.69 

96.5400 50,000.00 48,270.00 1,260.00 259.62 

195,000.00 188,101.50 4,125.25 1,269.05 

117.5900 22,916.60 23,518.00 1,020.00 90.17 

100.5700 132,635.00 125,712.50 6,406.25 2,323.15 

98.8900 20,000.00 19,778.00 290.00 99.08 

97.7700 29,956.90 29,331.00 712.50 240.76 

205,508.50 198,339.50 8,428.75 2,753.16 

10.5400 106,715.20 103,579.22 2,427.48 0.00 

507,223.70 490,020.22 14,981.48 4,022.21 

539,106.49 521,903.01 15,664.72 4,250.30 

Reported gains are based on settlement date to coincide with your transaction statement. 
For complete tax information, including trade details, contact your account administrator. 
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Southwest Water Authority Operation & Maintenance Fund 

Account#: 8054 

Shares 

Cash 

Cash 

Cash Equivalents 

CD - Other % of Portfolio: 8.17% 

American Express Centurion Bk CD 2.20% Due 50,000.000000 
10-14-20 

Money Market % of Portfolio: 0.27% 

Federal Trust 1,645.160000 

Cash Equivalents Total 51,645.160000 

Fixed 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Ex!!nql!J'ortfolio: 55.57% 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (03/17) 1.65% Due 100,000.000000 
03-01-21 

Fed Farm Credit Bank (07/17) 2.04% Due 100,000.000000 
07-11-24 

Fed Home Loan Bk (06/17) 2.52% Due 06-15-26 50,000.000000 

Fed Home Loan Bk STEP (03/17) 1.75% Due 50,000.000000 
09-30-26 

Fed Home Loan Bk STEP (12/16) 1.50% Due 50,000.000000 
06-30-26 

Bond - US Govt (State Tax Exempt) Total 350,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxabl~ of Portfolio: 32.44% 
Fed Nat'I Mtg Assn STEP (04/17) 2.41 % Due 100,000.000000 
04-28-31 

Fed Natl Mtg Assn (6/14) 1.625% Due 11-27-18 100,000.000000 

Bond - US Govt (State Taxable) Total 200,000.000000 

Mutual Funds - Fixed Income % of Portfolio: 3.55% 

Vanguard GNMA Adm 2,064.915000 

Fixed Total 552,064.915000 

Grand Total 603,710.075000 

Capital Gain/Loss Summary 

Capital Gain Term YTDAmount 

Account Detail On: 02/28/2017 

Estimated 
Unit Price Cost Market Value Annual Income Accrual 

0.00 0.00 

1.0000 50,000.00 50,000.00 1,100.00 414.01 

1.0000 1,645.16 1,645.16 7.20 0.00 

51,645.16 51,645.16 1,107.20 414.01 

98.4600 100,000.00 98,460.00 1,650.00 820.44 

96.0300 100,000.00 96,030.00 2,040.00 270.50 

96.5400 50,000.00 48,270.00 1,260.00 259.62 

96.2900 49,975.63 48,145.00 875.00 361.99 

98.1000 50,012.19 49,050.00 750.00 123.29 

349,987.82 339,955.00 6,575.00 1,835.84 

97.7700 99,856.31 97,770.00 2,375.00 802.54 

100.6700 100,313.04 100,670.00 1,625.00 1,155.56 

200,169.35 198,440.00 4,000.00 1,958.10 

10.5400 22,091.48 21,764.22 510.06 0.00 

572,248.65 560,159.22 11,085.06 3,793.94 

623,893.81 611,804.38 12,192.26 4,207.95 

Reported gains are based on settlement date to coincide with your transaction statement. 
For complete tax information, including trade details, contact your account administrator. 
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Resolution of Appreciation  

 
 

________________________________________ 
Larry Bares, Chairman 

Southwest Water Authority 
 

___________________________________ 
Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
Southwest Water Authority 

 

  
 

     Al Hecker 
Be it resolved by the Board of Directors of Southwest Water Authority: 

 
 

WHEREAS, in 1991 Southwest Water Authority was created to provide operation, maintenance and management of the 
Southwest Pipeline Project; and 

WHEREAS, Al Hecker has assisted in providing quality water to the many citizens and communities of southwest North Dakota; 
and  

WHEREAS, Al Hecker began his career with Southwest Water Authority as a water distribution operator on March 18, 1996, 
and was served as Assistant Chief Water Distribution Operator since September 24, 2001; and   

WHEREAS, Al Hecker’s skill and knowledge in operating and maintaining the water distribution system for Southwest Water 
Authority has been an asset; and  

WHEREAS, the citizens of southwest North Dakota are very fortunate to have Al Hecker as a water distribution system operator 
for 21 years; and 

THEREFORE, be it resolved, that this third day of April, 2017, Al Hecker be duly recognized for his service to Southwest Water 
Authority and the Southwest Pipeline Project in the overall mission of quality water for southwest North Dakota; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Southwest Water Authority Board of Directors, Management and Staff do wish Al 
Hecker and his family the best of health and happiness in their future endeavors.      

  

....... .&.....SOl;THWl::SJ' WATEH ~..A..., AurHORTTY 

~ 

98



 

 

I. Summary – Board Retreat 2015 
 

As part of an effort to establish a future direction of Southwest Water Authority (SWA) and the Southwest 
Pipeline Project (SWPP), SWA hosted a strategic planning retreat at the Ramada Grand Dakota Lodge in 
Dickinson, ND, on November 2 and 3, 2015. The retreat was facilitated by Joe Bichler, P.E., Bartlett & West 
Executive Vice President.  

 
 
 

Board Participants:  Consultants: 
 Larry Bares 
 Jim Odermann 
 Steven Schneider 
 Gene Allen 
 Duane Bueligen 
 Jonathon Eaton 
 Glenn Eckelberg 
 Marie Johnson 
 Bob Leingang 
 Brian Roth 
 George Saxowsky 
 Rick Seifert 
 Larry Stang 

 

 Tim Frejie, State Water Commission 
 Sindhu S. Pillai-Grindolds, State Water Commission 
 Jim Lennington, Bartlett & West 
 Melanie Goetz, Hughes & Stuart 
 Jack Dwyer, Dwyer Law 
 Mike Dwyer, Dwyer Law 

 
  Staff: 

 Sandy Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator 
 Misti Conzemius, Marketing Manager 
 Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
 Lee Messer, Water Distribution Manager 
 Grace Rixen-Handford, Water Treatment Plant Manager 
 Jen Murray, Executive Assistant 
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II. SWOT Analysis 
 

A pre-retreat assignment was given to each participant. This was done strictly as a time-saving measure as 
requested by the Board of Directors. Each was asked to identify Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and 
Threats faced by the SWPP and SWA. Each idea was compiled into a document which grouped the most 
common ideas expressed into themes. At the retreat, participants were asked for their reaction to the common 
themes, any additional input, and to vote on their top three themes from each of the four categories. The 
results of voting below.  

 
SWOT COMMON THEMES 

Strengths votes Weaknesses votes Opportunities votes Threats votes 

Staff and Employees  17 Funding/Financials 22 Pursue System 
Growth 20 Future 

Funding 22 

Board of Directors 9 Relationships/ 
Partnerships 18 Funding Access 9 Staff and 

Employees 6 

Relationships/ 
Partnerships 8 Staff and Employees 2 

Continuous 
Improvement of 
Processes/ 
Equipment 

11 Transfer of 
Ownership 16 

Quality Water 14 Too Many 
Construction Projects 6 

Proactive 
Communication 
and Messaging 

15 Legislature 15 

Funding/Financials 5 System Growth and 
Capacity 21 Ownership 10 Rising Costs 13 

Ownership/Structure 16 Additional Weaknesses 0 Financials 3 
Economic 
Development 
Implications 

2 

Project Success 5   Additional 
Opportunities 2 Water/ 

Quality 0 

Additional Strengths 1     Additional 
Threats 0 

 
Top voted themes were then grouped for retreat participants to reflect on and vision for the year 2025. 

  
SWOT Headlines: 
Staff and Employees 
System Growth 
Future Funding 
Ownership 
Continuous Improvement 
Proactive Communication 
Relationships/Partnerships 
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III. Visioning 
 

A visioning session allowed participants to express their ideas of what the future of SWPP/SWA would look 
like in relation to the top voted on themes from the SWOT analysis. After discussion, the group’s visions 
were grouped into five priorities:  

A) Ownership of SWPP 
B) Providing Capacity and Serving the Entire 12-County Area 
C) Education and Communication 
D) Future Funding of SWPP, Mill Levy, and REM Funds 
E) Sustaining a Well-Trained SWA Staff and Being Financially Sound 

 
IV. Gap Analysis 

 
Retreat participants discussed thoughts on what it will take to close gaps from where SWPP/SWA is at today 
and where SWPP/SWA wants to be in the future. The group was asked to focus on “What Does Success 
Look Like in 2025” for each of the priorities and “What Will it Take to Get There?”  The main points of 
discussion were captured and displayed below.  
 

What does Success Look Like in 2025?  
A) Ownership of the SWPP 

 
  Plan to keep the SWPP/SWA State owned 
  Plan to transfer ownership of the SWPP to SWA 
  MWWS merge with SWPP/SWA 
 
What Will it Take to Get There? 
 

 

 Develop a plan to keep the SWPP/SWA 
State owned 

 Develop contingency plan to transfer 
ownership of the SWPP from SWC to SWA 

 Need to understand risks and opportunities 
o What do legislators want? 

 It’s about service to our customers 
 Locally owned might help with legislators 
 Talks with MWWS about merging with 

SWPP/SWA  
o Request must come from MWWS 

 Either way we need their support 
 
 
 
 
 

 Transferring ownership may include: 
o Change of legislative laws 

 SWA’s ability to obtain ‘quick-take’ 
 New legislation would be needed 

o Amend all Contracts/Agreements 
o Amend all permits 

 DOT, Water permits, BNSF, Fish and 
Wildlife Service, National Park Service, 
etc.  

o Amend all easements 
o WAPA/Federal agencies 

 Would SWA qualify for federal power? 
o Capital Repayment to SWA 
o Who will pay for the transfer work? 

 SWA to stay neutral on taking a position 
 SWA’s organizational structure would allow for a 

transfer of ownership 
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What does Success Look Like in 2025?  
B) Education and Communication 

                           Have a focused education plan and procedures 
                           High level advocacy 
                           Focus on protecting water supply 
                           SWA employees openly discuss issues (internally and with Board) 
                           Trusted/High level relationship with the City of Dickinson, communities, consumers, 
                                        stakeholders, and all 12 counties 
 
 

                                                                              
What Will it Take to Get There? 
 

 Develop key messages to our legislators 
o Keep it simple – an example may be to 

refer to Capital Repayment as perpetual 
payment to the state of North Dakota  

 Need champions in legislature 
 Enhance our communications to overcome 

negative perceptions statewide 
o Start with legislators and state agencies 

 Schedule and hold meetings with key legislators 
and targeted communities, county commissioners, 
water resource boards 

 Need to encourage SWA employees to have open 
discussions internally and with the Board 

 Continual collaboration and communication with 
City of Dickinson, other communities, 
stakeholders and 12 counties 

 Build trust with rural customers and communities 
to build advocacy 

 Educate agricultural sprayers on water quality  
 Develop and continually repeat our message “Our 

History and Repayment Plan”  
 Develop simple message with three or four 

talking points 
 

 Information available 
o Financials/Audit Information 
o Project Maps 

 Show how much the SWPP has paid back to 
North Dakota 

 Total paid back to date communicated to the 
Board each month 

 Show “the growth” and how quality water has 
sustained it (i.e., Dickinson) 

 Need a ‘champion’ of champions 
o SWA Board of Directors and 

Management 
 Share questions from constituents at the Board 

meetings and have discussions 
o Include this on agenda each month 

 Develop new FAQ’s 
o Target five or six points 

 Use as living documents 
 Be the “initiator” of the conversation with 

legislators 
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What does Success Look Like in 2025? 
C) Providing Capacity and Serving the Entire 12-County Area 

                      Serving unmet pocket areas and (pocket) areas at capacity 
                      Saturate entire area with water service 
                      Bowman will be served 
                      Serve concentrated agricultural areas 
                      Meeting new water needs 
                      Building in redundancy and resiliency into infrastructure (post construction plan) 
                      Serve Mahto Bay (Fort Berthold), Dunn County 
                      ‘Regional Concepts’-What is in the best interest of North Dakota (i.e., Bowman, Beulah…)  
                       
  
What Will it Take to Get There? 
 

 

 Develop a plan to serve unmet areas 
 Get the “right message/information” out 
 Develop plan to provide more capacity to 

areas currently at capacity 
 Initiate discussion with Bowman  
 Compare costs of Beulah getting water from 

the SWPP or building their own infrastructure 
 Identify new water needs/end users 

o Agricultural sprayers for example 
 Identify aging infrastructure and plan for 

replacement of said infrastructure 
 Develop plan to build in redundancy and 

robustness into infrastructure 
 Be more flexible in construction planning 

o Plan and adapt 
 Identify local trusted advocates 

o Communities 
o Individuals 

 

 Continue talks on providing service to Mahto Bay 
o Develop a plan 
o Talk to who? (Dwyer to talk to Mark Fox) 
o Identify advocates 

 Long term plan for the SWPP (10-15 years) 
o Develop a comprehensive long-range plan 
o Recanvas areas 
o Plan must be fluid 
o Meet financial criteria 
o Must be reasonable (operations and related  

expenses) 
 Who else to partner with 

o REC’s 
o Water resource districts 
o Joint water boards 
o Commodity organizations 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103



What does Success Look Like in 2025? 
D) Future Funding of SWPP, Mill Levy, and REM Funds 

 
                   Make mill levy permanent 
                   SWPP funded 
                   Adequate REM funding to keep up with an aging infrastructure (plan) 

 
  

What Will it Take to Get There? 
 

 

 Develop a plan to make mill levy permanent 
 Develop a funding plan of SWPP over next 10 years (5 Bienniums) 

o 2015-2017 - $55 M plus $10 M 
o 2017-2019 - $80 M plus 
o Next three bienniums - $10 M each 

 Study REM funds and funding for replacement plan 
o Fund the replacement of the Water Treatment Plant in Dickinson 
o Other Project needs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

What does Success Look Like in 2025?  
E) Sustaining a Well-Trained SWA Staff and Being Financially Sound 

 
                  Have a continual focused plan for the proper number of well-trained staff with competitive  
                             compensation and benefits 
                  Water rates at/or below the state (rural) average defined as monthly bill using 6,000 gallons 

 
What Will it Take to Get There? 
  

 Encourage open communication 
 Review and identify training opportunities 
 Study compensation and benefits 
 Keep employees informed 
 Study succession planning of key staff 
 Study water rates and operational impacts to SWA 
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• Population served is ~56,000 

• Over 6,800 rural customers 

• 33 communities 

• 23 contract customers 

• 2 additional rural water systems 

• 21 raw water customers 

• 3 crew camps 

• 2 raw water depots 

• Water sales for 2016 were 2.4 billion gallons 

• Water sales for 2017 projected at 2.6 billion gallons 

• Water revenue for 2016 was $14.6 million 

• Water revenue for 2017 projected at $14.9 million 

• 2 water treatment plants 

• 1 water treatment plant under construction 

• 53 employees 

March 2017 www.swwater.com  

 Installation of main transmission pipeline 

105



 

Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
Southwest Water Authority 
mmassad@swwater.com 

 
4665 Second Street SW 

Dickinson, ND 58601-7231 
 

Phone: 701-225-0241 
Toll-Free: 888-425-0241 

Fax: 701-225-4058 
 

swa@swwater.com 
www.swwater.com 

 
 
 

Vision Statement 
People and business succeeding with quality water 

 
 

www.facebook.com/swwater 
 

www.twitter.com/SWwaterND 
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Operations & Maintenance 

• The Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP) is owned by North Dakota and 
administered by the State Water Commission 

• Southwest Water Authority (SWA) was established in 1991 

• Operations and management of the SWPP were transferred to SWA on January 
1, 1996 

• SWA manages, operates, and maintains all SWPP features 

REM Fund 

• The Replacement & Extraordinary Maintenance (REM) Fund covers costs of an 
extraordinary nature or to replace parts of the SWPP system that reach their life 
expectancy 

• Originally, the rate was set at 30 cents per thousand gallons of water sold and in 
2017 the rate is 65 cents 

Mill Levy 

• SWA receives one mill from each of the 12 counties served 

• Mill levy began in 1991, extended in 2001, again in 2009, and sunsets in 2020 

• The mill levy for SWA is used for administration expenses 

Contract Contributions $       13,837,388 

Rural Contributions $         2,094,072 

Interest $         4,723,657 

Dividends $            219,577 

Fiduciary Fees $           (517,447) 

Disbursements $        (3,026,493) 

Ending Balance $       17,330,754 
 

(As of February 28,2017) 
 

 www.swwater.com  
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Jonathon Eaton 
Adams County 

James Odermann* 
Billings County 

Rick Seifert 
Bowman County 

Glenn Eckelberg 
Dunn County 

Gene Allen 
Golden Valley County 

     
Brian Roth 

Grant County 
Don Schaible 

Hettinger County 
Marie Johnson 
Mercer County 

George Saxowsky 
Morton County 

Mike Tietz 
Oliver County 

     
Dave Juntunen 
Slope County 

Steve Schneider* 
Stark County 

Larry Bares* 
City of Dickinson 

Larry Stang 
City of Dickinson 

Bob Leingang 
City of Mandan 

 
 

 

 

Current Board of Directors 

 *Executive Committee Members 

• Governed by a 15-member board representing 12 counties in the service area 

• In 1991, SWA had 27 board members 

• In 2001, SWA’s Board of Directors was downsized to 14 members 

• In 2009, the City of Mandan was added as a board member, increasing the board to 15 
members 

• Board members serve four-year terms with half the board up for election every two years in 
the June primary 

North Dakota Legislature 

North Dakota State Water Commission 
Governor/Chairman 

Agriculture Commissioner 
7 Appointed Members 

Construction & Project Owner 

Chief Engineer and Secretary to the Water 
Commission 

Garland Erbele, State Engineer 

Southwest Water Authority 
15 Elected Directors NDCC 

61-24.5 

 

Southwest Pipeline Project 

Management, Operations & 
Maintenance 

   www.swwater.com  
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Funding Request
for 2017-2019 Biennium

Contract Description Detail
Estimated Project 

Cost

4-1E Dodge Pump Station Upgrade Upgrade from 700 to 900 HP pump and add one P6 900 HP pump

4-2B Richardton Pump Station Upgrade Upgrade from 900 to 1200 HP pump

Capacity upgrades necessary for regional growth-deferred construction

1-2B Supplemental Intake Pump Station Intake Pump Station Building and Pumps

5-13A 2nd Davis Buttes Reservoir 1 Million Gallon Ground Storage Reservoir, 60' diameter x 47'high

Deferred construction

2-3H Parallel Pipe from Richardton to Dickinson Reservoir 5 miles 24" DIP

Capacity upgrades necessary for regional growth

4-3A Ray Christensen Pump Station Upgrades One 350 HP and one 125 HP pump

Capacity upgrades necessary for regional growth

2-3I Parallel Pipe from Dickinson Reservoir to Dickinson WTP 1.43 miles 24" DIP

Capacity upgrades necessary for regional growth

2-2I Parallel Pipe from Zap to Richardton 20.4 miles 30" Steel and DIP

Capacity upgrades necessary for regional growth

5-9A 2nd Belfield Reservoir 750,000 Gallon Ground Storage Reservoir, 52' diameter x 47' high

Capacity upgrades necessary for regional growth

.8-4 Golva Tank 150,000 Gallon Standpipe, 25' diameter x 41' high

Deferred construction

Funding shortage from 2015-2017 $13,800,000

SWC Agency Operations $750,000

Total Estimated Project Cost $84,000,000

$6,100,000

$550,000

$5,500,000

$1,445,000

$1,070,000

$760,000

$2,150,000

$36,650,000

  Capacity upgrades necessary for growth in the region

$7,200,000

$8,025,000
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SWPP Projected Peak Demand at Dickinson

Without Continued Funding
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Demand expected to exceed WTP capacity in 2017 
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Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP) 
Funding Sources 

 
State Funding (in millions of dollars) 
 Resources Trust Fund ………………………………………………………. $189.14 
 Water Development Trust Fund .................................................................. $8.47 
 Subtotal ................................................................................................. $197.61 
 
Federal Funding 
 Garrison Diversion Conservatory District 
  Municipal Rural & Industrial (MR&I) Fund (AARA Funding $11.90) .. $105.92 
 United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development (RUS) ..... $15.32 
 Natural Resources Conservation Service PL566 ........................................ $0.93 
Subtotal ....................................................................................................... $122.17 
 
State Bonds  
 Public Revenue Bonds ............................................................................... $7.04 
 United States Department of Agriculture – Rural Development ................ $15.70 
 ND Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund ................................................... $1.50 
 Subtotal ................................................................................................... $24.24 
 
Total Funding ............................................................................................. $344.02 
 

(As of February 28, 2017) 

 www.swwater.com  
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Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP) Timeline  

 1971 1972 1973 1974-76 1977 1978 1979 1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 

Projects: West River Diversion  
SW Area Water 

Supply 
  Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP) 

Organizations:       
West River 

Water Supply 
District 

  West River Joint Board 
SWA 
(Non-
Profit) 

SWA (Political Subdivision) 

                      

 1994 1995 1996 1997-2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016  

Projects: Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP)                                                                                                                                             Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP)  

Organizations: Southwest Water Authority (SWA) (Political Subdivision)                                                                                                 Southwest Water Authority (SWA) (Political Subdivision)  

SWPP Historical 
Events: 

1981 – SWPP Authorized 
1983 – SWPP Final Design Authorized 
1985 – SWPP Construction Authorized 
1986 – Construction Begins Garrison MR&I 
Funding 
1991 – Rural Water Integration Service to 
Dickinson 
1992 – First Rural Water Service (Roshau 
Subdivision) 
 

1994 – Service Beyond Dickinson 
1995 Full Scale Rural Service 
1996 – Transfer of O&M to SWA 1997 – USDA Rural 
Development Funds and Revenue 
Bonds 
1998 – Garrison MR&I Funding 
1999 – SB 2188 Passed – Water Development Trust 
Fund 
2001 – State Funding Bowman-Scranton Phase 
2003 – Medora-Beach Phase 

2005 – State USDA Funding Medora-Beach Phase II 2007 – State USDA Funding 
Medora-Beach Phase III 2008 – Received MR&I Funding – First time since 1999 
2009 – SB 2193 Passed – Expanded Authority ARRA 
Funding for OMND WTP 
2011 – Federal & State Funding for OMND 
2012 – Service to OMND 
2013 – Completion of Zap I & II Service Areas 
2014 – 19 Contracts Under Construction 
2015 – City of Killdeer received service – Finished Water Pump Station Completed 
2016 – Construction of 6 MGD Supplemental WTP 

Funding 
(in millions): 

1971 1972 1973 1974-78 1979 1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

State Resources Trust 
Fund 

     - - - - - - - - - - - - 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0.04 0.06 0.68 0.77 1.46 1.77 

Garrison Diversion MR&I             7.38 8.33 6.67 2.65 5.32 6.87 5.30 10.10 7.77 5.41 

Natural Resources 
Conservation Service 

                   .13 0.41 .39 

TOTAL:         23.60    7.38 8.33 6.67 2.65 5.36 6.93 5.98 11.00 9.64 7.57 

                      

 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total 

State Resources Trust 
Fund 

1.18 0.70 1.34 4.21 0.83 0.33 3.06 2.38 3.05 1.62 0.69 2.70 5.43 1.27 4.73 8.86 13.00 29.68 42.41 31.56 189.14 

Garrison Diversion MR&I 0.18 2.47 1.24         2.94 1.13 4.64 16.91 5.64 1.97   2.00 105.92 

Natural Resources 
Conservation Service 

                    0.93 

Revenue Bonds 3.96 3.08                   7.04 

USDA Rural Development 
(loans) 

 3.50 0.02 1.38 0.50 0.23 1.63 1.54  2.47 1.43 3.00         15.70 

USDA Rural Development 
(grants) 

 1.04 1.54 1.59 2.48 0.92 1.04 0.56 1.30 1.93 0.52 2.07 0.10    .23    15.32 

Drinking Water State 
Revolving Loan Fund 

   1.00 0.50                1.50 

Water Development Trust 
Fund 

    1.45 5.17 0.26 0.45  0.09 1.05          8.47 

TOTAL: 5.32 10.79 4.14 8.18 5.76 6.65 5.99 4.93 4.35 6.11 3.69 10.71 6.66 5.91 21.64 14.50 15.20 29.68 42.41 31.03 344.02 
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Project Repayment by Year

• The Southwest Pipeline Project (SWPP) pays a portion of rural, domestic, 
municipal and industrial water sales to the Resources Trust Fund 

• More than $53 million has been paid back to North Dakota through March        
of 2017 

• Over 28 percent of SWPP’s Resources Trust Fund money has been paid 
back to North Dakota 

• Eventually every dollar of the funding used to construct the Southwest 
Pipeline Project will be paid to the Resources Trust Fund 

• Nearly $5 million per year is being paid back to the Resources Trust Fund 

 

 

 

• Nearly $5 million per year is being paid back to the Resources Trust Fund 

*in thousands                  1991 – 2016 
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  RESOURCES  BOND   

YEAR  TRUST FUND  PAYMENTS  TOTAL 

 

1991  $ 11,166.00    $ 11,166.00 

1992  $ 212,899.00    $ 212,899.00 

1993  $ 195,973.00    $ 195,973.00 

1994  $ 300,472.00    $ 300,472.00 

1995  $ 504,179.00    $ 504,179.00 

1996  $ 734,994.15    $ 734,994.15 

1997  $ 389,111.41  $ 468,801.59  $ 857,913.00 

1998  $ 415,197.60  $ 500,593.77  $ 915,791.37 

1999  $ 349,574.05  $ 676,423.19  $ 1,025,997.24 

2000  $ 418,164.86  $ 728,614.91  $ 1,146,779.77 

2001  $ 475,021.15  $ 833,246.78  $ 1,308,267.93 

2002  $ 416,859.08  $ 1,015,365.60  $ 1,432,224.68 

2003  $ 458,780.10  $ 1,122,504.11  $ 1,581,284.21 

2004  $ 615,337.62  $ 1,005,901.63  $ 1,621,239.25 

2005  $ 661,099.95  $ 1,045,858.38  $ 1,706,958.33 

2006  $ 611,674.29  $ 1,336,805.97  $ 1,948,480.26 

2007  $ 856,597.12  $ 1,451,468.74  $ 2,308,065.86 

2008  $ 1,451,385.68  $ 1,004,121.20  $ 2,455,506.88 

2009  $ 1,504,429.59  $ 1,114,558.52  $ 2,618,988.11 

2010  $ 877,624.28  $ 1,898,922.31  $ 2,776,546.59 

2011  $ 1,793,563.59  $ 1,282,852.85  $ 3,076,416.44 

2012  $ 3,303,608.16  $ 983,667.70  $ 4,287,275.86 

2013  $ 3,080,405.43  $ 1,441,235.41  $ 4,521,640.84 

2014  $ 3,753,622.85  $ 1,340,702.63  $ 5,094,325.48 

2015  $ 4,776,377.17    $ 4,776,377.17 

2016  $ 4,936,757.79    $ 4,936,757.79 

2017  $ 1,078,885.76    $ 1,078,885.76 

  $ 34,183,760.68  $ 19,251,645.29  $ 53,435,405.97 

       

  Jan  $ 361,215.22    $ 361,215.22 

Feb  $ 369,973.27    $ 731,188.49 

  Mar  $ 347,697.27      $         1,078,885.76 

 

Southwest Pipeline Project 
Capital Repayment 
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What People Are Saying… 

 

“Few things in life are as important to the overall health and welfare of people as access 

to high quality potable water supplies. The Southwest Water Authority's ability to provide 

quality drinking water has been crucial to the communities and rural areas of 

southwestern North Dakota.”  

~ Garland Erbele, P.E., North Dakota State Engineer  

 

“Water is essential to the well-being of the residents we serve and to our economy. They 

are the reasons the Southwest Pipeline Project and Southwest Water Authority exist.” 

~ Larry Bares, Chairman, SWA Board of Directors 

 

“Southwest Water Authority’s efforts are critical towards providing water for residential, 

agricultural, and industrial use during this time of rapid growth in western North Dakota.”  

~ Jack Dalrymple, Former Governor of North Dakota 

 

“At Southwest Water Authority, the Southwest Pipeline Project is quality water for 

southwest North Dakota. Great-tasting, quality water for our customers is not only our 

mission — it’s our business.”  

~ Mary Massad, SWA Manager/CEO 

 

“This Project water is better than bottled spring water. It’s clear, tastes great, doesn’t stain 

anything, has constant pressure compared to a well kicking in and out; we really 

appreciate having quality water.”   

~ Chris and Traci, Southwest residents 

 

 

 

 

Why the SWPP Construction Is Not Done… 

 

“We are still waiting for water we can drink and cook with and not be afraid it will harm 

our family’s health or that of our livestock.”   

~ Duane and Karen, Southwest residents 

 

 www.swwater.com  
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Construction	of	the	
Finished	Water	
Pump	Station	
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Construction	of	the	
Supplemental	Water	
Treatment	Plant	in	

Dickinson	
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M E M O R A N D U M 
 

To:  Southwest Water Authority Board of Directors, Staff 
From:  Sindhuja S.Pillai-Grinolds, P.E., SWPP Project Manager 
Subject: SWPP Project Update 
Date:  March 28, 2017 
 
Oliver , Mercer , Nor th Dunn (OMND) Regional Service Area  
Rural Distr ibution Contracts: 
Work on Contract 7-9G Bid Schedule 2 is expected to star t soon. 
 
Other  Contracts 
Contract 1-2A Supplemental Raw Water  Intake: 
Contractor J.W. Fowler is working on getting the breakout frame installed. An 
application for a new easement and construction license has been filed with the Corps of 
Engineers. Corps sent a letter to Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) seeking more 
information. A meeting was held with the BOR and they think that there will be a 
significant delay for the Corps to issue the easement and license for the Project. A 
meeting with Corps, BOR, SWC, BW/ACECOM is tentatively being scheduled for April 
25th at the SWC office and a possible site visit on April 26th. 
 
Contract 3-2D Dickinson WTP: 
The fir st-floor  slab pour  is complete. Contractor  is working on the second-floor  slab 
between the wet well and the ozone basin. An issue of frozen concrete in the columns 
was identified. Contractor  is asked to test the concrete for  strength and have a 
Professional Engineer  cer tify that it meets the design intent. Work on the steel 
columns, steel joists in the administration area is ongoing. The precast wall 
installation is ongoing. Painting and masonry block wall installation in the basement 
is ongoing. An out-of plumb column in the basement will be cor rected by the 
contractor  with placing masonry blocks around them. Installation of electr ical 
conduits, HVAC ducts and fire spr inkler  pipes is progressing in the basement. 
 
Contract 5-1A and 5-2A 2nd Dickinson and 2nd Richardton Reservoir : 
Work on these contracts are expected to begin in Spr ing. Preconstruction 
conference for  the 2nd Dickinson raw water  reservoir  is scheduled for  March 30th. 
 
Contract 2-1A Raw Water  Parallel Pipe from Intake to Zap: 
Design on this contract is mostly complete. Easement acquisition has begun. We 
hope to adver tise this contract for  bids soon. 
 
Contract 3-2E Residual Handling buiding: 
Design on this contract is ongoing. 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

 

To:  Mary Massad, Manager/CEO    

 

From:  Sandra Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator 

 

Subject: High Consumption Users - Incidental 

 

Date:  March 21, 2017 

 

 

Attached is a flow chart showing steps staff could take when customers go over their allocation.  

 

Each year, usage patterns are reviewed by staff during the peak usage months of May through 

September as well as over a twelve-month period. If a customer uses over their allocated amount 

during peak months or over a twelve-month average, the customer will get a letter notifying them 

of the overage. Staff will review the circumstances with the overage, such as a leak or a one-time 

occurrence such as establishing trees, and work with the customer.   

 

If the customer’s usage was during the winter months, and wanted to have permission to 

occasionally exceed allocation in the future, and did not impact other customers, 1) the customer 

will get a letter notifying them of the overage and that they may be able to do this again in the 

future, but cannot rely on the system for the increased allocation. It will be a year-by-year 

decision by SWA. Or, 2) the customer pays for additional units if the customer is located in a 

service area without serious over-allocation of water. If the customer is located in a service area 

with serious over-allocation of water, the customer will be informed they cannot exceed 

allocation in the future, or they will be disconnected.  

 

If the customer’s overage was during the summer, and wanted to have permission to exceed 

allocation again, and did not impact other customers, the customer will get a letter notifying 

them of the overage, and if they are located in a service area without serious over-allocation of 

water, they must pay for additional units. If the customer is located in a service area with serious 

over-allocation of water, the customer will be informed they cannot exceed allocation in the 

future, or they will be disconnected.  

 

If the customer’s overage is during the peak usage months of May through August, and impacts 

other customers, the customer will receive a letter informing them of the overage. If the customer 

cooperates, staff will continue to monitor his usage. If the customer does not cooperate, they will 
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Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
Page 2 
March 21, 2017 

 

be shut off when allocation in exceeded and will pay a service charge for being shut off and 

turned back on.  

 

These steps follow the Rules and Regulations of the Southwest Water Authority for Water 

Service from the Southwest Pipeline Project.  

 

Included with this memo is a summary of Increasing Block Rates from American Water Works 

Association Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges. 
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Customer Allocations 

 

xenadrine 

 

Customer uses over allocated amount 
on a 12-month average or during peak 
months. Standard >25,000 gallons per 
month, HC1 > 50,000, HC2 > 75,000 or 
HC3 > 100,000 

Staff reviews circumstances with the 

overage. Was it a leak, was it a one-time 

(one or two months) occurrence, i.e. 

establishing trees, leak, etc? 

Was the overage during the winter 

months and did not impact other 

customers? Customer wants to have 

permission/ability to occasionally 

exceed allocation in future. 

 

Was the overage a summer time 

occurrence and did not impact other 

customers? Customer wants permission 

to exceed allocation again. 

Overage is during peak period (May-

Aug), and impacts other customers. 

Customer received a letter informing of 

the issue. Customer cooperates. 

Customer has service shut off when 

allocation is exceeded and pays service 

charge for shut off and turning back on. 

1) Customer gets letter notifying them of 

overage and that they may be able to do this 

again in the future but cannot rely on the 

system for the increased allocation. It will be 

a year-by-year decision by SWA OR 2) 

Customer pays for additional units.  

 

Customer gets letter 

notifying them of overage.  

Is the customer located in a service area 

without serious over-allocation of water? 

Customer is informed they cannot exceed 

allocation in future or will be disconnected. 

Continue to monitor. 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes; 2) only 

No 

Yes 

No 

No 

No 

No 
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Summary of Increasing Block Rates from Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and Charges 
AWWA 

• Increasing Block Rates: Properly designed increasing block rates recover class-specific, cost of service 
while sending a more conservation-oriented price signal to that class. Increasing Block Rates are not 
one size fits all. 
 

• Increasing Block Rates should be Considered by a Water Utility When:  
1. Utility is able to distinguish separate customer classes for billing 
2. Utility has analytical capability to design block rate structures 
3. Utility is confronting system capacity constraints 
4. Utility is willing to spend additional effort to communicate the nature and rationale of increasing 

block rates.  
 

• Assigning the large price increases on the customer classes, can make it difficult to predict decreases in 
consumption. These structures are considered to be conservation-oriented – which maximizes the 
consistency of the price signal.  
 

• Increasing block rates are not as simple to design or explain as other rate forms. Require applying 
judgement and utility policy.  
 
 

• Over the long term, increasing block rate structures can give utilities and rate analysts flexibility with 
which to achieve predictable cost recovery.  
 

• Utilities concerned about adverse revenue effects resulting from an increasing block rate design might 
consider developing a reserve, stabilization fund.  
 
 

• Disadvantages may include  
1. These rates are more difficult to design for predictable revenue streams 
2. Definitions of rate blocks can be based on more than one rationale 
3. Rate structure can be more difficult to communicate to customer. 
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Southwest Pipeline Project

Capital Repayment

RESOURCES BOND

YEAR TRUST FUND PAYMENTS TOTAL

1991 11,166.00$                11,166.00$               

1992 212,899.00$             212,899.00$             

1993 195,973.00$             195,973.00$             

1994 300,472.00$             300,472.00$             

1995 504,179.00$             504,179.00$             

1996 734,994.15$             734,994.15$             

1997 389,111.41$             468,801.59$         857,913.00$             

1998 415,197.60$             500,593.77$         915,791.37$             

1999 349,574.05$             676,423.19$         1,025,997.24$          

2000 418,164.86$             728,614.91$         1,146,779.77$          

2001 475,021.15$             833,246.78$         1,308,267.93$          

2002 416,859.08$             1,015,365.60$     1,432,224.68$          

2003 458,780.10$             1,122,504.11$     1,581,284.21$          

2004 615,337.62$             1,005,901.63$     1,621,239.25$          

2005 661,099.95$             1,045,858.38$     1,706,958.33$          

2006 611,674.29$             1,336,805.97$     1,948,480.26$          

2007 856,597.12$             1,451,468.74$     2,308,065.86$          

2008 1,451,385.68$          1,004,121.20$     2,455,506.88$          

2009 1,504,429.59$          1,114,558.52$     2,618,988.11$          

2010 877,624.28$             1,898,922.31$     2,776,546.59$          

2011 1,793,563.59$          1,282,852.85$     3,076,416.44$          

2012 3,303,608.16$          983,667.70$         4,287,275.86$          

2013 3,080,405.43$          1,441,235.41$     4,521,640.84$          

2014 3,753,622.85$          1,340,702.63$     5,094,325.48$          

2015 4,776,377.17$          4,776,377.17$          

2016 4,936,757.79$          4,936,757.79$          

33,104,874.92$       19,251,645.29$   52,356,520.21$       

Jan 345,613.93$             345,613.93$             
Feb 397,514.99$             743,128.92$             

Mar 346,333.74$             1,089,462.66$          

Apr 306,006.03$             1,395,468.69$          

May 362,069.23$             1,757,537.92$          

Jun 382,398.83$             2,139,936.75$          

Jul 420,550.25$             2,560,487.00$          

Aug 481,576.15$             3,042,063.15$          

Sep 467,632.53$             3,509,695.68$          

Oct 487,061.91$             3,996,757.59$          

Nov 594,995.08$             4,591,752.67$          

Dec 345,005.12$             4,936,757.79$          
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Southwest Pipeline Project

Capital Repayment

RESOURCES BOND

YEAR TRUST FUND PAYMENTS TOTAL

1991 11,166.00$               11,166.00$               

1992 212,899.00$             212,899.00$             

1993 195,973.00$             195,973.00$             

1994 300,472.00$             300,472.00$             

1995 504,179.00$             504,179.00$             

1996 734,994.15$             734,994.15$             

1997 389,111.41$             468,801.59$        857,913.00$             

1998 415,197.60$             500,593.77$        915,791.37$             

1999 349,574.05$             676,423.19$        1,025,997.24$         

2000 418,164.86$             728,614.91$        1,146,779.77$         

2001 475,021.15$             833,246.78$        1,308,267.93$         

2002 416,859.08$             1,015,365.60$     1,432,224.68$         

2003 458,780.10$             1,122,504.11$     1,581,284.21$         

2004 615,337.62$             1,005,901.63$     1,621,239.25$         

2005 661,099.95$             1,045,858.38$     1,706,958.33$         

2006 611,674.29$             1,336,805.97$     1,948,480.26$         

2007 856,597.12$             1,451,468.74$     2,308,065.86$         

2008 1,451,385.68$          1,004,121.20$     2,455,506.88$         

2009 1,504,429.59$          1,114,558.52$     2,618,988.11$         

2010 877,624.28$             1,898,922.31$     2,776,546.59$         

2011 1,793,563.59$          1,282,852.85$     3,076,416.44$         

2012 3,303,608.16$          983,667.70$        4,287,275.86$         

2013 3,080,405.43$          1,441,235.41$     4,521,640.84$         

2014 3,753,622.85$          1,340,702.63$     5,094,325.48$         

2015 4,776,377.17$          4,776,377.17$         

2016 4,936,757.79$          4,936,757.79$         
2017 1,078,885.76$          1,078,885.76$         

34,183,760.68$       19,251,645.29$  53,435,405.97$       

Jan 361,215.22$             361,215.22$             

Feb 369,973.27$             731,188.49$             

Mar 347,697.27$             1,078,885.76$         
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TO:                   Mary Massad, Manager/CEO, Southwest Water Authority          

NAME TYPE OF CUSTOMER SERVICE DESCRIPTION

Casey & Jeff Cuka Standard 139-94-34

Dan & Nancy Tuhy Standard 146-94-32

Joe & Emily Vesey Standard 144-100-13

Cary Lacher Pasture Tap 138-93-12

Jim Arthaud Pasture Tap 141-100-13

Ben Murphy Pasture Tap 144-95-3

Myron Yourk Standard 143-100-36

George Saxowsky Pasture Tap 139-90-13 

Jed & Becky Boltz Pasture Tap 146-99-26

Jed & Becky Boltz Standard 146-99-35

Corey Hugelan Standard 146-98-15

Corey Hugelan Pasture Tap 146-98-12

Corey Hugelan Pasture Tap 146-98-9

James Carlson Standard 135-94-35

Ron & Cindy Hartman Standard 147-99-22

Justin Mead Pasture Tap 146-99-20

Dave Mead Pasture Tap 146-99-19

Robert & Brenda Carson High Consumption 1 146-99-5

Mark Pantaleone Standard 146-98-6

Tom Romanyshyn Pasture Tap 143-98-3

Tamarac Investments Standard 145-99-13

MEMORANDUM

MARCH 2017 SIGN-UP REPORT

SUBSEQUENT CUSTOMERS

Twenty-one (21) subsequent customers signed up in March and 36 subsequent customers have

 been added year-to-date.   A total of 80 customer quotes have been given year-to-date.

FROM:             Misti Conzemius, Marketing Manager, Southwest Water Authority

SUBJECT:         Report for March 2017

RE:                   Marketing Managers' Incidental Information

DATE:              March 24, 2017

130



COMPLAINTS 

One (1) warranty issue was called in during the month of March.                                                                

Zero (0) warranty issues were closed during the month of March.                                                                

Open warranty items are shown above by area and type.

COMPLAINTS & WARRANTY BREAKDOWN

One (1) complaint was called in during the month of March.   

Zero (0) complaints were closed during the month of March.   

  Open complaints are shown above by area and type.
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2017 SWA DEPOT SALES VS PROJECTIONS

PROJECTION TOTAL - 24,000,000

ACTUAL TOTAL - 329,950
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PROJECTION 1,722.82 1,565.92 1,565.01 1,700.59 1,834.29 2,370.83 2,805.65 2,887.75 2,417.51 1,826.63 1,735.16 1,567.84 
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P
E

R
 1

K
 G

A
L
L
O

N
S

132



2017 INDUSTRIAL SALES

CITY *COMMENTS

*RATE/KGAL FOR 

INDUSTRIAL JANUARY FEBRUARY TOTAL GALLONS TOTAL ACRE FEET 

BEACH

SELLS WATER TO FARMERS FROM CITY WELLS 

ONLY.  DOES NOT SELL SWPP WATER

BELFIELD $32.00/1,000 GALLONS $32.00 81,500 22,500 104,000 0.32

CARSON DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

DICKINSON $29.00/1,000 GALLONS $29.00 118,000 69,000 187,000 0.57

DODGE DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

DUNN CENTER  DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

ELGIN DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

GLADSTONE 0 0.00

GLEN ULLIN

DOES NOT SELL ON REGULAR BASIS - ONLY TO 

FARMERS $10.00 0 550 550 0.00

GOLDEN VALLEY SPRAYING & DUST CONTROL USE ONLY 0 0.00

GOLVA DO NOT SELL SWPP WATER - USES CITY WELLS 0 0.00

HALLIDAY

SELLS WATER TO FARMERS FROM CITY WELLS 

ONLY.  DOES NOT SELL SWPP WATER N/A 0 0.00

HEBRON

CHARGES THE SAME FOR ALL USERS.  THIS USAGE 

IS FOR HEBRON BRICK ONLY. DOES NOT SELL TO 

THE OIL INDUSTRY. $8.50 82,000 73,000 155,000 0.48

HETTINGER CHARGES THE SAME FOR ALL USERS. $10.00 0 0 0 0.00

KILLDEER CHARGES THE SAME FOR ALL USERS. $36.00 1,457,601 1,326,675 2,784,276 8.54

MEDORA DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

MOTT SPRAYING/DOES NOT SELL TO OIL INDUSTRY $10.00 0 0 0 0.00

NEW ENGLAND

CHARGES THE SAME FOR ALL USERS WILL BE SAME 

RATE UNTIL 2014 $10.00 0 0 0 0.00

NEW HRADEC DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

NEW LEIPZIG 0 0.00

REEDER DO NOT SELL SWPP WATER - USES CITY WELLS 0 0.00

REGENT DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

RICHARDTON ONLY SELL TO FARMERS 0 0.00

SCRANTON

SPRAYING USE ONLY/DOES NOT SELL TO OIL 

INDUSTRY $7.00 0 0 0 0.00

SENTINEL BUTTE $22.47 3,600 0 3,600 0.01

SOUTH HEART DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

TAYLOR DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

ZAP DO NOT SELL 0 0.00

TOTAL GALLONS 1,742,701 1,491,725 3,234,426 9.93

TOTAL ACRE FEET 5.35 4.58 9.93

CONTRACT

BAKER BOY 413,600 393,500 807,100 2.48

BILLINGS COUNTY DIST 3 0 0 0 0.00

SWA WATER DEPOT - RAW 114,370 30,150 144,520 0.44

DAKOTA PRAIRIE REFINING 42,600 75,600 118,200 0.36

DODGE WATER DEPOT 0 0 0 0.00

MISSOURI BASIN WELL SERVICE 426,700 163,100 589,800 1.81

RED TRAIL ENERGY 14,181,000 11,942,107 26,123,107 80.17

STEFFES CORPORATION 126,500 127,600 254,100 0.78

TOTAL GALLONS 15,304,770 12,732,057 28,036,827 86.04

TOTAL ACRE FEET 46.97 39.07 86.04

TOTAL GALLONS COMBINED 17,047,471 14,223,782 31,271,253

TOTAL ACRE FEET COMBINED 52.32 43.65 95.97 95.97
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Acct. # Jan. Feb. March April May June July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Total

Total 

Acre 

Feet

1114000.000 MBI - Hwy 10 West 45,500 9,500 55,000 0.17

1088520.000 Water Vendor W. Broadway 45,000 30,500 75,500 0.23

1110540.000 Scout Energy 27,500 29,000 56,500 0.17

Total 118,000 69,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 187,000 0.57

Total Acre Feet 0.36 0.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.57

YEARLY TOTAL - GALLONS 187,000

YEARLY TOTAL - ACRE FEET 0.57

THRU 2/28/17 THRU 2/28/16 DIFFERENCE

DEPOT ON BROADWAY 75,500 6,904,000 -6,828,500

2017 Industrial usage for the city of Dickinson
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 2017 OIL INDUSTRY USAGE/REVENUE

2017 USAGE FOR THE SWA DEPOT May

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

B&B Hot Oil Service -$                     -$                        4,390 96.58$                              -$                              -$                                          -$                             

JaCam Chemicals 3,350 73.70$                 10,520 231.44$                 13,100 288.20$                           -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Martin Construction -$                     10,520 231.44$                 3,370 74.14$                              -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Master Construction -$                     1,200 26.40$                   8,920 196.24$                           -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Missouri Basin 105,520 2,321.44$           720 15.84$                   138,680 3,050.96$                        -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Powerfuels 5,500 121.00$              7,190 158.18$                 16,970 373.34$                           -$                              -$                                          -$                             

TOTAL 114,370 2,516.14$           30,150 663.30$                 185,430 4,079.46$                        0 -$                              0 -$                                          0 -$                             

2017 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE SWA DEPOT 2016 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE SWA DEPOT 2015 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE SWA DEPOT

Treatment 0.05$               16.50$                 Treatment 1.00$                          23,264.16$                  Treatment 1.00$                             33,703.15$                

Trans O&M 0.50$               164.98$              Trans O&M 3.00$                          69,792.48$                  Trans O&M 3.00$                             101,109.45$              

Dist O&M 13.85$             4,569.81$           Dist O&M 6.00$                          139,584.96$                Dist O&M 6.00$                             202,218.90$              

Trans REM 5.14$               1,695.94$           Trans REM 5.14$                          119,577.78$                Trans REM 5.14$                             173,234.19$              

Cap Rep 2.46$               811.68$              Cap Rep 2.46$                          57,229.83$                  Cap Rep 2.46$                             82,909.75$                

Trans Reserve -$                 -$                     Trans Reserve 4.40$                          102,362.30$                Trans Reserve 4.40$                             148,293.86$              

2017 TOTAL 22.00$            7,258.90$          2016 TOTAL 22.00$                       511,811.51$               2015 TOTAL 22.00$                          741,469.30$              

2017 TOTAL GALLONS 329,950 2016 TOTAL GALLONS 23,264,160 2015 TOTAL GALLONS 33,703,150

2017 USAGE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

2017 Gallons 0 -$                     0 -$                        0 -$                                  -$                              -$                                          -$                             

2017 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT 2016 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT 2015 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT

Treatment 1.00$               -$                     Treatment 1.00$                          287.30$                        Treatment 1.00$                             8,709.00$                   

Trans O&M 2.00$               -$                     Trans O&M 2.00$                          574.60$                        Trans O&M 2.00$                             17,418.00$                

Dist O&M 3.34$               -$                     Dist O&M 3.34$                          959.58$                        Dist O&M 3.34$                             29,088.06$                

Trans REM 7.33$               -$                     Trans REM 7.33$                          2,105.91$                    Trans REM 7.33$                             63,836.97$                

Cap Rep 7.33$               -$                     Cap Rep 7.33$                          2,105.91$                    Cap Rep 7.33$                             63,836.97$                

Trans Reserve 1.00$               -$                     Trans Reserve 1.00$                          287.30$                        Trans Reserve 1.00$                             8,709.00$                   

2017 TOTAL 22.00$            -$                     2016 TOTAL 22.00$                       6,320.60$                    2015 TOTAL 22.00$                          191,598.00$              

2017 TOTAL GALLONS 0 2016 TOTAL GALLONS 287,300 2015 TOTAL GALLONS 8,709,000

2017 USAGE FOR MISSOURI BASIN

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

2017 Gallons 426,700 9,387.40$           163,100 3,588.20$              426,700 9,387.40$                        -$                              -$                                          -$                             

2017 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN 2016 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN 2015 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN

Treatment 1.00$               1,016.50$           Treatment 1.00$                          2,132.44$                    Treatment 1.00$                             3,563.77$                   

Trans O&M 2.00$               2,033.00$           Trans O&M 2.00$                          4,264.88$                    Trans O&M 2.00$                             7,127.54$                   

Dist O&M 3.34$               3,395.11$           Dist O&M 3.34$                          7,122.35$                    Dist O&M 3.34$                             11,902.99$                

Trans REM 7.33$               7,450.95$           Trans REM 7.33$                          15,630.79$                  Trans REM 7.33$                             26,122.43$                

Cap Rep 7.33$               7,450.95$           Cap Rep 7.33$                          15,630.79$                  Cap Rep 7.33$                             26,122.43$                

Trans Reserve 1.00$               1,016.50$           Trans Reserve 1.00$                          2,132.44$                    Trans Reserve 1.00$                             3,563.77$                   

2017 TOTAL 22.00$            22,363.00$        2016 TOTAL 22.00$                       46,913.69$                  2015 TOTAL 22.00$                          78,402.93$                

2017 TOTAL GALLONS 1,016,500 2016 TOTAL GALLONS 2,132,440 2015 TOTAL GALLONS 3,563,770

2017 USAGE FOR COMMUNITIES

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

Belfield 81,500 1,793.00$           22,500 495.00$                 165,500 3,641.00$                        -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Dickinson 118,000 2,596.00$           69,000 1,518.00$              100,000 2,200.00$                        -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Killdeer 1,376,400 30,280.80$         1,138,000 25,036.00$           -$                                  -$                              -$                                          -$                             

Sentinel Butte 0 -$                     0 -$                        0 -$                                  -$                              -$                                          -$                             

TOTAL 1,575,900 34,669.80$         1,229,500 27,049.00$           265,500 5,841.00$                        0 -$                              0 -$                                          0 -$                             

2017 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR COMMUNITIES 2016 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN 2015 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR COMMUNITIES

Treatment 1.00$               3,070.90$           Treatment 1.00$                          26,579.05$                  Treatment 1.00$                             36,931.36$                

Trans O&M 2.00$               6,141.80$           Trans O&M 2.00$                          53,158.10$                  Trans O&M 2.00$                             73,862.73$                

Dist O&M 3.34$               10,256.81$         Dist O&M 3.34$                          88,774.03$                  Dist O&M 3.34$                             123,350.76$              

Trans REM 7.33$               22,509.70$         Trans REM 7.33$                          194,824.44$                Trans REM 7.33$                             270,706.90$              

Cap Rep 7.33$               22,509.70$         Cap Rep 7.33$                          194,824.44$                Cap Rep 7.33$                             270,706.90$              

Trans Reserve 1.00$               3,070.90$           Trans Reserve 1.00$                          26,579.05$                  Trans Reserve 1.00$                             36,931.36$                

2017 TOTAL 22.00$            67,559.80$        2016 TOTAL 22.00$                       584,739.10$               2015 TOTAL 22.00$                          812,490.01$              

2017 TOTAL GALLONS 3,070,900 2016 TOTAL GALLONS 26,579,050 2015 TOTAL GALLONS 36,931,364

2017 BREAKOUT OF GRAND TOTAL REVENUE FOR OIL INDUSTRY 2016 BREAKOUT OF GRAND TOTAL REVENUE FOR OIL INDUSTRY 2015 BREAKOUT OF GRAND TOTAL REVENUE FOR OIL INDUSTRY

Treatment 4,103.90$          Treatment 52,262.95$                  Treatment 82,907.28$                

Trans O&M 8,339.78$          Trans O&M 127,790.06$                Trans O&M 199,517.72$              

Dist O&M 18,221.72$        Dist O&M 236,440.92$                Dist O&M 366,560.71$              

Trans REM 31,656.59$        Trans REM 332,138.91$                Trans REM 533,900.49$              

Cap Rep 30,772.32$        Cap Rep 269,790.96$                Cap Rep 443,576.05$              

Trans Reserve 4,087.40$          Trans Reserve 131,361.09$                Trans Reserve 197,497.99$              

2017 TOTAL 97,181.70$        2016 TOTAL 1,149,784.90$            2015 TOTAL 1,823,960.24$          

2017 TOTAL GALLONS 4,417,350 2016 TOTAL GALLONS 52,262,950 2015 TOTAL GALLONS 82,907,284

JuneJanuary

January February March April

AprilMarchFebruary

January February March April May

May June

June

JuneJanuary February March April May
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 2017 OIL INDUSTRY USAGE/REVENUE

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               4,390 96.58$                   

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               26,970 593.34$                

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               13,890 305.58$                

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               10,120 222.64$                

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               244,920 5,388.24$             

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               29,660 652.52$                

0 -$                                       0 -$                                0 -$                                   0 -$                               0 -$                              0 -$                               329,950 7,258.90$             

2014 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE SWA DEPOT 2013 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE SWA DEPOT 2012 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE SWA DEPOT GRAND TOTAL

Treatment 1.00$                    112,160.23$                 Treatment 1.00$                       90,715.09$                   Treatment 1.00$                              55,781.98$                   315,641.11$         

Trans O&M 3.00$                    336,480.69$                 Trans O&M 5.03$                       456,296.90$                Trans O&M 6.97$                              388,800.40$                 1,352,644.90$     

Dist O&M 3.00$                    336,480.69$                 Dist O&M 2.00$                       181,430.18$                Dist O&M -$                               864,284.54$         

Trans REM 4.67$                    523,788.27$                 Trans REM 1.00$                       90,715.09$                   Trans REM 0.85$                              47,414.68$                   956,425.95$         

Cap Rep 2.24$                    251,238.92$                 Cap Rep 2.22$                       201,387.50$                Cap Rep 2.18$                              121,604.72$                 715,182.40$         

Trans Reserve 6.09$                    683,055.80$                 Trans Reserve 7.00$                       635,005.63$                Trans Reserve 7.00$                              390,473.86$                 1,959,191.45$     

2014 TOTAL 20.00$                 2,243,204.60$             2013 TOTAL 18.25$                    1,655,550.39$            2012 TOTAL 18.00$                           1,004,075.64$             6,163,370.34$     

2014 TOTAL GALLONS 112,160,230 2013 TOTAL GALLONS 90,715,090 2012 TOTAL GALLONS 55,781,980 315,954,560.00

Total Total

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   0 -$                               0 -$                              0 -$                               0 -$                       

2014 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT 2013 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT 2012 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR THE DODGE DEPOT GRAND TOTAL

Treatment 1.00$                    33,023.00$                    Treatment 1.00$                       75,743.00$                   Treatment 1.00$                              83,897.00$                   201,659.30$         

Trans O&M 2.00$                    66,046.00$                    Trans O&M 3.14$                       237,833.02$                Trans O&M 5.06$                              424,518.82$                 746,390.44$         

Dist O&M 2.00$                    66,046.00$                    Dist O&M 2.00$                       151,486.00$                Dist O&M -$                                -$                               247,579.64$         

Trans REM 6.67$                    220,263.41$                 Trans REM 1.00$                       75,743.00$                   Trans REM 0.85$                              71,312.45$                   433,261.74$         

Cap Rep 6.67$                    220,263.41$                 Cap Rep 6.11$                       462,789.73$                Cap Rep 6.09$                              510,932.73$                 1,259,928.75$     

Trans Reserve 1.66$                    54,818.18$                    Trans Reserve 5.00$                       378,715.00$                Trans Reserve 5.00$                              419,485.00$                 862,014.48$         

2014 TOTAL 20.00$                 660,460.00$                 2013 TOTAL 18.25$                    1,382,309.75$            2012 TOTAL 18.00$                           1,510,146.00$             3,750,834.35$     

2014 TOTAL GALLONS 33,023,000 2013 TOTAL GALLONS 75,743,000 2012 TOTAL GALLONS 83,897,000 201,659,300

Total Total

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               1,016,500 22,363.00$          

2014 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN 2013 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN 2012 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR MISSOURI BASIN GRAND TOTAL

Treatment 1.00$                    3,317.46$                      Treatment 1.00$                       2,557.90$                     Treatment 1.00$                              3,566.20$                     16,154.27$           

Trans O&M 2.00$                    6,634.92$                      Trans O&M 3.14$                       8,031.81$                     Trans O&M 5.06$                              18,044.97$                   46,137.12$           

Dist O&M 3.34$                    6,634.92$                      Dist O&M 2.00$                       5,115.80$                     Dist O&M -$                                -$                               34,171.17$           

Trans REM 7.33$                    22,127.46$                    Trans REM 1.00$                       2,557.90$                     Trans REM 0.85$                              3,031.27$                     76,920.80$           

Cap Rep 7.33$                    22,127.46$                    Cap Rep 6.11$                       15,628.77$                   Cap Rep 6.09$                              21,718.16$                   108,678.56$         

Trans Reserve 1.00$                    5,506.98$                      Trans Reserve 5.00$                       12,789.50$                   Trans Reserve 5.00$                              17,831.00$                   42,840.19$           

2014 TOTAL 22.00$                 66,349.20$                   2013 TOTAL 18.25$                    46,681.68$                  2012 TOTAL 18.00$                           64,191.60$                   324,902.10$        

2014 TOTAL GALLONS 3,317,460 2013 TOTAL GALLONS 2,557,900 2012 TOTAL GALLONS 3,566,200 16,154,270

Total Total

Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed Gallons Billed

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               269,500 5,929.00$             

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               287,000 6,314.00$             

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               2,514,400 55,316.80$          

-$                                       -$                                -$                                   -$                               -$                              -$                               0 -$                       

0 -$                                       0 -$                                0 -$                                   0 -$                               0 -$                              0 -$                               3,070,900 67,559.80$          

2014 BREAKOUT OF REVENUE FOR COMMUNITIES GRAND TOTAL

Treatment 1.00$                    75,499.81$                    142,081.12$         

Trans O&M 2.00$                    150,999.62$                 284,162.25$         

Dist O&M 2.00$                    150,999.62$                 373,381.22$         

Trans REM 6.67$                    503,583.73$                 991,624.77$         

Cap Rep 6.67$                    503,583.73$                 991,624.77$         

Trans Reserve 1.66$                    125,329.68$                 191,910.99$         

2014 TOTAL 20.00$                 1,509,996.19$             2,974,785.10$     

2014 TOTAL GALLONS 75,499,810 142,081,124

2014 BREAKOUT OF GRAND TOTAL REVENUE FOR OIL INDUSTRY 2013 BREAKOUT OF GRAND TOTAL REVENUE FOR OIL INDUSTRY 2012 BREAKOUT OF GRAND TOTAL REVENUE FOR OIL INDUSTRY GRAND TOTAL

Treatment 224,000.50$                 Treatment 169,015.99$                Treatment 143,245.18$                 675,535.80$         

Trans O&M 560,161.23$                 Trans O&M 702,161.73$                Trans O&M 831,364.19$                 2,429,334.71$     

Dist O&M 560,161.23$                 Dist O&M 338,031.98$                Dist O&M -$                               1,519,416.56$     

Trans REM 1,269,762.88$              Trans REM 169,015.99$                Trans REM 121,758.40$                 2,458,233.26$     

Cap Rep 997,213.52$                 Cap Rep 679,806.00$                Cap Rep 654,255.60$                 3,075,414.45$     

Trans Reserve 868,710.65$                 Trans Reserve 1,026,510.13$             Trans Reserve 827,789.86$                 3,055,957.12$     After Cap Rep and REM

2014 TOTAL 4,480,010.01$             2013 TOTAL 3,084,541.82$            2012 TOTAL 2,578,413.24$             13,213,891.90$  7,680,244.19$   

2014 TOTAL GALLONS 224,000,500 2013 TOTAL GALLONS 169,015,990 2012 TOTAL GALLONS 143,245,180 675,849,254

TotalSeptember October November DecemberAugustJuly

October November

NovemberAugust September December

DecemberJuly August September October November

DecemberJuly August September

July October
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SWA WATER DEPOT PROJECTIONS/ACTUAL

2017 BUDGET 2018 2019 2020 2021

24,000,000 GALLONS
2017 

RATE

2017 BUDGET 

TOTAL

CAPITAL 

REPAYMENT REM

BALANCE TO 

SWA

AMRs for current 

customers 

FIFTH YEAR 

PROFIT/LOSS

SIXTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

SEVENTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

EIGHTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

NINTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

TREATMENT 1.00$    24,000.00$         24,000.00$         

TRANSMISSION O&M 3.00$    72,000.00$         72,000.00$         

DISTRIBUTION O&M 6.00$    144,000.00$      144,000.00$      

TRANSMISSION REM 5.14$    123,360.00$      123,360.00$  -$                     

CAPITAL REPAYMENT (double contract rate) 2.46$    59,040.00$         59,040.00$     -$                     

TRANSMISSION RESERVE 4.40$    105,600.00$      105,600.00$      

TOTAL 22.00$  528,000.00$      59,040.00$     123,360.00$  345,600.00$      (325,500.00)$      (154,474.05)$      191,125.95$        211,225.95$      231,325.95$      251,425.95$      

NOTE: Profit/Loss includes ($288,575.05) from first four years.

2017 PROJECTION 2018 2019 2020 2021

24,000,000
2017 

RATE

2017 

PROJECTION 

TOTAL

CAPITAL 

REPAYMENT REM

BALANCE TO 

SWA

AMRs for current 

customers 

FIFTH YEAR 

PROFIT/LOSS

SIXTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

SEVENTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

EIGHTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

NINTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

TREATMENT 1.00$    24,000.00$         24,000.00$         

TRANSMISSION O&M 3.00$    72,000.00$         72,000.00$         

DISTRIBUTION O&M 6.00$    144,000.00$      144,000.00$      

TRANSMISSION REM 5.14$    123,360.00$      123,360.00$  -$                     

CAPITAL REPAYMENT (double contract rate) 2.46$    59,040.00$         59,040.00$     -$                     

TRANSMISSION RESERVE 4.40$    105,600.00$      105,600.00$      

TOTAL 22.00$  528,000.00$      59,040.00$     123,360.00$  345,600.00$      (325,500.00)$      (154,474.05)$      191,125.95$        211,225.95$      231,325.95$      251,425.95$      

NOTE: Profit/Loss includes ($288,575.05) from first four years.

2017 ACTUAL THRU 2/28/17 2018 2019 2020 2021

329,950
2017 

RATE

2017 ACTUAL 

TOTAL

CAPITAL 

REPAYMENT REM

BALANCE TO 

SWA

AMRs for current 

customers 

FIFTH YEAR 

PROFIT/LOSS

SIXTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

SIXTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

SIXTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

SIXTH YEAR  

PROFIT/LOSS

TREATMENT 1.00$    329.95$              329.95$              

TRANSMISSION O&M 3.00$    989.85$              989.85$              

DISTRIBUTION O&M 6.00$    1,979.70$           1,979.70$           

TRANSMISSION REM 5.14$    1,695.94$           1,695.94$       -$                     

CAPITAL REPAYMENT (double contract rate) 2.46$    811.68$              811.68$          -$                     

TRANSMISSION RESERVE 4.40$    1,451.78$           1,451.78$           

TOTAL 22.00$  7,258.90$           811.68$          1,695.94$       4,751.28$           2,860.00$            

2017

2017

2017

POSITIVE CASH FLOW 
PROJECTED IN 2018 

POSITIVE CASH FLOW 
PROJECTED IN 2018

GALLONS

GALLONS
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To: Mary Massad, Manager/CEO, SWA 

From: Sandra Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator, SWA 

Subject: Legislative Information - Incidental Information 

Date: March 29, 2017 

 
This is to update directors on recent and upcoming events with the legislature. 

Coffee with the Legislators was held Saturday, March 11 and Saturday, March 25, 2017, 
from 10:00 a.m. to noon at Dickinson City Hall.  SWA sponsored the March 25, 2017, event.  
Mary Massad emceed all events. Attached is House Majority Report that was handed out at 
the event on March 25, 2017. 

Also attached is the Legislative Report No. 14, the Current Status Report, House Bill No. 
1020 and House Bill No. 1374.  There are many bills effecting water.  

 

........ ..... SOUTHWESTWATER ,,.~RJTY 
Our Vision: People and Business Succeeding with Quality Water Our Mission: Quality Water for Southwest North Dakota 

West Industrial Park, 4665 2nd Street SW, Dickinson, ND 58601-7231 I p: 701.225.0241 1.888.425.0241 f: 701.225.4058 I www.SWwater.com 
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March 24, 2017 

HOUSE MAJORITY REPORT 
North Dakota Legislative Assembly 

North Dakota House 

Republican Caucus 
an 
Pit 

A note from the Majority Leader, Representative Al Carlson: 

Fight the fight, stay the course, the end is near. 

Appropriations 
Rep. Jeff Delzer 

Education and Environment Division- Rep. David Monson 

• Working on budgets for higher ed, commerce, job service, research and extension but no 
action taken yet. 

Government Operations Division- Rep. Mike Brandenburg 

• Committee work on re-referred bills and budgets 

Human Resources Division- Rep. Chet Pollert 

• Working on a study for management of inmate population, a community behavioral health 
plan as a term of parole or an alternative to incarceration, and prioritization of admission of 
inmates 

• Department of veteran affairs budget, council on the arts budget 

Agriculture 
Rep. Dennis Johnson 

• Had a joint session with the Senate to receive an update on agricultural research 
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Education 
Rep. Mark Owens 

• SB 2186 as amended, was passed by the committee. The bill will provide the opportunity for 
school/governing boards, with input from teachers, administrators and parents, to request a 
waiver from a requirement(s) in defined sections of Century Code in order to implement an 
innovative education program if both the program and waiver are approved by the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction. 

• SB 2272 (the measure 2 bill) received a do pass from committee and was re-referred to 
appropriations 

Energy and Natural Resources 
Rep. Todd Porter 

• SB 2156 requires townships and counties to be notified prior to test boring for nuclear waste 
disposal sites. It also prohibits any out of state nuclear waste from being deposited in North 
Dakota. Committee recommends do pass. 

• SB 2327 moves the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) out of the umbrella of the 
Department of Health into a stand-alone cabinet status. It does not require additional 
employees or office space, it just changes the status of the department and the director is no 
longer under a medical authority. The bill was amended to give agriculture a greater 
presence on the advisory committee that oversees the DEQ. Committee recommends do 
pass. 

• SB 2134 dealing with mineral rights taken from landowners of land flooded by the Garrison 
Dam project is still in subcommittee and is expected to be acted on soon. 

Finance and Taxation 
Rep. Craig Headland 

The committee passed out two bills this week, both with do not pass recommendations: 

• SB 2166 a bill relating to approval of property tax incentives granted by a city; relating to 
approval of property tax incentives granted by a city and evaluation of economic 
development tax incentives; to provide for a legislative management study; and to provide 
an effective date 

• SB 2273 a bill to provide for a legislative management study relating to fees charged by 
county directors of tax equalization for property records. 

Government and Veterans Affairs 
Rep. Jim Kasper 

2 

• SB 2343 The campaign ethics bill, that would create greater transparency within elections 
had a committee hearing last week. We are finalizing amendments and will have a 
recommendation next week. 
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• SB 2261 is related to the way legislative districts and political parties caucus. We are working 
through these amendments as a committee and will also give a recommendation on this bill 
next week. 

Human Services 
Rep. Robin Weisz 

• SB 2342 provides for the creation of a task force on the prevention sexual abuse of children 
and to provide a report to the legislative management. 

o This bill calls for a task force to study sexual abuse of children in our state and make 
recommendations to Legislative Management. 

o The bill was amended to change the membership of the task force to include one 
more member as selected by the majority and minority leader. 

o The committee gave it a Do Pass as amended 12-2. 

• SB 2088 Relating to the scope of practice for addiction counselors and the licensure 
authority of the board of addiction counseling examiners. 

o This bill was amended to replace "disorder recognized" to an individual regarding 
substance-related or addictive disorder identified. This is consistent with DSM MDS 

· manual. 
o Another amendment states that the board shall issue an initial license as a licensed 

clinical addiction counselor to a qualified applicant who applies for licensure under 
this section before January 1, 2014 and any qualified applicant who on December 31, 
2018, was licensed in this state as an addiction counselor. 

o The committee gave the bill a Do Pass as amended 14-0. 

• SB 2344 Relating implementation of the ND Compassionate Care Act to authorize medical 
marijuana; to provide a report to legislative management; to provide a penalty; continuing 
appropriation; and to declare an emergency. 

o Full day committee hearing was held. Several amendments suggested. No committee 
action. 

Industry, Business and Labor 
Rep. George Keiser 

3 

• SB 2190 - Relates to bid requirements for public improvements. After much discussion, we 
amended this bill in an effort to satisfy the parties involved. The amendment failed. We 
cou ld find no happy medium for the multiple prime bids and the single prime bid issues and 
the bill solved no problems. The committee gave the bill a 7-4-3 do not pass. 

• SB 2311 - relates to job service ND construction project risk protection bonds. The 
committee hog housed this bill. The bill authorizes the Bank of ND to provide a loan to a city 
in the northwest corner of the state with a population over 20,000 which is constructing an 
airport and is subject to the bonding requirements under section 52-04-06.1. The committee 
gave the bil l a 12-0-2 do pass. 
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• SB 2258 - Relating to pharmacy claim fees and pharmacy rights. The bill addresses fees PBM 
charged to a pharmacy relating to a claim, Pharmacy performance scores, PBM charges to 
patients, information provided to patients, pharmacy mailing drugs and shipping and 
handling fees, pharmacy accreditation standards or re-certification requirements. The 
committee gave this bill a 12-1-1 do pass. 

• SB 2301 - Relates to specialty pharmacy services. This bill defines "specialty drug". The bill 
addresses spread pricing issues, PBM ownership, addresses PBM ownership in patient 
assistance programs and mail order specialty a pharmacy, accreditation standard and 
recertification requirements for pharmacies. The committee made a couple changes to the 
bill and gave the amended bill a 13-1 Do Pass. 

• HB 1436 - the PERS self-insurance bill, will be worked on Monday. It is our last bill. 

Judiciary 
Rep. Kim Koppelman 

Three bills hear by the Judiciary Committee which deal with similar issues, were assigned to a 
subcommittee of 3, appointed to work on details and synergy and to give them further 
consideration. The subcommittee has completed its work and the full Committee will take the 
subcommittee report and the bills up on Monday: 

• SB 2163 works to prevent financial exploitation of vulnerable adults who not declared 
incompetent. 

• SB 2322 seeks to protect sen iors and vu lnerable citizens by equipping financial advisors to 
report and refer evidence of financial exploitation to authorities. 

• SB 2335 allows criminal prosecution for exploiting an individual 60 years 

Other bills considered by the Committee: 

4 

• SB 2195 would exempt private donor information on donations to a non-profit organ ization 
that is not a public entity from public record. This will ensure that nonprofit charitable 
organizations to keep their donors and their information such as addresses, email 
addresses, phone numbers, etc., private. 

• SB 2169 updates ND law on recognition of foreign money judgments. 
• SB 2170 allows for the enforcement of Canadian domestic violence protection orders in ND, 

with reciprocity in Canada. 
• SB 2329 creates an experience equivalency standard for military veterans who have been 

honorably discharged for their firearms training with experience qualifications of "security 
officers". 

• HCR 3033--the casino resolution--was returned to t he Committee for amendment. It was 
reconsidered and amended on Monday and voted out with an 11 -4 "do not pass" 
recommendation and the resolution was defeated later in the week on the House floor. 

• SCR 4003 calls for a legislative study of the juvenile justice process in North Dakota. In light 
of our current Justice Reinvestment project in the adult system and the fact that the juvenile 
justice system in our state has not been studied for three decades, the Committee believed 
this to be a worthwhile effort and gave the resolution a "do pass" recommendation. 
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Political Subdivisions 
Rep. Lawrence Klemin 

• We have completed all bills. Nothing to report 

Transportation 
Rep. Dan Ruby 

• SB 2203 would provide an appropriation to the attorney general for human trafficking 
victims treatment and support services; and to provide for reports to the attorney general, 
legislative assembly, and legislative management. The bill was referred to appropriations. 

• SB 2204 failed to pass the House floor this week. This bill introduced the creation of the 
statewide interoperability radio network fund that must be maintained in the state treasury. 
The bill also included surcharges assessed for certain traffic violations. 

Weekly Article: 3-24 
The House and Senate are nearing the end of committee work. The only bills left in 

committee are receiving their final amendments or are in the appropriations committee. These bills 
have committee members working overtime to find a place for each bill's fisca l note within our tight 
budget for the next biennium. 

Senate bill 2344, the bill for the implementation of medicinal marijuana across the state, was 
heard by the House Human Services committee on Wednesday. This bill adds changes to the 
Measure 5 Compassionate Care Act, that was passed on the ballot in November. These changes 
were added by the Legislature because of procedural, technical, and regulatory changes that were 
needed by state agencies and the office of the US Attorney General. No recommendation has come 
out of committee yet . 

A house bill to allow North Dakotans to vote on allowing casinos across the state in the 2018 
general election failed on the floor on March 23rd. This bill was widely debated across the state and 
amended from state owned casinos to a much shorter version that would have state regulated 
casinos. This bill was intentioned to allow voters be involved in the process if they would like to see 
casinos in the state. 

Republicans in the Senate and House brought forward a bill that will bring more 
transparency to campaign finance contributions. This bill passed through the Senate at the end of 
February and is going through amendments in the House Government and Veteran Affa irs 
committee. There will be a recommendation by the policy committee early next week and will be 
voted on the House floor shortly after. 

The "Constitutional carry" bill that allows citizens to carry a concealed weapon without a 
permit, passed through the House prior to crossover and was on the floor of the Senate this week. 
The Senate also passed this bill with a margin of 34-13. The bill was on the Governor's desk this 
week and Burgum signed it into law. North Dakota will be the 14th state to recognize permitless 
carrying. 

We will be finishing policy bills this upcoming week and will begin conference committees 
the following week. 
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Hearing Schedule (March 27-31) 
Hearings of bills being tracked by the North Dakota Water Users Association for the next week are 
included in this report. We are tracking these bills because they have a direct or indirect impact on 
water issues. 
 
I.       This Week at the Legislature 
There are a few hearings on next week’s schedule as most policy committees finished hearing bills 
this week. Remaining bills will likely be moved out of policy committees next week with the final 
deadline of April 6. The heavy lifting remains with the Appropriations Committees as they continue 
hearings on agency bills and rereferred bills from policy committees, along with significant 
committee work. Conference committees may start next week. 
 
SB 2146 passed unanimously on the House floor on Monday, March 20. The bill increases the public 
improvement bidding threshold from $100,000 to $150,000. The current bid threshold was last 
increased in 1997. Last session, the engineering/architect threshold was increased from $100,000 to 
$150,000. 
 
SB 2236 passed on the House floor on Monday, March 20 with a vote of 80-11. The bill instructs the 
agriculture commissioner to establish a program to provide technical assistance and support to 
surface owners and surface tenants on pipeline restoration and follow up support to surface owners 
and surface tenants on pipeline reclamation. 
 
HB 1054 was heard before the Senate Appropriations Committee on Tuesday, March 21. Introduced 
by Rep. Jeff Delzer, the bill relates to the cancellation of unexpended appropriations. The new 
language gives clarity to carry over fund authority. The majority leaders of the Senate and House of 
Representatives and the chairmen of the Senate and House Appropriations Committees with the 
Office of Budget and Management may continue appropriations or balances in force for not more 
than two years after the expiration of the biennial period. The Office of Management and Budget 
must provide the appropriation continuation requests to the legislative council one week prior to the 
meeting where requests are considered. The committee took no action at the time of the hearing. 
 
SB 2280 failed on the House floor on Monday, March 20 and was later reconsidered and then passed 
on the House floor on Tuesday, March 21. The bill was reconsidered again, and failed on the House 
floor on Wednesday, March 22 with a vote of 42-49. The bill would have allowed cities to levy taxes 
for emergency purposes, such as snow removal, natural disasters and other emergency conditions, 
based on the population of the city.  
 
SB 2147 passed unanimously on the House floor on Tuesday, March 21. The bill eliminates the 
double bond issue that faces contractors today. The new bill language makes it explicitly clear that 
the construction manager would carry a bond that is at least equal to the cost of the guaranteed 
maximum price of the project. The subcontractors would not be required to carry a bond. 
 
SB 2270 passed on the House floor on Tuesday, March 21 with a 78-14 vote. The bill authorizes 
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GDCD and LAWA to work with the N.D. Public Finance Authority to finance various projects. The 
bill also eliminates public hearings if the board receives written consent from each affected 
landowner to the levy assessments. 
 
HB 1339 passed on the Senate floor on Tuesday, March 21 with a 46-1 vote. Introduced by Rep. 
Kathy Skroch, the bill relates to notification and appeal process for special assessments levied for 
water drainage projects. In section one, the bill was amended to change the publication of the 
assessment from two successive weeks to three successive weeks and the hearing date cannot be 
scheduled less than 30 days from the mailing notice, opposed to the original 20 day requirement. In 
section two, the requirement for appeals of assessment projects to the state engineer was decreased 
from 25 percent to 15 percent. Section three dictates publishing notice of the hearing in the official 
county newspaper once per week for three consecutive weeks beginning at least three days before the 
hearing. The notification that is mailed to landowners must be clearly marked as an assessment 
notice.  
 
HB 1336 passed unanimously on the Senate floor on Tuesday, March 21. The bill defines procedures 
of environmental or health safety audits.  
 
HB 1055 passed on the Senate floor on Tuesday, March 21 with a 34-13 vote. This bill increases the 
revenue bond authority of water resource districts from $10 million to $50 million. 
 
HB 1165 was heard before the Senate Appropriations Committee on Wednesday, March 22. 
Introduced by Rep. Toman, the bill relates to transparency of state grants. The committee reported 
back a unanimous do not pass recommendation. 
 
HB 1322 passed unanimously on the Senate floor on Wednesday, March 21. The bill relates to 
authority and procedure when financing special improvements and township bonding authority.  
 
SB 2262 passed on the House floor on Wednesday, March 21 with an 82-11 vote. The bill prevents a 
city, county or township to enact new or enforce existing fertilizer regulations.  
 

VII.     II.        E-mail Version of Weekly Legislative Reports 
 

If you receive this by mail or fax, but have e-mail, please send your email to Julie at 
ndwaterusers@btinet.net, and you can receive it by e-mail. 

 
IV. III.       How to Contact Your Legislators 

 
During a legislative session, a legislator can be reached at the State Capitol through e-mail or by 
leaving a message with the legislative telephone message center at (888) NDLEGIS (635-3447). 
That number can also be used to obtain information on bills under consideration. A legislator can 
also be reached by mail or e-mail and address rosters are posted at 
http://www.legis.nd.gov/contact-information. 

 
Addressing Mail Correspondence 
 To a Senator:     To a Representative: 
 Honorable (full name)    Honorable (full name) 
 State Senator     State Representative 
 600 E Boulevard Ave    600 E Boulevard Ave 
 Bismarck, ND 58505    Bismarck, ND 58505 
 Dear Senator (last name)   Dear Representative (last name) 
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IV.  2017 Legislative Deadlines and Dates 
 
Date Topic 
April 14 Good Friday 
May 1  Session is limited to 80 legislative days  
 
V. HEARING SCHE DULE: Mar ch 27-31, 2017  
 

The Senate Appropriations Subcommittee, which consists of Sen. Gary A. Lee, Sen. Ray Holmberg, 
Sen. Ronald Sorvaag and Sen. Larry J. Robinson, met twice this week and plans to meet again next 
week to continue work on HB 1020, the State Water Commission appropriation bill. Meeting times are 
as follows:  
 
Date Time Room 
Tuesday, March 28 10:00 a.m. Harvest 
Wednesday, March 29 10:00 a.m. Harvest 
Thursday, March 30 10:00 a.m. Harvest 
Friday, March 31 10:00 a.m.  Harvest 
 
VI.       Legislative Bills Tracked (To Date) 
 

Bill  Short Title House Senate 
HB 1009 Agriculture Commissioner Appropriation PASSED  
HB 1017 Game and Fish Department Appropriation  PASSED  
HB 1020 State Water Commission Appropriation  PASSED  
HB 1026 Underground Facilities Before Excavation  PASSED PASSED 
HB 1054 Cancellation of Unexpected Appropriations  PASSED  
HB 1055 Revenue Bond Indebtedness Limit for WRD  PASSED PASSED 
HB 1106 Definitions of Disasters and Emergencies  PASSED PASSED 
HB 1111 Metro Flood Diversion Authority   PASSED PASSED 
HB 1165 Transparency of State Grants  PASSED  
HB 1191 Loans for Political Subdivisions  PASSED PASSED  
HB 1199 Definition of Sovereign Lands  PASSED  
HB 1244 Authority of County Commissioners to Approve Quick Take 

Eminent Domain  
PASSED  

HB 1322 Township Bonding Authority PASSED PASSED 
HB 1336 Environmental or Health Safety Audits  PASSED PASSED 
HB 1339 Notice, Appeals, and Refunds of Special Assessments PASSED PASSED 
HB 1345 Open Record and Meeting Laws  PASSED  
HB 1361 Limitations of Property Tax Levies  PASSED  
HB 1367 Personal Watercraft and Towing an Individual on Water Skies   PASSED 
HB 1374 Contracts & Financial Assistance for Water Projects/Duties of 

the State Engineer 
PASSED  

HB 1385 Municipal Refunding Bonds  PASSED PASSED 
HB 1390 Limitation on County Authority and Subsurface Drains  PASSED  
HB 1409 Well Water Testing  PASSED PASSED 
SB 2047  Quick Take Eminent Domain   PASSED 
SB 2134 Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Project Dams   PASSED  
SB 2142 Construction Manager At-Risk Subcontractor Bids  PASSED PASSED 
SB 2146 Public Improvement Bid and Bond Thresholds  PASSED PASSED 
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SB 2147 Bond Requirements for Public Improvements  PASSED PASSED 
SB 2168 Public Improvements  PASSED  
SB 2178 Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund PASSED PASSED 
SB 2236 Pipeline Restoration and Reclamation Oversight Program  PASSED PASSED 
SB 2239 Annual Inspections for Watercraft for Hire  PASSED  
SB 2245 Listing Parcels Under Control of Certain State Entities Use as 

Wetlands Mitigation  
 PASSED  

SB 2262 Fertilizer Regulation by Cities, Counties, or Townships  PASSED  
SB 2263 Subsurface Drainage Permits   PASSED 
SB 2269 Powers of LAWA & GDCD   PASSED PASSED 
SB 2270 Financing Options for the GDCD  PASSED  
SB 2308 Identification of Ice Fish houses and Coyote Snares PASSED  
SB 2327 Creation of the Department of Environmental Quality   PASSED 
HCR 
3019 

Exercise nondiscrimination in public land management and 
return the land no longer required for the Pick-Sloan Missouri 
Basin Project dam at Lake Sakakawea to the citizens of the 
United States. 

PASSED  

HCR 
3021 

Allow the utilization of the Garrison Diversion Unit facilities, 
including the McClusky Canal and the Snake Creek pumping 
plant, as a water supply for eastern and central North Dakota, 
irrigation, and for all other authorized project purposes, and not 
deauthorize or repurpose any part of the Garrison Diversion Unit 
and to allow the Continuation of the Garrison Diversion project 
canal system to aid in the delivery of water to the Red River 
Valley. 

  PASSED 

 
VIII.     Legislative Bills Failed (To Date)  
 

Bill  Short Title House Senate 
HB 1114 License Fees for Plumbers and Sewer and Water Installers FAILED  
HB 1162 Competition between the Government and Private Industry PASSED FAILED 
HB 1168 Reimbursement for Public Employees FAILED  
HB 1298 Prohibiting Contracting Lobbyists FAILED  
HB 1326 Local Property Tax Incentives from Impacted Municipalities FAILED  
HB 1331 Inspection of Septic Systems FAILED  
HB 1349 Pipeline Leak Detection Equipment Depreciation Expenses  FAILED  
HB 1351 Approval of Special Assessments by Elected Governing Bodies PASSED FAILED 
HB 1393 Assessments by Water Resource Districts FAILED  
HB 1416 Definition of Cleaning Out and Repairing of Drain FAILED  
SB 2227 Nonresident Waterfowl Hunting Licenses FAILED  
SB 2229 Appointments to the Red River Basin Commission FAILED  
SB 2259 Nonresident Waterfowl Hunting Licenses  FAILED PASSED 
SB 2280 City Levy Authority for Emergency Purposes FAILED PASSED 
SB 2331 Protecting Groundwater & Mineral Developer Responsibilities  FAILED  
SB 2332 Valuation of Property for Just Compensation  FAILED 
HCR3020 Allow the Continuation of the Garrison Diversion project canal 

system to aid in the delivery of water to the Red River Valley. 
PASSED FAILED  
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Current Status Report  
NDWUA 

March 24, 2017 
  
Bill Status Title 

HB 1009  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/23 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Appropriations 
Committee  
03/10 S Committee 
Hearing - 08:30 AM 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the 
expenses of the agriculture commissioner.  

HB 1017  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/23 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Appropriations 
Committee  
03/16 S Committee 
Hearing - 02:00 PM 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the 
expenses of the game and fish department.  

HB 1020  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/23 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Appropriations 
Committee  
03/16 S Committee 
Hearing - 08:30 AM 

Relating to industrial use of fresh water dispensed for oil and gas 
industry users; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 57-51.1-
07, section 61-02-02, subsection 1 of section 61-02-78, and sections 
61-02-79 and 61-40-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the allocation of moneys in the oil extraction tax development fund, 
definitions, the infrastructure revolving loan fund, a Bank of North 
Dakota line of credit, and water rates of the western area water supply 
authority; to provide for a legislative management study; to provide 
for a state engineer study; to provide for a report to the legislative 
management; to provide legislative intent; to designate funding; to 
provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state water 
commission; and to provide exemptions.  

HB 1026  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/10 H Signed by 
Governor 03/09  
03/13 Filed with 
Secretary Of State 03/09 

Relating to survey of areas having underground facilities; to amend 
and reenact sections 49-23-01, 49-23-03, 49-23-04, 49-23-05, and 49-
23-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to location of 
underground facilities before excavation; and to provide a penalty.  

HB 1054  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/20 S Introduced, first 
reading, (emergency), 
referred Appropriations 
Committee  
03/21 S Committee 
Hearing - 08:30 AM 

Relating to the cancellation of unexpended appropriations; and to 
declare an emergency.  
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HB 1055  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/23 S Signed by 
President  
03/23 H Signed by 
Speaker 

Relating to the aggregate total outstanding revenue bond indebtedness 
limit for water resource districts.   

HB 1106  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/10 H Signed by 
Governor 03/09  
03/13 Filed with 
Secretary Of State 03/09 

Relating to definitions of disasters and emergencies.  

HB 1111  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/10 H Signed by 
Governor 03/09  
03/13 Filed with 
Secretary Of State 03/09 

Relating to agreements with the metro flood diversion authority; and 
to declare an emergency.  

HB 1165  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
03/22 S Committee 
Hearing - 10:30 AM  
03/23 S Reported back, 
do not pass, placed on 
calendar 14 0 0 

Relating to transparency of state grants; and to amend and reenact 
section 54-60.1-01, subdivision g of subsection 3 of section 54-60.1-
03, and section 54-60.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to transparency of state grants.  

HB 1191  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/14 H Signed by 
Governor 03/13  
03/16 Filed with 
Secretary Of State 03/13 

Relating to loans for political subdivisions.  

HB 1199  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/22 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred Energy 
and Natural Resources 
Committee  
03/17 S Committee 
Hearing - 09:00 AM 

Relating to the definition of subsurface minerals; and to amend and 
reenact subsection 3 of section 61-33-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the definition of sovereign lands.  

HB 1244  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/23 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred Energy 
and Natural Resources 
Committee  

Relating to the authority of boards of county commissioners to 
approve the exercise of the power of quick take eminent domain by 
water resource boards; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of 
section 61-16.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the 
authority of water resource boards to exercise the power of quick take 
eminent domain.  
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03/17 S Committee 
Hearing - 10:00 AM 

HB 1322  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/22 S Second reading, 
passed, yeas 47 nays 0  
03/23 H Returned to 
House 

Relating to township bonding authority.  

HB 1336  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/23 S Signed by 
President  
03/23 H Signed by 
Speaker 

Relating to environmental or health safety audits; and to provide a 
penalty.  

HB 1339  House: INTRODUCED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/21 S Second reading, 
passed as amended, yeas 
46 nays 1  
03/22 H Returned to 
House (12) 

Relating to notice, appeals, and refunds of special assessments.  

HB 1345  House: INTRODUCED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/09 S Emergency 
clause carried  
03/10 H Returned to 
House (12) 

Relating to open record and meeting laws; to amend and reenact 
subsection 11 of section 12.1-34-02, section 12.1-35-03, subsection 9 
of section 44-04-17.1, subsections 2, 4, and 7 of section 44-04-18, 
subsection 2 of section 44-04-18.1, subsection 6 of section 44-04-
18.7, section 44-04-18.20, subsections 5, 6, and 9 of section 44-04-
19.1, subsections 3 and 5 of section 44-04-20, section 44-04-21.1, and 
subsection 4 of section 57-40.6-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to open record and meeting laws; and to declare an 
emergency.  

HB 1361  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/17 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Finance and Taxation 
Committee  
03/15 S Committee 
Hearing - 10:30 AM 

Relating to limitations of property tax levies by taxing districts 
without voter approval; to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 
15.1-27-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
determination of school district state aid payments; to provide an 
effective date; and to provide an expiration date.  

HB 1367  House: INTRODUCED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/14 S Emergency 
clause carried  
03/15 H Returned to 
House (12) 

Relating to personal watercraft and towing an individual on water 
skies or similar devices; to provide a penalty; and to declare an 
emergency.  

HB 1374  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/21 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred Energy 

Relating to contracts and financial assistance for water projects and 
duties of the state engineer; and to amend and reenact sections 61-02-
01.3, 61-02-01.4, 61-02-02, 61-02-04, 61-02-07, and 61-02-08, 
subsection 1 of section 61-02-14, and subsection 4 of section 61-02-
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and Natural Resources 
Committee  
03/03 S Committee 
Hearing - 09:00 AM 

62 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions of types 
of financial assistance for water projects and the composition and 
operation of the state water commission.  

HB 1385  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/21 H Sent to 
Governor  
03/23 H Signed by 
Governor 03/22 

Relating to municipal refunding bonds.  

HB 1390  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/22 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Agriculture Committee  
03/10 S Committee 
Hearing - 09:00 AM 

Relating to a limitation on county authority and subsurface water 
management on land that qualifies for prevented planting insurance 
coverage; to amend and reenact sections 61-16-07, 61-16-08, and 61-
16-09 and subsection 8 of section 61-16.1-09 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to water resource district board members and 
subsurface water management projects; and to provide for a 
legislative management study.  

HB 1409  House: PASSED  
Senate: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/21 H Sent to 
Governor  
03/23 H Signed by 
Governor 03/22 

Relating to well water testing preceding subsurface mineral 
production and liability for damages to water supplies.  

SB 2047  Senate: PASSED  
House: INTRODUCED  
02/09 H Introduced, first 
reading, referred Energy 
and Natural Resources 
Committee  
03/02 H Committee 
Hearing - 09:00 AM 

Relating to the authority of water resource boards to exercise the 
power of quick take eminent domain.  

SB 2134  Senate: PASSED  
House: INTRODUCED  
02/22 H Introduced, first 
reading, referred Energy 
and Natural Resources 
Committee  
03/10 H Committee 
Hearing - 09:00 AM 

Relating to the ownership of minerals inundated by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams.  

SB 2142  Senate: PASSED  
House: PASSED  
03/21 S Signed by 
President  
03/22 S Sent to 
Governor 

Relating to construction manager at-risk subcontractor bids.  

SB 2146  Senate: PASSED  Relating to public improvement bid and bond thresholds.  
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House: PASSED  
03/22 S Signed by 
President  
03/23 S Sent to 
Governor 

SB 2147  Senate: PASSED  
House: PASSED  
03/23 H Signed by 
Speaker  
03/23 S Signed by 
President 

Relating to bond requirements for public improvements.  

SB 2168  Senate: INTRODUCED  
House: PASSED  
03/17 H Second reading, 
passed as amended, yeas 
93 nays 0  
03/20 S Returned to 
Senate (12) 

Relating to public improvements.  

SB 2178  Senate: PASSED  
House: PASSED  
Governor: SIGNED  
03/22 S Signed by 
Governor 03/21  
03/23 Filed with 
Secretary Of State 03/22 

Relating to the infrastructure revolving loan fund; and to declare an 
emergency.  

SB 2236  Senate: PASSED  
House: PASSED  
03/22 S Signed by 
President  
03/23 S Sent to 
Governor 

Relating to the pipeline restoration and reclamation oversight 
program and records of program participants.  

SB 2239  Senate: INTRODUCED  
House: PASSED  
03/07 H Emergency 
clause carried  
03/08 S Returned to 
Senate (12) 

Relating to fees charged for watercraft for hire; to repeal section 20.1-
13-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to annual 
inspections for watercraft for hire; and to declare an emergency.   

SB 2245  Senate: PASSED  
House: INTRODUCED  
02/22 H Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Agriculture Committee  
03/17 H Committee 
Hearing - 09:30 AM 

Relating to listing parcels under the control of certain state entities for 
use as wetlands mitigation.  

SB 2262  Senate: INTRODUCED  
House: PASSED  
03/22 H Second reading, 
passed as amended, yeas 

Relating to fertilizer regulation by cities, counties, or townships.  
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82 nays 11  
03/23 S Returned to 
Senate (12) 

SB 2263  Senate: PASSED  
House: INTRODUCED  
03/01 H Introduced, first 
reading, referred 
Agriculture Committee  
03/16 H Committee 
Hearing - 09:00 AM 

Relating to subsurface water management system permits.  

SB 2269  Senate: PASSED  
House: PASSED  
03/23 S Concurred  
03/23 S Second reading, 
passed, yeas 47 nays 0 

Relating to authorization of a state Red River valley water supply 
project; and to amend and reenact sections 61-24-27, 61-24.7-05, 61-
39-01, 61-39-02, 61-39-03, 61-39-04, 61-39-05, 61-39-11, and 61-39-
16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers of the 
Lake Agassiz water authority and funding for the Red River valley 
water supply project.  

SB 2270  Senate: INTRODUCED  
House: PASSED  
03/21 H Second reading, 
passed as amended, yeas 
78 nays 14  
03/22 S Returned to 
Senate (12) 

Relating to financing options for the Garrison Diversion Conservancy 
District and notice of assessments.  

SB 2280  Senate: PASSED  
House: DEFEATED  
03/22 H Reconsidered  
03/22 H Second reading, 
failed to pass, yeas 42 
nays 49 

Relating to city levy authority for emergency purposes; and to 
provide an effective date.  

SB 2308  Senate: INTRODUCED  
House: PASSED  
03/16 H Second reading, 
passed as amended, yeas 
90 nays 2  
03/17 S Returned to 
Senate (12) 

Relating to identification of fishhouses and coyote snares.  

SB 2327  Senate: PASSED  
House: INTRODUCED  
03/16 H Committee 
Hearing - 08:00 AM  
03/16 H Committee 
Hearing - 02:00 PM 

Relating to the creation of the department of environmental quality, 
the transfer of duties and responsibilities of the state department of 
health relating to environmental quality to the department of 
environmental quality, and biennial reports of the department of 
environmental quality; to amend and reenact section 4-35.2-01, 
subdivision b of subsection 5 of section 6-09.4-03, sections 11-33-01, 
11-33-02.1, and 11-33-22, subdivision d of subsection 2 of section 
12.1-06.1-01, section 15-05-16, subsection 1 of section 19-01-01, 
sections 20.1-13-05, 20.1-17-01, and 23-01-02, subsection 8 of 
section 23-01.3-01, sections 23-20.2-02, 23-20.2-03, and 24-03-23, 
subsection 5 of section 28-32-50, sections 38-08-04.5, 38-11.1-03.1, 
38-11.1-04.1, and 38-11.2-02, subsection 12 of section 38-14.1-03, 
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subsection 2 of section 38-14.1-21, sections 38-22-07, 38-22-12, 40-
47-01, 43-18-02, 43-18-09, 43-35-03, 43-35-19, 43-35-19.1, 43-35-
19.2, 43-35-20, and 43-35-23, subsection 11 of section 43-48-03, 
subsection 6 of section 43-62-03, subsection 3 of section 44-04-18.4, 
section 44-04-32, subsection 1 of section 54-07-01.2, subsection 3 of 
section 54-12-08, section 54-44.3-30, subsection 33 of section 57-
43.2-01, sections 58-03-11, 58-03-11.1, and 58-03-17, subsection 13 
of section 58-06-01, section 61-04.1-04, subsections 1 and 2 of 
section 61-28-02, sections 61-28-03 and 61-28-05, subsection 2 of 
section 61-28.1-02, subsection 15 of section 61-28.1-03, subsection 2 
of section 61-28.2-01, and sections 61-29-04, 61-33-09, and 61-35-24 
of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the transfer of duties 
and responsibilities of the state department of health to the 
department of environmental quality; to repeal chapters 19-10 and 19-
16.1, sections 23-01-01.2, 23-01-04.1, 23-01-23, 23-01-30, and 23-
01-36 and chapters 23-20, 23-20.1, 23-20.3, 23-20.5, 23-25, 23-26, 
23-29, 23-29.1, 23-31, 23-32, 23-33, 23-37, and 39-26 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to the transfer of duties and 
responsibilities of the state department of health to the department of 
environmental quality; to provide a penalty; to provide a continuing 
appropriation; to provide for transition; and to provide an effective 
date.  

HCR 3019  House: PASSED  
Senate: INTRODUCED  
02/23 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred Energy 
and Natural Resources 
Committee  
03/09 S Committee 
Hearing - 02:30 PM 

A concurrent resolution directing the United States Department of the 
Interior to exercise nondiscrimination in public land management and 
return the land no longer required for the Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin 
Project dam at Lake Sakakawea to the citizens of the United States.  

HCR 3021  House: INTRODUCED  
Senate: PASSED  
03/13 S Second reading, 
adopted as amended  
03/14 H Returned to 
House (12) 

A concurrent resolution urging Congress and the President of the 
United States to fulfill the federal government's promises to North 
Dakota, allow the utilization of the Garrison Diversion Unit facilities, 
including the McClusky Canal and the Snake Creek pumping plant, 
as a water supply for eastern and central North Dakota, irrigation, and 
for all other authorized project purposes, not deauthorize or repurpose 
any part of the Garrison Diversion Unit, and to allow the continuation 
of the Garrison Diversion project canal system to aid the delivery of 
water to the Red River Valley.  
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17.0505.02000

Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Appropriations Committee

A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 61-02 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, relating to industrial use of fresh water dispensed for oil and gas industry users; 

to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 57-51.1-07, section 61-02-02, subsection 1 of 

section 61-02-78, and sections 61-02-79 and 61-40-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to the allocation of moneys in the oil extraction tax development fund, definitions, the 

infrastructure revolving loan fund, a Bank of North Dakota line of credit, and water rates of the 

western area water supply authority; to provide for a legislative management study; to provide 

for a state engineer study; to provide for a report to the legislative management; to provide 

legislative intent; to designate funding; to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of 

the state water commission; and to provide exemptions.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds 

as may be necessary, are appropriated from special funds derived from federal funds and other 

income, to the state water commission for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the state 

water commission, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019, as 

follows:

Adjustments or

Base Level Enhancements Appropriation

Administrative and support services $5,535,618 $100,154 $5,635,772

Water and atmospheric resources 863,400,218 (127,322,401) 736,077,817

Total all funds $868,935,836 ($127,222,247) $741,713,589

Full-time equivalent positions 97.00 (4.00) 93.00
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SECTION 2. HEALTH INSURANCE INCREASE. The appropriation in section 1 of this Act 

includes the sum of $277,612 of other funds, for increases in employee health insurance 

premiums from $1,130 to $1,249 per month.

SECTION 3. SOVEREIGN LANDS ENFORCEMENT GRANT. The administrative and 

support services line item in section 1 of this Act includes $135,000 from the resources trust 

fund which the state water commission shall provide as a grant to the game and fish 

department for law enforcement activities on sovereign lands in the state for the biennium 

beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.

SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL INCOME - APPROPRIATION - BUDGET SECTION 

APPROVAL. In addition to the amounts appropriated in section 1 of this Act, any additional 

amounts in the resources trust fund and water development trust fund which become available 

are appropriated, subject to budget section approval, to the state water commission for the 

purpose of defraying the expenses of that agency, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and 

ending June 30, 2019.

SECTION 5. OIL AND GAS INDUSTRY FRESH WATER ROYALTY INCOME - 

APPROPRIATION - REPORT. In addition to the amounts appropriated in section 1 of this Act, 

there is appropriated from oil and gas industry fresh water royalty income deposited in the 

resources trust fund, the sum of $8,300,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to 

the state water commission for the purpose of repaying state-guaranteed loans, which were 

made to entities that sell fresh water to oil and gas industry users, for the biennium beginning 

July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. The state water commission shall notify the legislative 

management's water topics overview committee of any funding made available and payments 

made pursuant to this section.

SECTION 6. GRANTS - WATER-RELATED PROJECTS - CARRYOVER AUTHORITY. 

Section 54-44.1-11 does not apply to funding for grants or water-related projects included in the 

water and atmospheric resources line item in section 1 of this Act. However, this exclusion is 

only in effect for two years after June 30, 2019. Any unexpended funds appropriated from the 

resources trust fund after that period has expired must be transferred to the resources trust fund 

and any unexpended funds appropriated from the water development trust fund after that period 

has expired must be transferred to the water development trust fund.
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SECTION 7. STATE WATER COMMISSION PROJECT FUNDING DESIGNATIONS - 

TRANSFERS - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL. 

1. Of the funds appropriated in the water and atmospheric resources line item in section 

1 of this Act from funds available in the resources trust fund and water development 

trust fund, $299,875,000 is designated as follows:

a. $30,000,000 for rural water supply projects;

b. $44,125,000 for municipal water supply projects;

c. $58,000,000 for regional water supply projects;

d. $1,000,000 for water conveyance projects;

e. $150,000,000 for flood control or protection projects;

f. $750,000 for irrigation projects; and

g. $16,000,000 for general water management.

2. The funding designated in this section is for the specific purposes identified; however, 

the state water commission may transfer funding among these items, subject to 

budget section approval and upon notification to the legislative management's water 

topics overview committee.

SECTION 8. NORTHWEST AREA WATER SUPPLY PROJECT FUNDING. Any funding 

provided by the state water commission for the northwest area water supply project must be 

from funds made available through the line of credit authorized in section 18 of this Act before 

any other funds may be provided by the state water commission for the project during the 

biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019.

SECTION 9. LOAN AUTHORIZATION - APPROPRIATION - MINOT FLOOD CONTROL 

PROJECT FUNDING. The state water commission may obtain a loan from the Bank of North 

Dakota in an amount not to exceed $110,000,000, the sum of which is appropriated to the state 

water commission for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the construction of phase one 

through phase four of the Minot flood control project, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, 

and ending June 30, 2019. The terms and conditions of the loan must be negotiated by the 

state water commission and the Bank of North Dakota, and the repayment of principal and 

interest on the loan must be from revenues deposited in the resources trust fund.

SECTION 10. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - MINOT FLOOD CONTROL PROJECT FUNDING. 

Except for the funding appropriated in section 9 of this Act, it is the intent of the sixty-fifth 
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legislative assembly that the state water commission not provide any additional funding for flood 

control projects within the city limits of Minot during the 2019-21, 2021-23, and 2023-25 

bienniums.

SECTION 11. WESTERN AREA WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY - BANK OF NORTH 

DAKOTA LOAN - REPORTS. The Bank of North Dakota shall consolidate the $40,000,000 loan 

to the western area water supply authority authorized in section 5 of chapter 20 of the 2013 

Session Laws, the $50,000,000 loan to the western area water supply authority authorized in 

section 2 of chapter 500 of the 2011 Session Laws, and the $19,500,000 loan from funds 

appropriated to the state water commission from the resources trust fund in section 1 of 

chapter 20 of the 2013 Session Laws. The terms and conditions of the consolidation loan must 

be negotiated by the western area water supply authority and the Bank of North Dakota. If the 

authority defaults on its payment of principal or interest on the consolidation loan from the Bank 

of North Dakota authorized by this section, the authority is subject to the default provisions 

under section 61-40-09. The Bank of North Dakota shall report the terms of the consolidation 

loan upon its completion to the legislative management's water topics overview committee 

during the 2017-18 interim. The western area water supply authority shall provide its quarterly 

financial statements and industrial sales to the legislative council for the legislative 

management's water topics overview committee's review during the 2017-18 interim.

SECTION 12. WESTERN AREA WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY DEBT SERVICE 

SHORTFALL - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL. If the western area water supply authority 

defaults on its payment of the principal or interest on the consolidation loan provided for in 

section 11 of this Act, the Bank of North Dakota shall notify the legislative council, and the state 

water commission shall provide a payment, subject to budget section approval, to the Bank of 

North Dakota in an amount of the default as certified to the budget section by the Bank of North 

Dakota.

SECTION 13. STATE ENGINEER - FLOOD HAZARD RISK MANAGEMENT STUDY - 

ADDITIONAL INCOME - APPROPRIATION. The water and atmospheric resources line item in 

section 1 of this Act includes $50,000, for the purpose of conducting a flood hazard risk 

management framework study and demonstration in section 14 of this Act, for the biennium 

beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. The state engineer may seek funding from 

federal, local, and private sector co-funding partnerships. Any fees collected from data users 
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and partners and any other funds from public or private sources, including federal grants and 

county revenue contributions, are appropriated to the state engineer for the study and for 

expanding the project to additional counties for the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and 

ending June 30, 2019.

SECTION 14. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - FLOOD HAZARD RISK 

MANAGEMENT. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall study issues 

related to the state's development of a statewide flood hazard risk management framework by 

granting authority to the state engineer to perform a study and proof of concept demonstration 

to implement statewide flood risk management capabilities for assessing, managing, and 

reducing property-specific flood risk.

1. In performing the study and proof of concept demonstration, the state engineer may 

leverage, coordinate, and partner with the North Carolina floodplain mapping program 

and with Cass, Ward, Richland, and Burleigh Counties and other counties to conduct 

the study and proof of concept demonstration. The state engineer shall acquire and 

leverage data necessary to support the study and proof of concept demonstration 

including:

a. Footprints and elevations from current and future light detection and ranging data 

collections that meet federal emergency management agency risk mapping, 

assessment, and planning standards;

b. First floor elevations and elevation certificates from local planning and zoning 

offices or light detection and ranging data;

c. Parcel, address, and imagery data necessary for individual property flood hazard 

identification, assessment, and reduction; and

d. Any other data the state engineer deems necessary to meet the objectives in 

creating the database.

2. To complete the pilot project, the state engineer shall:

a. Construct and maintain flood hazard and risk data in a spatial, relational 

database;

b. Disseminate flood hazard and risk data through a digital display environment 

prompted through dynamic querying;
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c. Coordinate, incentivize, and partner with a least one county to obtain the 

necessary parcel data and other data needed for this study and serve as the 

repository for the property flood risk dataset;

d. Establish a technical committee consisting of federal, state, local, and private 

sector stakeholders and providers to the greatest extent possible to allow data 

sharing, coordination, synergy, and partnering;

e. Work with the North Carolina floodplain mapping program to incorporate the 

property risk dataset into the multistate flood risk information system maintained 

by North Carolina, augment the dataset with federal emergency management 

agency digital flood insurance data, and assess any data or other gaps 

preventing this state's full use of the system;

f. Make the data publicly available on the state water commission's website in an 

easily accessible and useable format;

g. Provide technical assistance to data users, including reports and analysis as 

needed; and

h. Work with the federal emergency management agency and study counties to 

enable the communities and property owners to use the elevation, light detection 

and ranging, and other data provided on the website to submit letters of map 

amendment or revision to the federal emergency management agency.

3. The state engineer shall report to the legislative management as requested by the 

legislative management. At the conclusion of the study, the state engineer shall 

provide the following information to the legislative management:

a. A description of the engineer's current cooperative technical flood mapping 

partnership with the federal emergency management agency and any additional 

authority, staffing, and funding required to create a fully independent and 

self-sustaining state flood mapping program in lieu of the federal emergency 

management agency program, including the processing of letters of map change;

b. A detailed estimate of overall program costs and flood risk reductions of a 

self-sustaining state flood mapping program; and

c. A county-by-county assessment of the private, county, state, and federal data and 

resources that are currently available as compared to the resources that would 
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be required to fully use North Carolina's flood risk information system for flood 

risk management, including recommendations for improvement or the statewide 

expansion of the project established under this study and suggested funding 

mechanisms and alternatives for data dissemination, which may include a 

one-state online repository or the provision of data by local planning and zoning 

offices.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 57-51.1-07 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. Twenty percent must be allocated and credited to the sinking fund established for 

payment of the state of North Dakota water development bonds, southwest pipeline 

series, and any moneys in excess of the sum necessary to maintain the accounts 

within the sinking fund and for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds must 

be credited to a special trust fund, to be known as the resources trust fund. The 

resources trust fund must be established in the state treasury and the funds therein 

must be deposited and invested as are other state funds to earn the maximum amount 

permitted by law which income must be deposited in the resources trust fund. 

FiveThree percent of the amount credited to the resources trust fund must be 

transferred no less than quarterly into the renewable energy development fund, not to 

exceed three million dollars per biennium. One-half of one percent of the amount 

credited to the resources trust fund must be transferred no less than quarterly into the 

energy conservation grant fund not to exceed one million two hundred thousand 

dollars per biennium. The principal and income of the resources trust fund may be 

expended only pursuant to legislative appropriation and are available to:

a. The state water commission for planning for and construction of water-related 

projects, including rural water systems. These water-related projects must be 

those which the state water commission has the authority to undertake and 

construct pursuant to chapter 61-02; and.

b. The industrial commission for the funding of programs for development of 

renewable energy sources; for studies for development of cogeneration systems 

that increase the capacity of a system to produce more than one kind of energy 
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from the same fuel; for studies for development of waste products utilization; and 

for the making of grants and loans in connection therewith.

c. The department of commerce for the funding of programs for development of 

energy conservation and for the making of grants and loans relating to energy 

conservation.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-02. Definitions.

In this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires:

1. "Commission" means the state water commission.

2. "Cost of works" includes:

a. The cost of construction, the cost of all lands, property rights, water rights, 

easements, and franchises acquired which are deemed necessary for such 

construction;

b. The cost of all water rights acquired or exercised by the commission in 

connection with such works;

c. The cost of all machinery and equipment, financing charges, interest prior to and 

during construction and for a period not exceeding three years after the 

completion of construction;

d. The cost of engineering and legal expenses, plans, specifications, surveys, 

estimates of cost, and other expenses necessary or incident to determining the 

feasibility or practicability of any project;

e. Administrative expenses;

f. The construction of the works and the placing of the same in operation; and

g. Such other expenses as may be necessary or incident to the financing authorized 

in this chapter, including funding of debt service, repair and replacement 

reserves, capitalized interest, and the payment of bond issuance costs.

3. "Fresh water" means fresh water of the state drawn from an underground or surface 

source in this state under an industrial use water permit, whether treated or untreated, 

and dispensed to an oil and gas industry user.
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4. "Oil and gas industry user" means an enterprise engaged in exploration, drilling, or 

production of oil and gas, and includes businesses that transport water for use in the 

enterprise.

5. "Owner" includes all individuals, associations, corporations, limited liability companies, 

districts, municipalities, and other political subdivisions of this state having any title or 

interest in any properties, rights, water rights, easements, or franchises to be acquired.

4.6. "Project" means any one of the works defined in subsection 5, or any combination of 

such works, which are physically connected or jointly managed and operated as a 

single unit.

5.7. "Works" includes:

a. All property rights, easements, and franchises relating thereto and deemed 

necessary or convenient for their operation;

b. All water rights acquired and exercised by the commission in connection with 

such works;

c. All means of conserving and distributing water, including without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing two subdivisions, reservoirs, dams, diversion canals, 

distributing canals, channels, lateral ditches, pumping units, mains, pipelines, 

treatment plants, and waterworks systems; and

d. All works for the conservation, control, development, storage, treatment, 

distribution, and utilization of water, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing subdivisions, works for the purpose of irrigation, flood control, watering 

stock, supplying water for public, domestic, industrial, and recreational use, fire 

protection, and the draining of lands injured or in danger of injury as a result of 

such water utilization.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 61-02-78 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. An infrastructure revolving loan fund is established on January 1, 2015, within the 

resources trust fund to provide loans for water supply, flood protection, or other water 

development and water management projects. Ten percent of oil extraction moneys 

deposited in the resources trust fund, not to exceed a total deposit from oil extraction 

moneys of twenty-five million dollars, are made available on a continuing basis for 
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making loans in accordance with this section. Accounts may be established in the 

resources trust fund as necessary for its management and administration.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-79 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-79. Bank of North Dakota - Line of credit.

The Bank of North Dakota shall extend a line of credit not to exceed two hundredseventy-

five million dollars at a rate that may not exceed one and three-quarters percent to the state 

water commission. The state water commission shall repay the line of credit from funds 

available in the resources trust fund, water development trust fund, or other funds, as 

appropriated by the legislative assembly. The state water commission may access the line of 

credit, as necessary, to provide funding as authorized by the legislative assembly for water 

supply projects in suspense, water supply projects identified in section 19 of chapter 54 of the 

2015 session laws, and water supply projects approved before June 30, 20172019, and flood 

control projects that have approval for funding before June 30, 20172019.

SECTION 19. Two new sections to chapter 61-02 of the North Dakota Century Code are 

created and enacted as follows:

Oil and gas industry fresh water royalty.

A royalty of seventy  -  five cents per one thousand gallons [3785.41 liters] is imposed on fresh   

water dispensed to an oil and gas industry user at a privately owned water depot or 

water  -  dispensing point in the state. For each privately owned water depot or water  -  dispensing   

point in this state which dispenses fresh water to an oil and gas industry user, the commission 

shall maintain water  -  metering devices in compliance with rules adopted by the commission.  

Deposit of revenue.

The state water commission shall collect and transfer royalty payments collected under this 

chapter to the resources trust fund for the sole purpose of repaying state  -  guaranteed loans   

made to entities that sell fresh water to oil and gas industry users.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 61-40-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-40-11. Water rates.

The authority shall developindustrial commission shall provide an industrial water depot and 

lateral retail rate and present the rate to the industrial commission for approval. Any industrial 
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water depot and lateral rate adjustment must have approval of the industrial commission before 

going into effectfor the authority which is a competitive, floating, market rate. The authority shall 

develop domestic water rates that must include all costs for operation, maintenance, and 

operating and capital reserves, and debt repayment of all infrastructure managed or constructed 

by the authority, with the exception of the costs identified in section 61-40-10 which are paid for 

by industrial water depot and lateral sales.

SECTION 21. TRANSFER - INFRASTRUCTURE REVOLVING LOAN FUND TO 

RESOURCES TRUST FUND. On July 1, 2017, the state treasurer shall transfer any oil 

extraction moneys exceeding $25,000,000 which have been deposited in the infrastructure 

revolving loan fund from the infrastructure revolving loan fund to the resources trust fund.

SECTION 22. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - WESTERN AREA WATER 

SUPPLY AUTHORITY. During the 2017-18 interim, the legislative management shall study 

whether allowing private persons to lease the western area water supply industrial infrastructure 

and privatizing industrial sales will maximize industrial sales or otherwise be commensurate 

with repaying the western area water supply authority's debt to the state. The study must 

include identification and consideration of the collateral for the debt, the authority's cashflow and 

revenue, the current loan structure and financing stream, the equipment that may be privatized, 

and any other factors that are relevant and necessary to accomplish the objective of the study. 

The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any 

legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-sixth legislative assembly.
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17.0880.03000

Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representatives Schmidt, D. Anderson, J. Nelson, Sanford, Streyle, Zubke

Senators Bekkedahl, Kreun, G. Lee, Luick, Schaible, Sorvaag

A BILL for an Act to create and enact sections 61-02-14.3, 61-02-80, 61-02-81, and a new 

section to chapter 61-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to contracts and financial 

assistance for water projects and duties of the state engineer; and to amend and reenact 

sections 61-02-01.3, 61-02-01.4, 61-02-02, 61-02-04, 61-02-07, and 61-02-08, subsection 1 of 

section 61-02-14, and subsection 4 of section 61-02-62 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to definitions of types of financial assistance for water projects and the composition and 

operation of the state water commission.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-01.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-01.3. Comprehensive water development plan.

Biennially, the commission shall develop and maintain a comprehensive water development 

plan organized on a river basin perspective, including an inventory of future water projects for 

budgeting and planning purposes. As part of the commission's planning process, in order to 

facilitate local project sponsor participation and project prioritization and to assist in project 

cost-benefit analysiseducation regarding life cycle analyses for municipal water supply projects, 

and economic   analyses   for flood control and water conveyance projects expected to cost more 

than fiveseven hundred fifty thousand dollars, the commission shall develop a policy that 

outlines procedures for commissioner-hosted meetings within the Red River, James River, 

Mouse River, upper Missouri River, lower Missouri River, and Devils Lake drainage basins.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-01.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:
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61-02-01.4. State water commission cost-share policy.

The state water commission shall adopt a cost-share policy for the financing of water 

projects. The policy:

1. Must provide a water supply project is eligible for grantsa cost  -  share   up to seventy-five 

percent of the total eligible project costs.

2. May not determine program eligibility of water supply projects based on a population 

growth factor. However, a population growth factor may be used in prioritizing projects 

for that purpose.

3. Must consider all project costs potentially eligible for reimbursement, except the 

commission shall exclude operations expense  , regular maintenance, and   

improvements for water conveyance projects and may exclude operations expense 

and regular maintenance for other projects. The commission shall require a water 

project sponsor to maintain a capital improvement fund from the rates charged 

customers for future extraordinary maintenance projects as condition of funding an 

extraordinary maintenance project.

4. May not determine program eligibility of water supply projects based on affordability. 

However, affordability may be used in prioritizing projects for that purpose.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-02. Definitions.

In this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires:

1. "Commission" means the state water commission.

2. "Cost of works" includes:

a. The cost of construction, the cost of all lands, property rights, water rights, 

easements, and franchises acquired which are deemed necessary for such 

construction;

b. The cost of all water rights acquired or exercised by the commission in 

connection with such works;

c. The cost of all machinery and equipment, financing charges, interest prior to and 

during construction and for a period not exceeding three years after the 

completion of construction;
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d. The cost of engineering and legal expenses, plans, specifications, surveys, 

estimates of cost, and other expenses necessary or incident to determining the 

feasibility or practicability of any project;

e. Administrative expenses;

f. The construction of the works and the placing of the same in operation; and

g. Such other expenses as may be necessary or incident to the financing authorized 

in this chapter, including funding of debt service, repair and replacement 

reserves, capitalized interest, and the payment of bond issuance costs.

3. "Cost  -  share" means funds appropriated by the legislative assembly or otherwise   

transferred by the commission to a local entity under commission policy as 

reimbursement for a percentage of the total approved cost of a project approved by 

the commission.

4. "Economic analysis" means an estimate of economic benefits and direct costs that 

result from the development of a project.

5. "Grant" means a one  -  time sum of money appropriated by the legislative assembly and   

transferred by the commission to a local entity for a particular purpose. A grant is not 

dependent on the local entity providing a particular percentage of the cost of the 

project.

6. "Life cycle analysis" means the summation of all costs associated with the anticipated 

useful life of a project, including project development, land, construction, operation, 

maintenance, and disposal or decommissioning.

7. "Loan" means an amount of money lent to a sponsor of a project approved by the 

commission to assist with funding approved project components. A loan may be 

stand  -  alone financial assistance.  

8. "Owner" includes all individuals, associations, corporations, limited liability companies, 

districts, municipalities, and other political subdivisions of this state having any title or 

interest in any properties, rights, water rights, easements, or franchises to be acquired.

4.9  .  "Project" means any one of the works defined in subsection 5, or any combination of 

such works, which are physically connected or jointly managed and operated as a 

single unit.
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5.10. "Water conveyance project" means any surface or subsurface drainage works, bank 

stabilization, or snagging and clearing of water courses.

11. "Works" includes:

a. All property rights, easements, and franchises relating thereto and deemed 

necessary or convenient for their operation;

b. All water rights acquired and exercised by the commission in connection with 

such works;

c. All means of conserving and distributing water, including without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing two subdivisions, reservoirs, dams, diversion canals, 

distributing canals, channels, lateral ditches, pumping units, mains, pipelines, 

treatment plants, and waterworks systems; and

d. All works for the conservation, control, development, storage, treatment, 

distribution, and utilization of water, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing subdivisions, works for the purpose of irrigation, flood control, watering 

stock, supplying water for public, domestic, industrial, and recreational use, fire 

protection, and the draining of lands injured or in danger of injury as a result of 

such water utilization.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-04. State water commission - Members - Terms - Qualifications.

The state water commission shall consistconsists of the governor, agriculture commissioner, 

and seven other members to be appointed by the governor who shall take into account 

reasonable geographic considerations in making such appointments. The governor or the 

agriculture commissioner, or both, may appoint a representative to serve in that official's 

capacity at such meetings as that official may be unable to attend. Each of the six major 

drainage basins in the state must be represented by at least one commissioner who resides in 

the basin. The major basins are the upper Missouri River basin, the lower Missouri River basin, 

the James River basin, the Red River basin, the Mouse River basin, and the Devils Lake basin. 

The seven appointive members of the commission must be appointed for a term of six years 

each with theirthe terms of office so arranged that two terms and not more than three terms 

expire on the first day of July of each odd-numbered year. Each appointive member must be a 
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qualified elector of the state and is subject to removal by judicial procedure. In case of a 

vacancy, the vacancy must be filled by appointment by the governor for the remainder of the 

unexpired term. Before entering upon the discharge of official duties, each appointive member 

shall take, subscribe, and file with the secretary of state the oath prescribed for civil officers.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-07. Quorum - What constitutes.

A majority of the members of the commission shall constituteconstitutes a quorum, and the 

affirmative or negative vote of five members shall beis necessary to bind the commission except 

for adjournment.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 61-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

61-02-08. Meetings of commission.

The commission may hold meetings at such times andshall hold at least one meeting every 

two months at such places as it, by resolution, may provide. The chairman, or in the chairman's 

absence or disability, the vice chairman of the commission, may issue a call for any meeting at 

any time. The governor, as chairman, shall preside at all meetings of the commission and in 

case of the governor'schairman's absence or disability, the vice chairman shall preside.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 61-02-14 of the North Dakota Century 

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. To investigate, plan, regulate, undertake, construct, establish, maintain, control, 

operate, and supervise all works, dams, and projects, public and private, which in its 

judgment may be necessary or advisable:

a. To control the low-water flow of streams in the state.

b. To impound water for the improvement of municipal, industrial, and rural water 

supplies.

c. To control and regulate floodflow in the streams of the state to minimize the 

damage of such floodwaters.

d. To conserve and develop the waters within the natural watershed areas of the 

state and, subject to vested rights, to divert the waters within a watershed area to 
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another watershed area and the waters of any river, lake, or stream into another 

river, lake, or stream.

e. To improve the channels of the streams for more efficient transportation of the 

available water in the streams.

f. To provide sufficient water flow for the abatement of stream pollution.

g. To develop, restore, and stabilize the waters of the state for domestic, 

agricultural, and municipal needs, irrigation, flood control, recreation, and wildlife 

conservation by the construction and maintenance of dams, reservoirs, and 

diversion canals.

h. To promote the maintenance of existing drainage channels in agricultural lands 

and to construct any needed channels.

i. To provide more satisfactory subsurface water supplies for the municipalities of 

the state.

j. To finance the construction, establishment, operation, and maintenance of public 

and private works, dams, and irrigation projects, which in its judgment may be 

necessary and advisable, except the commission may not provide a cost  -  share   

for the costs of operation and maintenance   or improvement of a water   

conveyance project.

k. To provide for the storage, development, diversion, delivery, and distribution of 

water for the irrigation of agricultural land and supply water for municipal and 

industrial purposes.

l. To provide for the drainage of lands injured by or susceptible of injury from 

excessive rainfall or from the utilization of irrigation water, and subject to the 

limitations prescribed by law, to aid and cooperate with the United States and any 

department, agency, or officer thereof, and with any county, township, drainage 

district, or irrigation district of this state, or of other states, in the construction or 

improvement of such drains.

m. To provide water for stock.

n. To provide water for the generation of electric power and for mining and 

manufacturing purposes.
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SECTION 8. Section 61-02-14.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

as follows:

61  -  02  -  14.3. Commission   agreements - Terms, conditions, and reapplication.  

An agreement for funding which is approved by the commission to fund a water project 

under this chapter may not have a term exceeding four years. If a water project is not 

completed when the   agreement for its funding terminates, the   project sponsor responsible for   

the project may reapply to the commission for another   funding obligation to complete the   

project. The commission shall prioritize the timing of its review of the reapplication.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 61-02-62 of the North Dakota Century 

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. Covenant to fix and establish such prices, rates, and charges for water and other 

services made available in connection with the works or project as to provide at all 

times funds together with other funds the commission may pledge which will be 

sufficient:

a. To pay all costs of operation and maintenance of the works or project, as 

permitted under this chapter, together with necessary repairs thereto;

b. To meet and pay the principal and interest of all the bonds as they severally 

become due and payable; and

c. To create such reserves for the principal and interest of all the bonds and for the 

meeting of contingencies in the operation, repair, replacement, and maintenance 

of the works or project as the commission shall determine.

SECTION 10. Section 61-02-80 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

as follows:

Flood control projects     -     Financial assistance limited.  

For flood control projects, the commission shall calculate the amount of its financial 

assistance, including loans, grants, cost-share, and issuance of bonds, based on the needs for 

protection of health, property, and enterprise against one hundred year flood events or the 

equivalent alternative to the national economic development alternative.

SECTION 11. Section 61-02-81 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted 

as follows:
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Development in   breach inundation zones     -     No financial assistance for dam   

improvements.

If a political subdivision permits building or development within a   breach inundation zone   

and the building or development causes a change in a dam's hazard classification necessitating 

structural improvements or upgrades to the dam, state loans, grants, cost-share, and other 

financial assistance may not be provided to pay for the dam improvements or upgrades.

SECTION 12. A new section to chapter 61-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

and enacted as follows:

Economic analysis process required for certain projects.

The state engineer shall develop an economic analysis process for water conveyance 

projects and flood  -  related projects expected to cost more than seven hundred fifty thousand   

dollars, and a life cycle analysis process for municipal water supply projects. When the state 

water commission is considering whether to fund a water conveyance project  , flood-related   

project, or water supply project, the state engineer shall   review the economic analysis   or life   

cycle analysis, and inform the state water commission of the findings from the   analysis and   

review.
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NOTICE OF MEETING 

The North Dakota State Water Commission, a state agency, has scheduled a meeting 

on March 29, 2016, at 1:00 p.m., Central Daylight Time. The meeting will be held in the 

lower level conference room at the State Office Building, 900 East Boulevard Avenue, 

Bismarck, North Dakota. 

At the time this notice is being prepared, the North Dakota State Water Commission 

anticipates the agenda of its meeting to include those topics as listed on the agenda. 

The discussion of agenda topics, where noted, may be held in executive session rather 

than during the portion of the meeting which is open to the public. 

Date of Notice: 

Contact: 

March 17, 2016 

Sharon Locken 
Administrative Staff Officer 
North Dakota State Water Commission 
900 East Boulevard Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58505 
701.328.4940 
Email: slocken@nd.gov 

To provide telephone accessibility to the State Water Commission meeting for 
those people who are deaf, hard of hearing, deaf and/or blind, and speech 
disabled, please contact Relay North Dakota, and reference ... TTY-Relay ND ... 
1-800-366-6888, or 711. 

DOUG BURGUM, GOVERNOR 
CHAIRMAN 

GARLAND ERBELE. P.E. 
CHIEF ENGINEER-SECRETARY 
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----1~ No~~ .. ~~~~~1~~-~~~~?.~~~~ion 
Meeting To Be Held At 
State Office Building 

900 East Boulevard Avenue 
Lower Level Conference Room 

Bismarck, North Dakota 

March 29, 2017 
1 :00 P.M., CDT 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA 

A. Roll Call 

B. Consideration of Agenda 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Consideration of Draft Minutes of December 9, 2016 SWC Meeting 

State Water Commission Financial Reports: 
1) Agency Program Budget Expenditures 
2} 2015-2017 Biennium Resources Trust Fund and 

Water Development Trust Fund Revenues 

Consideration of Following Requests for State Cost Participation: 
1) Grand Forks County Legal Drain No. 58 
2) Mile Marker 15 Irrigation • Garrison Conservancy District 
3) Hurdsfield Legal Drain - Wells County 
4) Richland•Sargent Legal Drain No. 1, Phase II 
5) Walsh County Drain No. 30·1 
6) Walsh County Drain No. 87/McLeod 

** 

** 

** 
** 
** 

7) Epping Dam Safety Repair - Williams County (Cost Overrun) ** 

F. 

8) Drain No. 14 Channel Improvements - Cass County 
9) Sheyenne•Map/e Flood Control District No. 2 - Cass County 

Sheyenne River Valley Flood Protection: 
1) City of Lisbon Permanent Flood Control Project, 

Phase 1, Levee D Construction 

G. Spiritwood Aquifer AEM Study 

H. Fargo Moorhead Area Diversion Project Update 

I. Mouse River Enhanced Flood Protection Project (MREFPP): 
1) Project Update 
2) Broadway Pump Station 
3) Peterson Coulee Outlet 
4) Independent Peer Review Phases BU-1 and Ml-5 
5) Minot Property Acquisitions 

DOUG BURGUM, GOVERNOR 
CHAIRMAN 

GARLAND ERBELE, P.E. 
CHIEF ENGINEER-SECRETARY 

** 
** 

** 

** 

** 
** 
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J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

0. 

P. 

Q. 

R. 

*" 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA • Page 2 

Southwest Pipeline .Project: 
1} Project Update 
2) Reimbursement from Reserve Fund for Replacement 

and Extraordinary Maintenance (REM) 

Northwest Area Water Supply (NAWS) Project Update 

Garrison Diversion Conservancy District Report 

Devils Lake Hydrologic and Outlets Updates 

Missouri River Update 

2017 Spring Flood Outlook 

2017 Legislative Report 

Other Business 

Adjournment 

BOLD, ITALICIZED ITEMS REQUIRE SWC ACTION 

To provide telephone accessibility to the State Water Commission meeting for those 
people who are deaf, hard of hearing, deaf and/or blind, and speech disabled, please 
contact Relay North Dakota, and reference ... TTY-Relay ND ... 1-800-366-6888, or 711. 

,u: 

177



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Governor Doug Burgum 

FROM: 
SUBJECT: 

Members of the State Water Commission .~ 
11 11 

Garland Erbele, P.E., Chief Engineer - Secretary~ 
SWPP - Project Update 

DATE: March 1 , 2017 

Oliver, Mercer, North Dunn (OMND) Regional Service Area 
Center SA Rural Distribution System 7-9E & 7-9F: 
Final change order has been executed by all parties on both Contracts 7 -9E and 7-9F. Final 
administrative items remain before final payments can be made and contracts closed out. 

Contract 7-9G Halliday and Dunn Center Service Area: 
This contract includes furnishing and installing approximately 330 miles of 6"-1 W' ASTM 02241 
gasketed joint pipe; 395 services; road crossings; connections to existing pipelines and other 
related appurtenances. The project is located in Mercer and Dunn Counties of North Dakota. 
The contract has two Bid Schedules. The State Water Commission (SWC) awarded Bid 
Schedule 1 to Swanberg Construction, Inc., and Bid Schedule 2 to Northern Improvement 
Company at its March 11, 2015 meeting. 

Bid Schedule 1 consists of furnishing and installing approximately 170 miles of 6" -1 W' ASTM 
02241 PVC gasketed joint pipe and 173 services. This contract had an intermediate completion 
date of November 1, 2015 for installation of 37 miles of pipeline and 32 users. Because of the 
50 additional users added to Contract 7-9E and removal of intermediate completion date, a new 
milestone completion date was added to this contract. The milestone completion date was 
August 1, 2016 for 123 users. The contractor requested a 21-day extension on the milestone 
completion date because of delays caused by easement problems, permit delays and changes 
made in the field. The 21-day extension was granted to the contractor. The contractor turned 
over 123 users on August 27, 2016. Twenty-six change orders have been signed by all parties 
to date, which added 98 additional users and 45 more miles of pipeline to the contract. The 
Dakota Access Pipeline (DAPL) crossed at five locations in this contract. A change order was 
issued to bore the crossings with a minimum of 7-foot separation between the proposed DAPL 
line and the rural water line and to case the water line with fusible PVC. This change order cost 
was reimbursed by DAPL through an agreement with Southwest Water Authority (SWA). The 
substantial completion date including modifications through Change Order No. 26 is June 7, 
2018. The contract has two additional intermediate dates November 20, 2016 for the original 
173 users and September 27, 2017 for 212 users. To date, the contractor has turned over 180 
users. The contractor refused to install a few items added by field orders to the contract. Those 
items were included in a Change Order to Contract 7-9G Bid Schedule 2. The Bid Schedule 2 
contractor agreed to complete those items with their unit price cost and remobilization charges 
for each location. 

DOUG BURGUM, GOVERNOR 
CHAIRMAN 

GARLAND ERBELE, P.E. 
CHIEF ENGINEER-SECRETARY 
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Bid Schedule 2 consists of furnishing and installing approximately 164 miles of 6" - 1 W' ASTM 
D2241 PVC gasketed joint pipe and 218 services. The area is west of Halliday. 

Twenty-two change orders have been signed by all parties to date which added 104 additional 
users and 38 more miles to the contract. The substantial completion date including modifications 
through Change Order No. 22 is September 18, 2017. The contractor has turned over 315 users. 

Contract 5-17 Dunn Center Elevated Reservoir: 
This contract includes furnishing and installing a 1,000,000-gallon elevated composite reservoir. 
The substantial completion date on this contract was August 15, 2014. The tank was turned 
over for service on August 13, 2015. $260,250 is currently being withheld in liquidated damages 
for 347 days' delay. We granted a 16-day extension through a change order. The contractor's 
attorney sent a letter to Bartlett & West indicating that the contractor is willing to pay the actual 
damages incurred by the Owner. The damage caused by the delay in completion of this tank is 
the delay in serving the City of Killdeer. We estimated the actual damages to be $212,058.32. 
This information has been relayed to the contractor's attorney by our legal counsel. 

Other Contracts 
Contract 8-1A New Hradec Reservoir: 
This contract involves furnishing and installing a 296,000-gallon fusion powder coated bolted 
steel reservoir. Olander Contracting Company is the contractor. The contract documents were 
executed on May 16, 2013, and the Notice to Proceed was issued on June 3, 2013. The 
substantial completion date on this contract was September 15, 2013. The tank was put into 
service on February 20, 2014. The contractor disputes the liquidated damages withheld. The 
contractor has not provided any justification for the delays. The contractor has filed a lawsuit 
against us and their tank sub-contractor. Our legal counsel has filed an answer to their lawsuit. 

Contract 1-2A Supp(emental Raw Water Intake: 
The first section of the intake pipe was lowered on July 15, 2015. Through October 31, 2015 
tunneling had proceeded to approximately 1786 feet. 

In the early morning of November 1 , 2015, the contractor's employees heard a loud pop and 
noticed uncontrolled flow of sand and water entering the pipe approximately 40-50 feet from the 
caisson end of the pipe. The water and sand flowed out from the pipe and into the caisson shaft, 
and the employees quickly evacuated the caisson shaft as the water and sand level began to 
rise. 

To remedy the problem, the contractor stabilized the existing pipe to stop the inflow of sand and 
water with jet grouting. Jet grouting was also completed at the microtunnelling launch zone. Jet 
grouting is a construction process using high pressure to loosen up the ground and mix it with 
thin slurry and forming soilcrete columns. The contractor's plan includes a new secondary floor 
and installing a new intake pipe at a higher elevation. The new intake pipe is proposed to be 12 
feet above the center line of the existing installed intake pipe. The new alignment will be rotated 
7 degrees to the east from the installed intake alignment. This would result in the intake screen 
center line to be at 1785 feet compared to 1782 feet originally specified in the Bid Documents. 
For comparison, the permanent pool elevation for Lake Sakakawea is 1776.3 feet. 
The contractor is currently cleaning out the shaft bottom. A plug has been welded on to the 
installed intake pipe. Few shipments of the new pipeline and few parts of the new microtunneling 
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boring machine have been delivered to site. The new secondary floor is expected to be poured 
in the next few weeks. 

An application for a new easement and temporary construction license from US Army Corps of 
Engineers has been submitted by the Bureau of Reclamation on behalf of the project. 

The contractor has been working with the project's builder's risk insurance policy for 
reimbursements for the failed project and for rebuilding the intake pipe. The insurance policy has 
reimbursed the contractor $7,002,500.64 to date. The SWC submitted a claim of $835,000 for 
the additional engineering expense to the Contract's Builder's Risk Policy. The insurance 
company responded that the Contract's builder's risk policy has a sublimit of $100,000 for 
"Architects and Engineers Fee", and that has been already paid to the contractor. The builder's 
risk insurance company ACE American Insurance Company has filed a lawsuit against the 
contractor, James W. Fowler Company and the SWC regarding the insurance payouts. 

The pipe submittal and the microtunnelling alignment submittal have been reviewed by 
SW/AECOM and have been incorporated into a proposed change order which is under review 
by the contractor. A new schedule received from the contractor indicates completion of the 
project by December 14, 2017. The contractor has requested extension of contract completion 
to December 14, 2017. The proposed change order provided to the contractor before the lawsuit 
was filed by ACE American Insurance Company included provisions for the contractor seeking 
reimbursement for additional construction management costs incurred by SWC with the 
builder's risk policy and also SWC agreeing to execute a future no-cost change order extending 
the substantial completion date to December 14, 2017 contingent on the contractor achieving 
the substantial completion by that date. 

Contract 3-2D Six (6) MGD Water Treatment Plant (WTP) at Dickinson: 
The preconstruction conference for Contract 3-2D was held on January 13, 2016 with both the 
General contractor, John T. Jones Construction Co., Inc., and the Mechanical contractor, 
Williams Plumbing and Heating, Inc. Bids for Contract 3-2D Electrical Contract were opened on 
January 28, 2016, and the contract was awarded to Edling Electric, Inc. at the March 3, 2016 
meeting. 

The General contractor, John T. Jones has completed all of the basement walls and slabs. The 
first-floor slab is complete with the exception of the slab over the wet well lid. The contractor is 
working on shoring and decking of the second-floor slab. Precast wall installation has begun. 
Steel joists and beams are getting installed in the administration area. Rubbing of the basement 
walls and painting is ongoing. 

Two change orders have been signed by all parties on this contract. The net increase in contract 
price is $38,088, and the intermediate completion date was extended to December 16, 2016, 
and the substantial completion date extended to November 28, 2017. The milestone completion 
date is for completing all site piping and completing the backfill against the WTP structure 
foundation walls. The contractor did not complete the items for the intermediate completion. The 
intent of the milestone completion date was to allow for some secondary settlement prior to the 
installation of paving. In order to meet the intent of the milestone completion date, the contractor 
was asked to complete the remaining areas of backfill at least 100 days prior to placement of 
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paving. With regards to remaining pipeline installation that are under areas with paving, the 
contractor was instructed to use trench backfill material classified as fill or structural fill. A 
certificate of milestone completion was signed by all parties with the contractor agreeing to the 
above conditions. 

The Electrical contractor, Edling Electric, Inc. and the Mechanical contractor, Williams Plumbing 
and Heating, Inc., are following the General contractor in their work. The Electrical contractor is 
installing conduits in the basement. The Mechanical contractor is working on HVAC duct 
installation and fire sprinkler pipe installation. 

Contract 4-1F/4-2C Generator Upgrades: 
The scope of this contract includes relocating the existing 1000 kW generator at the Dodge pump 
station to the Dickinson Finished Water Pump Station and installing a new standby engine 
generator at the Dodge pump station. This contract also includes relocating the existing 1,500 
kW generator at the Richardton Pump Station to the intake booster pump station and installing 
a new generator at the Richardton Pump Station. Bids for this contract were opened on 
January 28, 2016, and the contract was awarded to Edling Electric, Inc. at the March 3, 2016 
meeting. The preconstruction conference for this contract was held on May 19, 2016. 

The installation and startup of the generators at all four locations is complete. Testing in late 
November 2016 was not successful because of programming issues. Changes needed to resolve 
programming issues that were beyond the scope of the contract were included as a change 
order to the contract. The SCADA contractor on the Project, Microcomm, will need to be involved 
to facilitate programming changes in some locations. Two change orders have been executed 
by all parties on this contract. 

Contract 5-1 A and 5-2A 2nd Richardton Reservoir and 2nd Dickinson Reservoir: 
The SWC at its October 12, 2016 meeting awarded Contract 5-2A, 2nd Dickinson Reservoir, to 
John T. Jones Construction Co. A preconstruction conference for this contract is scheduled for 
March 30, 2017. 

The SWC at its December 9, 2016 meeting awarded Contract 5-1 A, 2nd Richardton Reservoir, 
to Engineering America, Inc. Contract documents have been executed by all parties. 

Raw Water Line Capacity Upgrade: 
Design on the 4-mile parallel piping segment between the intake and the OMND Water Treatment 
plant is mostly complete. Easement acquisitions will begin soon. We anticipate bidding this 
contract soon. 

Condemnation: 
Mr. Robert Braun, a landowner on Contract 7-9G BS 1 was condemned for easement in June 
2016. We received a notice of appeal for the compensation on July 7, 2016. An email from 
Mr. Braun's attorney on August 24, 2016 requested $20,542.50 in just compensation for an 
easement for 4,107 feet of pipeline on Mr. Braun's property. Our field staff reviewed the route 
again and were able to get the neighboring landowners to remove some trees at their own 
expense and reroute the pipeline on the neighboring landowner's property. Mr. Braun's attorney 
has asked that the SWC pay Mr. Braun's attorney's fees of $5,863 based on North Dakota 
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Century Code§ 32-15-35. The payment was made on November 15, 2016. 

Transfer of Service Agreements: 
At the December 12, 2015 SWC meeting, the Commission approved the Transfer of Service 
agreement between City of Killdeer, SWA and SWC. This was the first annexation agreement 
negotiated between a City served by Southwest Pipeline Project and SWA. In early January 
2016, SWA mailed similar agreements to 33 communities within the SWPP service area except 
for City of Dickinson using the same template as used for City of Killdeer. SWA has been 
negotiating different terms with the City of Dickinson. Some communities executed the 
agreement, while many communities expressed concerns about terms of the annexation 
agreement that was mailed to them. SWA continues to meet with the communities to negotiate 
the terms. 

GE:SSP:pdh/1736-99 

/ 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO: Governor Doug Burgum 

FROM: Garland Erbele, P.E., Chief Engineer - Secretary ~ \o..L 
SUBJECT: 

Members of the State Water Commission h . nt::. 
$WPP - Reimbursement from Reserve Fund for Replacement and ~ dinary 
Maintenance 

DATE: March 1, 2017 

The Southwest Water Authority (SWA) collects and maintains a reserve fund for "Replacement 
and Extraordinary Maintenance" (REM). This fund is required by authorizing legislation, and 
expenditures from this fund are to be authorized by the Commission. 

The State Water Commission received the attached letter from the SWA requesting 
reimbursement from the REM funds for ten separate items of work. 

The items requested for reimbursement include the variable frequency drive at the Jung Lake 
pump station for $55,488.50, balance reimbursement of $13,877.80 on the electrical service at 
the Water Treatment Plant (WTP) at Dickinson, replacement contactors at the intake pump 
station for $80,433.89, motor reconditioning at the intake pump station for $39,865.52, pipeline 
relocations in the right-of-ways for $94,928, vent repair and relocation at the six-million-gallon 
reservoir at the WTP at Dickinson for $33,887, repair of a service line for $30,420, replacement 
of steam traps and steam unit heaters at the WTP at Dickinson for $15,326.53, pipeline relocation 
at the BNSF railroad crossing for $163,533.36, repair to a PRV vault for $19,207.04 and 
replacement of a section of the 2-3E pipeline for $377,611.78. 

The total costs for all items requested for reimbursement is $924,579.42. The current balance 
in the REM fund is $16,715,642.98 as of February 14, 2017. 

The current eligibility criterion for authorizing expenditure from REM funds is a single event which 
has a repair or replacement cost of $10,000 or more. This criterion was set by the State Water 
Commission (SWC) on June 19, 1996. The 1996 memo indicated that staff time, lost water and 
vehicle replacement would not be included in the amount eligible. On August 13, 1998, the SWC 
it was decided to include staff time for reimbursement from REM funds as it will encourage SWA 
to use their staff when possible to get the repairs done. An adjustment of the eligibility criterion 
based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) change from June 1996 to January 2017 would result 
in increasing the $10,000 limit to $15,500. Looking to the future it is recommended that the 
eligibility criteria for expenditure from REM funds be increased to $20,000 for a single event 
starting in 2018 budget for SWA. 

The rate for replacement and extraordinary maintenance (REM) was set by the Commission 
during its February 9, 1999, meeting at $0.35 per thousand gallons. The original rate of $0.30 
per thousand gallons had been set in 1991. The SWA Board of Directors voted to increase the 
REM rate to $0.40 per thousand gallons for their 2013 budget. Bartlett & West/ AECOM updated 

DOUG BURGUM, GOVERNOR 
CHAIRMAN 

GARLAND ERBELE, P.E. 
CHIEF ENGINEER-SECRETARY 
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the REM rate analysis by including the entire current and future planned infrastructure for the 
project. The analysis also included the replacement of the existing 12 Million Gallons per Day 
Water Treatment Plant {WTP) at Dickinson. The analysis considered multiple variables including 
inflation rate, rural growth rate, and timeframe and projected cost of the Dickinson WTP 
replacement. It was evident from the analysis that replacing the Dickinson WTP is a huge project 
for the SWA, and the REM funding alone would not be enough to meet the cost of the 
replacement. Replacing the Dickinson WTP in 2030 at a cost of $54 Million would require the 
REM rate to increase to $1.15 per thousand gallons. The SWA Board of Directors voted to 
increase the REM rate from $0.40 to $0.50 per thousand gallons in 2014, $0.50 to $0.55 per 
thousand gallons in 2015 and $0.55 to $0.65 per thousand gallons in 2016. For 2017, the SWA 
Board of Directors approved a water rate with no REM rate increase. The 2017 SWA budget 
indicates that by the end of 2017, the REM fund balance would be $17,223,712 

I recommend approval of reimbursement from the Reserve Fund for 
Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance (REM) in the amount of 
$924,579.42 and increasing the eligibility criterion for reimbursement from 
REM funds from $10,000 to $20,000. 

GE:SSP:pdh/1736-99 
Enclosures 
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~~RITY 

Our Vision: People and Business Succeeding with Quality Water Our Mission: Quality Water for Southwest North Dakota 

MEMORANDUM ;::~ . .1 l , -;,·-1-
1 .. ••• c ... : j 

To: Garland Erbele, P.E., State Engineer, SWC 

From: : CJ Sandra Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator, SW A 

Subject: 

Date: 

Copy: 

Reimbursement from the Reserve Fund for Replacement and Extraordinary 
Maintenance 

February 14, 2017 

Sindhuja S. Pillai-Grinolds, P.E., Project Manager, SWC 
Mary Massad, Manager/CEO, SW A 

Reimbursement from the Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance Fund is being requested 
for eleven separate items of work. 

Work is complete on the VFD #2 at the Jung Lake Pump Station on the 350 HP pump motor. 
There have been overheating issues with it for about three years, and was only able to run at 90 
to 92%. The circuit board bumed out, so the entire VFD had to be replaced. The total expense 
was $55,488.50 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item for the Replacement and 
Extraordinary Replacement Fund for 2017. The amount in the budget was $60,000.00 and was 
previously approved in the budgeting process. 

Work is complete on the electrical service at the \VTP in Dickinson. This included a new main 
switch with over-cunent protection. The amount billed to date is $137,799.23 and has been paid. 
The amount of $123,921.43 was previously reimbursed; therefore, the reimbursable balance is 
$13,877.80. This is a budgeted item for the Replacement and Extraordinary Replacement Fund 
for 2017. The amount in the budget was $125,000.00 and was previously approved in the 
budgeting process. 

Two contactors have been replaced at the Intake. This is for the electrical starts on two of the 
motors on the intake pumps. Since there is no redundancy at the intake, the pumps have been 
used since 1991 and before, and the vacuum bottles for the contactors were no longer available 
for spare parts. The amount billed is $80,433.89 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item for 
the Replacement and Extraordinary Replacement Fund for 2017. The amount in the budget was 
$85}000.00 and was previously approved in the budgeting process. 

West Industrial Park, 4665 2nd Street SW, Dickinson, ND 58601· 7231 I p: 701.225.0241 1 .888.425.0241 f: 701.225.4058 I w·-Nw.SWwater.com 
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Work has been completed on pump motors Al, A2, A3, Bl, B2 and B3 at the Intake. The pumps 
are 30 years old and needed to be reconditioned. The total amount billed is $39,865.52 and has 
been paid. This is a budgeted item for the Replacement and Extraordinary Replacement Fund for 
2017. The amount in the budget was $45,000.00 and was previously approved in the budgeting 
process. 

Work has been done on pipeline relocations in road right-of-ways on County Road 19 for a cost 
of $29,925.00, Highway 200 for a cost of $41,530.00, and South Heart Road for a cost of 
$23,473.00. The total amount billed is $94,928.00 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item for 
the Replacement and Extraordinary Replacement Fund for 2017. The amount in the budget was 
$60,000.00 and was previously approved in the budgeting process. 

Work is complete on the repair of the six-million-gallon reservoir at the WTP in Dickinson. The 
vent on the dome was relocated. The total expense was $33,887.00 and has been paid. This is a 
budgeted item for the Replacement and Extrnordinary Replacement Fund for 2017. The amount 
in the budget was $40,000.00 and was previously approved in the budgeting process. 

Work is complete on the repair of the Egly two-inch CL 200 service line in Contract 7-8E. The 
soil covering the line was eroded away allowing a joint to pull apart. The total expense was 
$30,420.00 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item for the Replacement and Extraordinary 
Replacement Fund for 2017. The amount in the budget was $35,000.00 and was previously 
approved in the budgeting process. 

Work is complete on replacing the steam traps and steam unit heaters at the WTP in Dickinson. 
The steam traps and steam unit heaters were old and needed to be replaced. This is part of the 
WTP Assessment. The total expense was $15,326.53 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item 
for the Replacement and Extraordinary Replacement Fund for 2016. The amount in the budget 
was $20,000.00 and was previously approved in the budgeting process. 

Work is complete on the pipeline relocation at the BNSF railroad crossing on the west edge of 
Dickinson. The total expense was $163,533.36 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item for the 
Replacement and Extraordinary R~placement Fund for 2017. The amount in the budget was 
$160,000.00 and was previously approved in the budgeting process. 

Costs are also being requested to repair the Tooz PRV vault. The anchors holding the PRY vault 
to the concrete pad cmroded to where they wouldn't hold anymore and the PRV lifted out of the 
ground. The total expense was $19,207.04 and has been paid. 

Work has now been completed on the Dry Creek Crossing 2-3E pipeline replacement. The 
pipeline was originally installed in 1992. A leak was discovered in 2004 and 2016. There was 
concern about corrosion and permanent repair, and pipeline replacement was needed. The total 
expense was $377,611.78 and has been paid. This is a budgeted item for the Replacement and 
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Extraordinary Maintenance (REM) Fund for 2017. The amount in the budget was $400,000.00 
and was previously approved in the budgeting process. 

The total cost for all items requested for reimbursement is $924,579.42. A spreadsheet listing the 
invoices is included with this memorandum. Copies of the invoices are available upon request. 

The balance in the Reserve Fund for Replacement and Extraordinary Maintenance is 
$16,715,642.98 as of February 14, 2017. 

The Transfer Agreement states the SWC "shall detennine whether or not a proposed project is 
replacement or extraordinary maintenance. The Commission shall authorize such expenditures." 

I respectfully request the SW C determine the VFD repair at the Jung Lake BPS, the 
electrical service to the \VTP in Dickinson, two contactors for the Intake, pump motors at 
the Intake, pipeline relocation in right-of -ways, repair of the 6MG reservoir at the WTP in 
Dickinson, the Egly two inch CL200 service line, replacing the steam unit heaters and 
steam traps at the WTP in Dickinson, pipeline relocation at the railroad crossing and 
repair of the Tooz PRV vault and Dry Creek 2-3E to be repairs and extraordinary 
maintenance and approve reimbursement from the Reserve Fund for Replacement and 
Extraordinary Maintenance and approve the release of $924,579.42. 

The S\V A Board of Directors took similar action at its December 6, 2016 and February 6, 2017, 
meetings. 
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DATE VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

12/22/2015 Wesco Receivables Repair VFD at Jung Lake BPS $ 55,488.50 

4/5/2016 Bartlett & West, MDU and Muth Electric, Inc. Electrical service to the WTP $ 13,877.80 

4/21/2016 Wesco Receivables Two contactors for the Intake $ 80,433.89 

6/1/2016 Black Hills Trucking and Great Plains Technical Service Pump Motors at the Intake $ 39,865.52 

-
6/9/2016 Northern lmpro~ement, Cordova Construction and Slett~n Excavating Pipeline Relocation in Right-of-Ways $ 94,928.00 

·-· ------- .. ---· -
7/11/2016 Great Plains Structures .. Repair 6MG Reservoir at WTP in Dickinson $ 33,887.00 

- - -----·---· -· 
8/31/2016 Cordova Construction Egly two inch CL20Q_service line $ 30,420.00 . - - -- . 

.._ ·--- -- --- - - - ----
__!9/12/ 2016_ Various Vendors .~eplace heaters at the WTP in Dickinson $ 15,326.53 ·--- -·-- - - -

----------------· - - - - . 
11/14/2016 Bartlett & West, BNSF Ra!lway Co. and BEK Consulting Pipeline relocation at the railroad crossing $ 163,533.36 

'-· ·-- .. 
.. - - -- - - .. -

9/13/2016 Various Vendors -· Repair _Ioo2 PRV y~ult $ 19,207.04 . - . . - - --·-· 
---·-·· ------·----·--- - --- -·- ----- - ... . - -·· ·--··-·· 
_ 1/13/20~?_ Various Vendors Qry Creek 2-3E Pipe! in~ ~eplacement --- $ 377,611.78 

-- -- -------------- -
------- -- ·--- -- --- . - ·- . -· ---
TOTAL REM REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST - - $ 924,579.42 ------··· -- --- --- --- - ·- - --- -
-- ·----·- --------- - -- - - - - - -
--·--·----- - - _,__ --- - -
-· --- --·- -· .. - -

-- - - - -- --·. - ------~--·----- - ----- . -
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North Dakota Water Coalition Meeting Agenda 
State Water Commission, Bismarck, ND 

March 15, 2017 
4 p.m. 

1. Call to Order 

2. Introductions 

3. Approval of Minutes 

4. HB 1020-ND State Water Commission Appropriation Bill 
a. Buckets 
b. NA WS Provision . 
c. Souris Provisions 
d. WA WS Provisions 
e. Flood Hazard Study 
f. Renewable Energy 
g. Infrastructure Revolving Fund 
h. Water Tax 
1. Fargo Funding Plan 
j. Grand Forks Water Treatment . J-

S. HB I 020 - Senate Appropriations Hearing.:); 'l -f !j!": /2 J "tf /2,b~ f "';>L-
a. Governor's Budget - Resources Trust Fund ·~ ... /e 

5
-. 

b. Water Coalition Recommendations 
1 

c. Testimony Schedule 
d. Meeting the Challenge X 

6. Water Legislation Update .!- g~ _ 
a. Garrison Resolutions (HCR 3020, HCR 3021) o1,6 f.:rfO'I.-I .. 0"">1.. 

b. Tile Drainage (SB 2263, HB 1390) -
c. Water Resource Districts (HB 13 3 9, HB 13 93, HB 1416) 
d. Quick Take (SB 2047, HB 12441 -!-c--
e. Water Policy (HB 1374)~,nJ)d-(o.Jv~, I . + d.~ .-fLda Q.6 N JO .., cw~ I"-- ~ L '(£: ai-- . 'D:..-t -

7. Upcoming Events ~..._-,c)::. -ta):1- - ~J ;z_ ~f:5 tv <f~ 
a. Next meeting 

8. Other Business 

9. Adjourn 
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1. Call to Order 

North Dakota Water Coalition Meeting Minutes 
State Water Commission, Bismarck, ND 

January 9, 2017 

ND Water Coalition Chairman Dave Sprynczynatyk called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m. 

2. Introductions 
Chairman Sprynczynatyk welcomed everyone and called for introductions. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
The Coalition reviewed the minutes of the Sept. 21, 2016, meeting and notes from the Dec. 9, 2016, 
meeting. It was moved by Duane DeKrey and seconded by Mary Massad that the minutes and 
meeting notes be approved. The motion was unanimously approved. 

4. State Water Commission Appropriation Bill 
Bohn reviewed the Governor's 2017-19 Budget recommendation of $319 million for water projects in 
comparison to the North Dakota Water Coalition funding priorities of $366 million established during 
its September meeting. The newly approved legislative revenue forecast includes $261,870,000 from 
the Resourced Trust Fund, which is a $25 million reduction from what is included in the Governor's 
Budget recommendation. 

The group also reviewed the testimony schedule for the State Water Commission Appropriation bill 
and Meeting the Challenge X, which will be presented the House Appropriations Education and 
Environment Division on Jan. 10 and distributed on Water Day. 

5. Legislative Reports 
Mike Dwyer said legislative reports will be mailed out each Friday. 

6. Upcoming Events 
The next meeting of the full Coalition will be held after crossover at the same time as the Senate 
hearing on HB 1020. 

Water Day at the Legislature will be held on Tuesday, Feb. 14. Legislators will receive Meeting the 
Challenge X and water bottles. There will be a legislative social from 5 to 6 p.m. at the Ramkota 
Hotel. Everyone is encouraged to come and meet with legislators. 

7. Other Business 
There was no other business. 

8. Adjourn 
Chairman Sprynczynatyk adjourned the meeting at 4:36 p.m. 

Dana Bohn, Executive Director 
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HB 1020 includes $299,875,000 from the Resources Trust Fund and Water Development Trust Fund 
plus a $7 5 million line ~f t redit. T~e committee has allocated the total fil\lOunt of money into sev~~..._f) ; ~ .1 purpose fun9ing buckets':Pob r,v-, r( )/>1.-- c_ l,(..{_A__"t:.-t,....,+-{p, -'01_:1t)-~ ;t z -it...CZ>C ~,/>J~h·-,~ 

~:!>:Ji) r>-. {!_ I ~ C-Oni.._ /rl'--, ' H 'Ca- I t'l-<-- {J k{___ .-u./ C> L) ~ - ;j-u- t WO d 6C 
a. Buckets / !) XJ t ~ 1,,~ ~ 

1. $30,000,000 for rural water supply projects; 
2. $44,125,000 for municipal water supply projects; 
3. $58,000,000 for regional water supply projects; 
4. $1,000,000 for water conveyance projects; 
5. $150,000,000 for flood control projects; 
6. $750,000,00B-for irrigation projects; and 
7. $16,000,000 for general water management. 

b. NA WS Provision 5 15 to "$ 35 .,.... ~ ~ JOL-;//n)/5 
Requires SWC to use BND line of credit for NA#'S before any other funding. 

c. Souris Provisions 
Authorizes SWC to obtain a loan from BND not to exceed $110 million for phases 1-4 of the 
Minot flood control project and restricts them from receiving any funding for the next 8 
years. 

d. WA WS Provisions 
Directs the Industrial Commission to consider the amount of state secured debt and market 
rates before setting domestic water rates for WA WS. Directs BND to consolidate WA WS 
loans and directs the SWC to make the payments if the authority defaults, which is subject to 
budget section approval. Provides a legislative management study on the effects on 
repayment of state-guaranteed debt by allowing private persons to lease the WA WS 

. authority's industrial infrastructure and privatizing industrial water sales. 

e. Flood Hazard Study 
Authorizes a $50,000 flood hazard risk management study. 

f. Renewable Energy 
Reduces the energy conservation grant fund from $1 million to $0 and the renewable energy 
fund will remain at $3 million. 

g. Infrastructure Revolving Fund 
Limits the deposit into the infrastructure revolving loan fund to $25 million. If the amount 
exceeds $25 million it is transferred into the Resources Trust Fund. 

h. Water Tax 
Creates two new sections of code relating to oil and gas industry fresh water royalties. 
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HB 1020 State Water Commission Hearing Testimony Outline 

1) Opening Remarks 
Dana Bohn, Executive Director, ND Water Coalition 

2) MR&I 
a) Rural Water Supply 

Eric Volk, Executive Director, ND Rural Water 
b) Municipal Water Supply 

Blake Crosby, Executive Director, ND League of Cities 
c) Major Water Supply Projects 

i) Red River Valley Water Supply 
Ken Vein, Chairman, Garrison Diversion Conservancy District 
Geneva Kaiser, General Manager, Stutsman Rural Water District 

ii) Northwest Area Water,Supply 
Dan Jonasson, Director of Public Works, Minot 

iii) Southwest Pipeline Project 
Mary Massad, Manager/CEO, Southwest Water Authority 
Steve Schneider, Stark County Director, SWA Board 

iv) Western Area Water Supply 
Jaret Wirtz, Executive Director, WA WS 

v) Grand Forks Water Treatment Plant 
Ken Vein, Chairman, Garrison Diversion Conservancy District 

3) Flood Control Projects 
b a) Fargo-Moorhead Area Diversion 

Tony Grindberg, City Commissioner, Fargo 
Colonel Samuel Calkins, U.S. Anny Corps of Engineers St. Paul District Commander 

C JJ Devils Lake Outlet Operations 
Mayor Dick Johnson, Devils Lake 

cl-j1" Sheyenne River Flood Protection~ 
Dave Schelkoph, City Administrator, Valley City -
Mayor Tim Meyer, Lisbon 

d) Souris/Mouse River Flood Protection 
Ryan Ackerman, Administrator, Souris River Joint Board 
Mayor Chuck Barney, Minot 

4) General Water Management 
Dennis Reep, Chairman, Burleigh County Water Resource District 

5) Irrigation 
Loren Dewitz, Vice Chairman, ND Irrigation Association 
Duane DeKrey, General Manager, Garrison Diversion Conservancy District 

6) ND Water Users Association 
Michael Dwyer, Executive Vice President, ND Water Users Association 
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Dwyer L Aw o F F I c E PLLC 

MEMO 

To: Southwest Water Authority Board of Directors 

From: Jack Dwyer 

Re: Service Area Agreements Update 

Date: March 29, 2017 

Dear Board: 

The following is a summary of the current status of dealings with cities within Southwest Pipeline 
Project's service area that have not yet executed the Transfer of Service Area Agreement with Southwest 
Water Authority and the State Water Commission: 

Medora and Belfield: 

South Heart: 

Hettinger: 

Hazen: 

Previously, I recommended to SW A staff that each city served by SWPP receive 
information on the process for achieving greater service capacities. I am assisting SW A 
staff compile and deliver this information to the cities within SWPP's service area. 
Attorney Sandy Kuntz communicated that Belfied and Medora will likely execute the 
agreements if they obtain this information. 

I previously reported that I believe it likely that South Heart will execute the agreement 
in March. I have reached out to Nate Bouray to obtain an update, and will report to you at 
the April Board meeting. 

Nate Bouray has asked SWA staff and I to attend a city council meeting in person on 
April 12, 2017, to discuss the agreement. 

Attorney Pat Donovan recently emailed me. He indicated that the City of Hazen would 
not agree to execute the agreement as proposed. He provided a counter proposal which 
significantly deviates from current board policy regarding service area. 

1 

3330 Fiechtner Dr. • Suite #102 • Fargo, ND 58 103 
PHONE: [70 l) 235-2040 FAX, (70 l) 235-207 4 dwyerlawoFficend .com 
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Richardton: 

Dickinson: 

Previously, I recommended to SW A staff that each city served by SWPP receive 
information on the process for achieving greater service capacities. I am assisting SW A 
staff compile and deliver this information to the cities within SWPP's service area. 
Attorney Haley Cripe communicated that Richardton will likely execute the agreement if 
they obtain this information. 

Previously, I recommended to SW A staff that each city served by SWPP receive 
information on the process for achieving greater service capacities. I am assisting SW A 
staff compile and deliver this information to the cities within SWPP's service area. I have 
recently reached out to Attorney Haley Cripe to obtain a status update for the City of 
Dickinson. 

Zap and Stanton and Hebron: 

Beulah: 

Gladstone: 

Bowman: 

Rhame: 

I have requested a joint meeting with the Cities of Zap and Stanton and Hebron with 
Attorney Scott Solem, but have yet to receive any proposed times. Attorney Scott Solem 
has indicated that he is waiting to set up the requested meeting until more communities 
have executed the service area agreement. 

The City of Beulah maintains that the City of Beulah will not execute the agreement 
unless the service area boundary is one-half mile outside of the current city limit 
boundaries. 

I and Sandy Burwick attended a phone conference with the City of Gladstone on March 
13. The discussion was positive. I have recently reached out to Attorney Christina Wenko 
to obtain a status update for the City of Gladstone. 

The City of Bowman maintains that the City of Bowman will not execute the agreement 
as is. 

As previously reported, Attorney Steve Wild indicated that Rhame is likely going to 
execute the service area agreement without requiring a meeting. In February, Rhame's 
new mayor Grace Wood indicated that she will review the agreement and let Sandy 
Burwick know if a meeting will be required. 

2 
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SOUTHWEST PIPELINE PROJECT 
CONTRACT FOR TRANSFER OF SERVICE AREA 

 
 

I.  PARTIES 
 
This Agreement is between the Southwest Water Authority (the “Authority”), the North Dakota 
State Water Commission (the “Commission”), and the City of Belfield (the “City”).  
 

II.  INTRODUCTION 
        
1. The Commission is developing a water pipeline, water supply, and water distribution 

project known as the Southwest Pipeline Project (the “Project”). 
  
2. The Authority, created under North Dakota Century Code § 61-24.5, provides operation, 

maintenance, and management of the Project. 
 
3. In 1995, the Commission entered into an agreement with the Authority assigning to the 

Authority the completed portions of the Project for operation, maintenance, and 
management (the “1995 Agreement”).  

 
4. Under North Dakota Century Code § 61-24.5-09, the Authority may enter into contracts 

for aiding and promoting the construction, maintenance, and operation of the Project and 
to promote the establishment, construction, development, or operation of the Project.  

 
5.  The Project provides water service to certain property identified on the map attached 

hereto as Appendix A. The “Service Area” consists of all lands lying outside the “Rural 
Water Boundary” depicted on Appendix A. 

 
6.  Pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 6-09.4-22, the Authority claims the exclusive right to provide 

water service to the Service Area and to the Project’s current customers lying within the 
Rural Water Boundary. The City has the exclusive right to serve the lands within the 
Rural Water Boundary.  The Parties may amend Appendix A from time to time.  

 
7. The City has experienced growth in recent years. As the City grows, the City may desire 

to provide water service to customers and areas within the Service Area.   
 

III. AGREEMENT 
 
The Authority, the Commission, and the City are in agreement with the following terms and 
provisions regarding the Service Area: 
 

1. Compensation:  
 
A. Paid to the Authority 
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a. For each Project customer who will be disconnected from the Project and served 
directly by the City, the City shall pay to the Authority the projected difference in 
revenue the Authority would receive over ten years, with the future years’ 
projected revenue indexed at 4%. The projected difference in revenue is the 
difference between the revenue the Authority would receive if the Project 
provides water directly to the customer and the revenue the Authority would 
receive if the Project sells water in bulk to the City. The current projected 
difference in revenue is $2,366.38 per customer. The Authority shall adjust the 
projected difference in revenue for all existing direct customers annually based on 
the previous year’s average usage for customers of the Project and based on the 
prevailing water rate at the time customers are disconnected from the Project, 
with future years’ projected revenue indexed at 4%. Payment is due to the 
Authority within six months of the date upon which the customer is first served by 
the City.  

 
b. For future customers who tie in to City water infrastructure within the Service 

Area for which the Authority has capacity to serve, the City shall pay to the 
Authority the projected difference in revenue the Authority would receive over 
five years, with the future years’ projected revenue indexed at 4%. The projected 
difference in revenue is the difference between the revenue the Authority would 
receive if the Project provides water directly to the customer and the revenue the 
Authority would receive if the Project sells water in bulk to the City.  The current 
projected difference in revenue is $1,067.55 per customer. The Authority shall 
adjust the projected difference in revenue annually based on the previous year’s 
average usage for customers of the Project and based on the prevailing water rate 
at the time customers are served by the City, with future projected revenue 
indexed at 4%. Payment is due to the Authority within six months of the date 
upon which the customer is first served by the City.  

 
The capacity of the Authority to serve the future customers shall be determined by 
agreement of the City and the Authority, on a case-by-case basis, at the time the 
City annexes or makes water service available to any portion of the Service Area. 
In order to have capacity to serve any disputed area, the Authority must have 
water infrastructure within or in close proximity to the disputed area and must be 
capable of providing water service to the disputed area within a reasonable time 
after a request for service occurs.  At the request of the City, the Authority shall 
provide verification of its sufficient capacity to serve any future customer.  

 
c. In addition to the compensation described above, the City will reimburse the 

Authority for all costs incurred by the Authority as a result of transferring service 
from the Authority to the City, including construction costs for relocation or 
abandonment of the Project pipeline, facilities, or appurtenances (collectively, 
“Project works”) and engineering and legal fees.  
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B. Paid to the Commission 
 
a. For each Project customer who will be disconnected from the Project and served 

directly by the City, the City shall pay to the Commission the difference in capital 
repayment rate between the rural customers and contract rate customers for a 
period of five years. The capital repayment rate that will be used for determining 
the compensation will be prevailing rate at the time the customers are 
disconnected from the Project. The current projected difference in capital 
repayment between a rural customer and contract rate customer for a period of 
five years is $1,800.61. Payment is due to the Commission within six months of 
the date upon which the City first serves the customer.  

 
2. Procedure:  

 
a. For all instances in which the City intends on providing service to any of the 

Authority’s current customers: 
 

i. The City shall provide Notice to all Project customers who will be 
transferred to City water service at least 14 days prior to the date of 
transfer of service.  
 

ii. The City must provide Notice to the Authority at least 14 days prior to the 
date of transfer of service.  

iii. The Notice must describe the Project’s customer whom the City intends 
on serving and the date of transfer of service to the City. The transfer of 
service must take place on the date of transfer of service as provided in the 
Notice received by the Authority. 
 

iv. From the date of transfer of service forward, the City shall be responsible 
to provide water service to the customer.  

 
b. For all instances in which the City annexes any property into the corporate limits 

of the City, the City shall provide the Authority with Notice. 
 

c. For all instances in which the Authority receives a service request from any 
potential water customer who lies within one mile from the Rural Water 
Boundary, the Authority shall require the water customer to provide written 
verification to the Authority that the City has reviewed and approved the 
Authority’s service to such customer prior to the Authority serving such customer. 
The City shall have the opportunity, but not the obligation, to serve any such 
customer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, should the City choose to serve any 
such customer, the Authority shall receive compensation from the City as set forth 
in this Agreement.  
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3. Construction requirements: 
 

a. Upon written permission of the Authority and the Commission, the City may use 
abandoned Project works. The Authority and the Commission, at their sole 
discretion, may convey certain Project works and assign appurtenant pipeline 
easements to the City, if those certain Project works are no longer necessary for 
the Project. Consent from the Authority or the Commission to assign or share an 
easement or an easement corridor with the City shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.   
 

b. Should removing abandoned Project works be necessary, the City shall use due 
caution in removing abandoned Project works, namely valves, curb stops, and 
meter pits, and shall return said works to the Authority. 
 

c. In accordance with N.D.C.C. § 61-24.3-20, crossing permits are required should 
the City be required to cross any of the Project’s water lines.  

 
d. The City shall adequately protect the Project works, and the City shall cover 

Project works sufficiently to prevent them from freezing.  
 

e. All easements in favor of the Authority or the Commission shall remain in full 
force and effect (including abandoned Project works) until the Authority or the 
Commission, as applicable, explicitly vacates any such easement in writing. 

 
4. General Provisions: 

 
a. Liability. The City will indemnify and hold harmless the Authority and the 

Commission from all claims arising from or relating to this Agreement caused by 
a negligent act or omission of the City and resulting in bodily injury, sickness, 
disease, or death, or damage to tangible property. The Authority will indemnify 
and hold harmless the City from all claims arising from or relating to this 
Agreement caused by a negligent act or omission of the Authority and resulting in 
bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or damage to tangible property.  A 
party’s total liability for claims based on its negligence shall not exceed the 
percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of all 
entities.   
 

b. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect for five years after the date of 
execution of this Agreement. Unless Notice is provided by one of the parties to 
this agreement to the other parties prior to the expiration of the initial term of this 
Agreement, this Agreement will automatically renew for an additional five-year 
term.  Thereafter, this agreement will automatically renew for successive five-
year terms unless one party provides Notice to the other parties prior to the 
expiration of any renewal term. 
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c. Notice. All Notices required under this Agreement must be given in person, by 
mail at the address shown on the signature page of this Agreement, by electronic 
mail, or by facsimile.  Notice provided under this provision does not meet the 
Notice requirements for monetary claims against the Commission found at 
N.D.C.C § 32-12.2-04.  

 
d. Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 

interpreted as effective and valid under applicable law. The determination by any 
court of competent jurisdiction that any provision of this Agreement is 
unenforceable shall not invalidate this Agreement, and the decision of such court 
shall limit to the extent possible the provisions of this Agreement that are deemed 
unenforceable. To the extent such determination has a material impact upon the 
economic expectations of the parties, the parties agree to make appropriate 
modifications to this Agreement to take such impact into account. 

 
e. Merger. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  

There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not 
specified within this Agreement.  This Agreement may not be modified, 
supplemented, or amended in any manner except by written agreement signed by 
each party to this Agreement. 

 
f. Construction. Section headings contained in this Agreement are for convenient 

reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement. The language used in the Agreement will be deemed the language 
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict 
construction will be applied against any person. 

 
g. Remedy. The use of any remedy specified herein to enforce this Agreement is not 

exclusive and does not prohibit or limit the application of any other remedy 
available by law. 

 
h. Assignment. The City may not assign, transfer, or delegate any right or duty 

without the express written consent of the Commission and the Authority.  
 

i. Venue and Jurisdiction. This Agreement is governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the state of North Dakota.  Any action to enforce this 
Agreement must be brought in the District Court of Burleigh County, North 
Dakota. However, this paragraph shall not restrict either party from bringing any 
claim involving a federal question in federal court.  
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STATE WATER COMMISSION    SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY  
900 East Boulevard Avenue    4665 2nd Street SW 
Bismarck, ND 58505     Dickinson, ND  58601-7231     
By:       By: 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Garland Erbele, Chief Engineer and Secretary Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
   
 
Date _____________________________  Date ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF BELFIELD     CITY OF BELFIELD  
PO Box 5 
Belfield, ND 58622 
 
By:       By:  
_________________________________  _________________________________  
Leo Schneider      Cindy Ewoniuk 
Mayor       City Auditor 
      
 
Date _____________________________  Date ____________________ 
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Saturday, March 2~, 2017 The Dickinson Press Page A11 

Public Notices 
fin Obrigewitsch. Jeff Iverson and Rich- · (Obrigewitsch ~ Yes, Baer - Abstain, This Item was removed from the agenda 
ard Schuhrke was absent. City Attorney, Schnelder-Yes) as no application was received. 
Sandra Kuntz was also present. Banyon Code EnforcemenVSpecial As- Being no further business before the 
Members of the audience Included Jon sessment Software Council Jhe meeting was adjourned at 
Wilczak, from Apex Engineering, Ron and The council approved the auditor to sub- 6:06pm. (MT) (Baer/Obrlgewltsch) 
Don Fulton, Nick Myron, from KW, Rich- mit a grant for the Code Enforce- (Unanimous) 
ard Volesky from BIiiings County Pioneer, ment/Speclal Assessment software •. ATTEST: 
Leonard H!bl,,Roughrider Electric Coop., (Baer/Obrigewitsch) (Obrlgewitsch - Yes, 
Mike Jangula from Scull Construction, Baer-Vas, Schnf!ider-Yes) . 
Fern Moser from Stark County Sheriff's Government Week/Cleanup 
Department, Chief of Police, Nick Barn· Prfcefpr Stomge Containers 

/s/ Leo Schnelder, 
Leo Schneider, Mayor 

/s/ Natalie Muruato 
Natalie Muruato, Auditor 

hard, and Deanna Baranko, Belfield PD Councilmen Obrigewltsch made.a motion 
·Office Manager. to approve a one container with a !Id and---:-;jiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiiiiiiii __________ _ 

C~uncllman Baer made a motion to ap- on!:! without a lid during city cleanup week 
prove the agenda with the addition of Offl· th$ first week of May. (Obrigewitsch/Baer) 
cer Staffing under · Item IV, P9tlce Report. _ (Obrlgewltsch - Yes, Baer - Yes, Schnei· 
Delete Carol Kasper ~og ComP.llilnt un• d!!r-Yes) · 
der New Business c and replace with . Okf:ltuslness: 
Rusty Rail Special Event Pe~fl. ,\dd Ra- Ordinance No. 371-Annex School Proper-
dlo. Antenna under the Ambulance Addi- ty Update e 
tlon Construction Update and under Re~ Attorney Kuntz will draft a resolution for C 
luse ,add the Demo of Houses received the next meeting and notify the additional P 
for unpaid taxes and GIS ma.P,plng -under three land owners regarding the annexa- S 
Water and Sewer. (Baer/9l:idgewltsch) -~n. When the preliminary plat is finished P 

. (Qbrlgewltsch - Yes, Baer -.Yes, Schnel- the ,school Is to submit to the zoning a 
der-Yes} · board and city engineer for approval. O 
The .Council reviewed and approved the Ambulance Addition Update 
February_6th 2017, Regular Council I.Construction Update 

_ M. e~tlng_ . .MJnu1e. l!. as. pc~s~. O_brlge-...,-fl'!&···mip.eoted-turn--over-·date-ls March· -
wltich/Baer)· (Q)JrfgeWltsch· - Yes. 'Baer, - 1ilth: They· are working on the outside 
Yes, Schnelder-Yes} ·. trfm· and pa,fntlng Inside this week. Scull 
The Council reviewed and .approved the, • ·presented option for the Installation of the 
February 26th 2017, Speclal·Meetlng Mli,. antenna and radio system wiring. Coun
utes as presented. (Baer/Obrtgewltscli} c;llman Baer made a motion to ·accept Ex; 
(Obrlgewltsch - Yes, Baer - .Yes, Schnei- te.i11:>r option #2 to mount antenna on out
dsr-Yes) . side of building and Interior Option #tto 
The Council reviewed and approved the run conduit for Inside wiring. 
February 2017 financials as presented. (Baer/Obrigewitsch) (Obrlgewitsch - Yes, t 
(Bruce/Obrlgewitsch) (Obrigewltsch - Yes, Baer -Yes, Schneider-Yes) 
Baer-Yes, Schnelder-Yes) II, Pay AppUcatlon No, 5 
The Council approved the following .audit Couocllman Baer made a motion to ac
bills: (Obligewitsch/Baer) (Obrigewltach - cept Pay Application No. 5 In the amount • 
Yes, Baer-Yes, Schnelder-Yes) of$181,244.38 to Scull Construction. I 
HURT, ALANTSON $402.85 ROLLER, (Baer/Obrigewltsch) (Obrlgewitsch • Yes, f 
DUANE $296.37 ROLLER, DUANE Baer-Yes, Schneider-Yes) 
$278.58 ROLLER, DUANE $278.58 Nata- ~ protect Update; 1 

lie Muruato $493.67 AMERIPRIDE SER· Aftomey Kuntz reported that a meeting is 
VICES INC $90.02 BLUECROSS BLUE- scheduled Thursday, March 9th with KW 
SHIELD $504.00 CITY OF DICKINSON and their Legal Counsel to discuss the as
$1, 145.76 CONSOLIDATED $487.98 sessment errors. Mayor Leo Schneider 
CREATIVE ENERGY $704.25 DICKIN- and Councilman Iverson will attend. 
SON TIRE $5,055.65 EMC INSURANCE 2nd Readfng of Ordinance No, 379 
COMPANIES $968.64 FISHER SAND & Roughrlder Electric Cooperative Service 
GRAVEL $1,095.34 GEORGE'S TIRE Agreement . 
SHOP INC $260.00 GUARDIAN FLEET Councilman Baer made a motion approye 
SAFETY $114.88 HLEBECHUK CON- the 2nd Reading of Ordinance 379 re
STRUCTION INC $1,899.80 INFORMA· gardlng the Roughrlder Electric Coopera
TION TECHNOLOGY DEPT $95.50 J P tive Franchise Agreement. (Obrige
COOKE CO $59.26 LEGAL EDGE SO- wlts~b/Baer) (O.brigewltsch • Yes, Baer • 
LUTIONS PLLC $9,298.50 MDU Yes, Schnelder-yes) 
$7,792.13 MENARDS-DICKINSON 2nd Readlng of Ordlnance No. 380 
$1,270.45 ND ONE CALL $1ao.oo NOA- Montana Dakota mmues service 
co RESOURCES -GROUP INC Agreement 
$1,108.80 NEWMAN OUTDOOR AD- Councilman Baer made a motion to ap
Vl:RTISING $510.00 NORTH DAKOTA prove the 2nd Reading.of Ordinance 380 

i DEPT OF HEALTH $451.49 PRAXAIR regarding the Montana Dakota Utilities 
1 DISTRIBUTION INC. $22.66 PUMP SYS· Fr~nchlse Agreement. (Baer/Qbrlge
TEMS LLC $259.30 PURCHASE POW- witsch) (Obrigewltsch - Yes, Baer - Yes, 
ER $247.17 REICHERT ARMSTRONG .if Schnelder-yes) 
$190.00 ROUGHRIDER ELECTRIC"'l'SWAContractUpdate 
COOP INC $25.00 SBM $53.99 SCULL Attorney Kuntz asked for clarification from 
CONSTRUCTION $25,757.94 SOUTH- SWA legal counsel regarding Incremental 
WEST WATER AUTHORITY $14,065.22 waterallotments. 
STARK COUNTY AUDITOR $2,500.00 Junk Properties Update 
SW MULTI-CO CORRECTION CENTER The Police officers have taken several · 
$7, 117.0Q THE "DICKIN.SON PRESS pho\os of the current properties that were 
$288.36 TITAN MACHINERY $2,814.27 advised to clean their properties along 
TOMS SERVICE CENTER $793.08 with new properties requiring notice about 
VERIZON WIRELESS $.304.70 WEX the accumulation of junk on their proper
BANK,$233.75 ANNA ROSS $19.59 ties. Attorney Kuntz will review the pho
AT&T $624.15 BELFIELD AMBULANCE tos. 
$295.18 BELFIELD FIRE DEPARTMENT Committee Reports; 
$885.54 BELFIELD PARK DISTRICT Auditors Report: Councilman made a mo
$2,951.81. CARDMEMBER SERVICE tion to approve the auditor's report as pre
$8,449.86 CENTURYLINK $115.84 DA~ sented. (Baer/Obrlgewitsch) (Obrlge- r 
KOTA FARM EQUIPMENT $66.19 DIG!- witsch-Yes,Baer-Yes,Schneider-Yes). t 
TAL .ALLY $40.00 INTERSTATE POWER' , Personnel: Councilman Baer made a mo- V. 

SYSTEMS $1,345.00 KEVINS AUTO & lion to move Deputy Anna Ross from 
TRUCK REPAIR $33.60 LEO SCHNEI- Part-time status to full-time status effec- ;. 
DER $79.75 NOBOA SECRE· tive the upcoming payroll period of March 
TARY/TREASURER $30.00 RECORD 13th. (Baer/Obrigewltsch) (Obrigewitsch • wi 
KEEPERS LLC $42.00 REICHERT ARM- Yes, Baer-Yes, Schnelder-Yes). 
STRONG $142.50 SENIOR CITIZENS Streets; Nothing to Report 
CENTER $295.18 TITAN MACHINERY Water/Sewer; Councilman Obrlgewitsch 
sn.10 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE would like ask each of the city appointed 
$5,666.21 INTERNAL REVENUE SER- engineers to put together bids for a city 
VICE $6,02.4.7.5 VIVINT $344.95,INTER- wide mapping project starting with curb 
NAL REVENUE SERVICE $6,011.75 stop shut offs, gate valves, fire hydrants ~ 

-J;iavifr,ack.J.$-1.2 ~66 ,81 ws-ekly-..AC H _,_ .... and~rn~llbole~-,apd,~o includa.an esti~ ti 
,.$15,73lt1t> j:3iw~kly ACH $.14.~1.7.sp ~1-; 1 .mate of'ttte cost'ot b,ulldlng a GIS map c 
weekly ACFI $15,827.15 · that the city employees would be able to 
pgnca Report/Stark Couoty etu,od Interact with. The Auditor Is to send .letters f 
Chief Barnhard presented documentation with the required specifications and ask 
regarding the cost of hiring a fourth offl- that the three ·city engineers provide a 5 
cer. Councilman Baer would like to re- minute presentation with their bid at the 
view the Information. Chief Barnhard also next councli meeting 
informed the council that the police de- Refusellnert; The Inert pile will be open 
partment will be ,required to enforce their during government week April 3·7th. 
own warrants as Stark County is over Councilman Obrigewitsch made a motion 
loaded with other tasks. to have Hlebechuk Construction tear 
The Council made a motion to accept the down the dilapidated buildings the city re
Police report as presented. (Baer/Obrige- calved for back taxes. (Obrige
witsch) (Obrigewitsch - Yes, Baer - Yes, witsch/Baer) (Obrigewltsch - Yes, Baer -
Schneider-Yes) Yes, Schnelder-yes) 

. Councilman Obrigewitsch made a motion Mlscenaneous Correspondence· The 
to accept ttle Stark County Sheriffs report Council made a motion to approve $500 
as presented. (Obrlg·ewltsch/Baer) donation to the Belfield Post Prom Com
(Obrigewltsch - Yes, . Baer - Yes, Schnel· mittee. {Obrlgewitsch/Baer) (Obrigewltsch 
der-Yes) -Yes, Baer -Yes, Schnelder-yes) 
New Business: Being no further business, Councilman 
Fulton Request to Split Lots Baer made a motion for adjournment at 
Councilman Baer made a motion to ap- 8:30PM with the next regular council 
prove splitting Lot 1 Block 1 Into two lots meeting scheduled for Monday, April 3rd, 
Lot 1A and Lot 18. The auditor is to di- 2017. (Baer/Obrigewltsch) (Unanimous) 
vid~ the street assessments on each lot ATTEST: · 
for next year's taxes. (Baer/Obrigewltsch) Leo Schnelder. Mayor 
{Obrigewitsch - Yes, Baerr- Yes, Schnel-. Natalle Muruato, Auditor 
der-Yes) (Published March 25. 2017) 

201



Published In the 
Bowman County Pioneer 

March 17th, 2017 

Minutes for Rhame City Council 
Monday, February 13, 2017 7:00 PM 

. Rhame City Hall 

Grace called meeting to order at 7:00 
PM 
Roll Call: Neyl Egon, Mike Germann, 
Brandy Getz, Grace Wood, Jeremy 
Stotts, Helen Edwards, Gall Olson, Bill 
& Tessa Schmitt, Dennis Walser. Nick 
Werth came in at 7:40 PM 
Agenda: Teran Doer was not able to 
make it to the scheduled meeting so 

· will be here In March. Mike made a 
motion to approve the agenda. with 
changes. Brandy seconded It Motion 
carried. 
Minutes: Mike made a motion to ac
cept the minutes from the Jan. 9th, 
18th.and February 8th meetings. 
Neyl seconded It. Motion carried. . 
Mayor comment: Discussion was 
held on hiring the new auditor. Brandy 
made a inotion to hire Angela Headley 
as new Rhame City Auditor. Mike sec
onded It. Motion carried. Angela will 
be starting on February 24th. Brandy 
and Grace are keeping up with the 
monthly bills and keeping the city go
ing. Neyl made a motion to accept the 
bills that were paid. Mike seconded it 
Motion carried. · 
Streets: Jeremy has been keeping up 
with snow and ice removal on streets. 
There are a few spots to fix on North 
Street and RR and Elevator Street will 
need some gravel. 
Water/Sewer: Water usage has been 
high but had come down last month. 
Jeremy was checking on some meters 
that have had unusual readings. He 
will flX any that he can and will be re
placing meters as needed. Many me
ters have yet to t,e' lnstaiied. Jeremy 
will freaf 'antf flbsh1

" soniif of"lhe 11iies ' 
this spring to getahead of treehoots. 
Employee contracts: Will continue 
looking into this so we have a set 
schedule. WIii check with surrounding 
towns. 
Old Business: 2nd reading of rescind
ing the Senior Snow Removal Policy. 
Mike make a motion to rescind the pol
icy, Neyl seconded It. Motion carried. 
Discussion was held on external au

dit. Brandy will check to see when we 
can get this done. 
Rhame City has a credit with Baker 

Recycling. We'll keep it there and use 
it toward. dumpster for Rhame clean
up. Tabled It to later meeting. 
Bill and Tessa came in to check to 
~ about getting road moved by 
their house. Discussion was held but 
board decided .that It was an estab
lished road and was grandfathered In. 
Had come across this problem before 
and things would stay as they are. 

J\ Discussion was 'held on the SW Wa
ter Authority transfer of Service. Will 
check with Steve and others with SW 
Water. Will table It until next meeting. 
City Work Compensation: Neyl '11ade 
a motion to pay compensation for do
ing city work to keep Rhame operating 
after resignation of city auditor and un
til the new Auditor starts. Mike sec
onded It. Motion approved. * 
Brancfy made a motion to approve 
Helen Edwards to fill in the 4th open 
city commissioner position. Neyl sec-

. onded It Motion approved. · 
Next regular City Council meeting 
will be at the City Hall at 7:00 PM on 
March 13, 2017. . 
Mike madQ a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at·a:35 PM. Neyl seconded 
it. Motloncarrled. . ~-

Respectfully submltte<!, 2 f lil I 11 
· Grace Wood, Mayor ~ 
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City·of Medor~ 
City .of. Medora 

Minutes from Regular Meeting 
March.7, 2011· 

- :.(Subject~uncit;.r.e"'8.w.~ap. 
. · ,·., ,:: prdval)'\;'i(.·,:1 .') .. ' 

Meeting was called to order at 6:00 
p.m. by Mayor Todd Corneil. Present 
were Councilmen Denis Joyce, John 
Tczap, and Kinley Slauter. Ben Bran'
num was present via telephone. City At
torney, Sandy Kuntz, was-also ·p·resent. 
City Engineer, Mike Njos, was absent. 

Minutes from the February 7 regular 
meeting, February 14 & February 22 
special . meetings were. reviewed. 
Slauter made·the motion'to approve the 
February 7: February 14, & February 22 
minutes;· Second by Joyce. Discussion: 
Tczap would like further clarification re
garding why he wa·s asked .to abstain 
from voting at the February 22 meeting. 
It will be 'discussed under OB Agenda 
Item "Review memo._from Attorney_ 
Kuntz". Steffen added a change in the 
February _22 minutes· should read that 
the snow blower attachment was pur
chased from West Plains, Inc. Minutes 
were unanimousfy,apprbved: . 
~ City Attoney, Sandy;Kuntz:·reported 

that she is still working to get one more 
addition to our SW Water Contract. ,Jt · 

The written Ponce report tor The 
month of February was revieweq. Pub-

. lie Works Director, Dell Beach; reported 
the ·stte of, the. _cable builQing . js being 
complete1y·.c1eared. Beach plans .to 
crack seat th.e. bike path thi,s spring. 
The cost to reb'uitd the old lift station 
pump is $3,087, It would be a spare 
pump if the main pun:ip went out. · ft was 
the consensus of· ttie Council to have 
the old pump rebuilt. City .r~sident, 
Mary Griffin Abrahamson, quest~oned if 
the cable tv building could be used as a 
warming house if an ice skating rink is 
built in the pool·· park area. Corneil 
stated that the building is not in very 
good shape, but he and Dellwill look at 
it. 

Feline City Policy Defined: The cur
rent City Ordinances regardir~g cats 
were reviewed. The feral cat program 
that the City has adopted i~ not re
flected · in the ordinances. There· was 
discussion regarding if the intent was to 
bring feral cats back to the city after 
they.'ve been spayed/neutered or. it 
OREO was going to find homes for 
therr1 .. · Sandy Baertsch handed out in
formation' regarding how' qominunities 
can help with feral cat situations. 
Baertsch stated Medora is lucky to have 
cat · supporter_s in the community and 
th·ey prefer that _Medora does not be
come a community of euthani.~i11g cats. 
~orneil a~ded the program:.is working 
and ordinances should be updated to, 
reflect the program. Tczap questioned 
who is providir:,g ownership of the cats 
once the· City pays for vet bjlls. He is 
concerned who is liable if someone 
would get bit or hurt. Attorney Kuntz will 
review other city's ordinances and'bring 
back·ideas. 

A Special Ev~ntPerrnit.from Dr. Re
becca Kasian to host the 2nd Annual 
Wine and Cheese Walk on 

April 27 was reviewed. Chief Bey 
stated he has rJO concerns. Joyce 
made the motion to approve the Special 
Event Permit Second by Slauter. Mo
tion passed unanimously.. . -.I 

, ··A SIJe·Authdrizatio·n _subn:Jit,ed by 
Home on the Rarige 'for gaming ~t Cow
boy Hall of Fame was reviewed. Joyce 
made the motio'n to approve the Site 
Authorization. Second by, Tczap. Mo-· 
tion passed unanimously. 

The City Housing Lease tor Russ 

Golch.n YaJ ~· 
· 3· }lt, •. \f 
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Lapp was reviewed for a two-year re
newal. There is still a list· of items that 
need ·to b·e complet~p/repaired fro111 
when the house was built in 201 O: 
Joyce made the motion to renew,·. the 
lease. Second by Tczap. ;-.,L:Mation 
passed unanimously. Kuntz stated 
there should be timeline for repairs to 
be cpmple~ed1 , . Lapp and Beach will · 
take·care of doing the repairs and will 
hire a contract<;>.~ jf there is .something 
they are unable. to· do. Corneil added 
that the other city house also need~ 
some rep~rs aod should be lookec.t at. 

Parade/Animal Rides Permit No. 03~ 
2017, a request by Badlands Stage
coach & Conveyance to offer 
stagE;coach rides within · the City of 
Medora, was reviewed:.Slauter made 
the motion tQ,approve P~rade/Animal 
Rides Permit No. 03-2017 co11tingent 
that there must be curbside load,ing,,and 
unloading in a res~rved spot that is;only 
reserved when operating; ~nq ;the, City 
of Medora must be, listed on the insur
ance policy. Second by Tczap: M9tion 
passed unanimously. . . . 

· The January 31, 2017 memo'.(rom 
Attorney Sandy Kuntz, .regarding pon .. 
duct of city council meetings .and 
Robert's Ru1es of Order, w.as reviewed; 
Tczap asked for clarifica~iop on why he 
wasn't allowed to_ vat~, a~ the February 
22 meetir,g. J'czap ~-I~ .follow-up re.; 
search and he. f~el~ it is ;~i~ ml~ and 
duty to vote. He questlons;where the 
conflict lies when he had no financial 
gain. Kuntz responded that beyond fi
nancial gain there -is also bias--she 
laoked at the situation of. both Tczap 
and Brannum abstail'.ling fr.om voting; 
regarding the Police Chief appointrrlent; 
based on what would be best for the 
City. Kuntz ·added that these fr~nk cc;,ri
versations ar~ ih)poHant ·anti th~ coun;, 
cil needs to be able hto have ·adult 
conversations and . ···set. good . exam~ 
pies-agree to disagree~iind then move 
forwarc.f. Tczap does. riot w~nt_.to' bi:f dis
missed from making further decisions 
regarding the ·police·· 'department' and 
feels that his 33-year law .enforcement 
career makes. him worthy to be'inch.ided 
in police decisions. 1Slauter also ques
tioned if it is a conflictfor him to vote on 
issues dealing with TRMF since he is 
an employee. Kuntz stated a'reason for 
not voting and what the bias wbuld be 
should be stated if a conflicf arises: 
Kuntz recommends further review of 
her memo 'and consideration.1 Of adapt• 
ing parts of it as·policy. 'Kunli will·also 
review the city's employee policy man .. 
ual. \ , 

Under Misc. Business, Officer Russ· 
Lapp reported that he will order p. re~ 
tirement ptaque for Chief Bey. . 

Financiars werij' presented:·· Joyce 
made the motion to accept the finan
cials. Second by Slauter. Motion 
passed unanimously. ·.:. 
2890 REBECCA KASIAN 13.60·; 
2891 ROUGHRIDER 
ELECTRIC COOP, INC ·-- · ·7'14.00 '. 
2892 SOUTHWEST WATER·" ' ·, 

'""' A1tlil*l©Bt~.:++- s;:~:F-:?.B:it~~-=. .. .,..-.-
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5122 ROUGHRIDER 
ELECTRIC cooP., INC , 30.00-: 
15618 AIRE-MASTER OF 
NO.OAK. 13.00 
15619 BELFIELD AUTO 
SUPPLY, INC 167.25 
15620 BILLINGS COUNIY--- __ _: ___ .:_ __ 
PIONEER · ,, · . , 258.66 
15621 BUFFALO GAP INC. 
THE . . . 150.00 
15622 CARLA STEFFEN 207.51 
15623 DAKOTA DUST-TEX, 
INC. 173.00 
15624 Dell Beach 142.57 
15625 FARMERS UNION 3868.46 
15626 HAMPTON 
INN-BISMARCK ··182.00 
15627 HOLIDAY INN MINOT 840.00 
15628 ITD· 40.65 
15629 JOHN HILD 87.50 
15630 JOHN TCZAP 167.24 
15631 Legal Edge Solutions,. · 
PLLC ' 2100.00 
15632 LYUBOMYR SHKANDRIY87.50 
15633 Mark Dreyer 349.16 
15634 MATI LARSON 312.16 
15635 MIDSTATE 
TELEPHONE COMPANY 810 .. 72 
15636 P~RKWAY · · · · 
FORD LINCOLN MERCURY . 741.95 
15637 POSTMASTER · · · ' 100:00 
15638 PUMP SYSTEM·s LLC · 316.60 
15639 RADISSON HOTEL~.. . 81.90 
15647 RAMKOTA HOTEL 
BISMARCK - ' 273.00 
15648.ROUGHRIDER 
ELECTRIC COOP, INC 2544.54 1 

15649 SIMPLEX GRINNELL LP384.00 
15650 SOUTHWEST . . .... 
BUSINESS' MACHINES, INC. ~84;85 . 
15651 SOUTHWEST. '· 
WATER AUTHORITY · · 43.72 
15652 STEIN'S, INC 1215.64 
15653 TODD CORNEIL 216.26 
Payroll and. Other Pre-·pays: 
February F~peral . 1 • -. " 

Payroll Taxes 6784.33 · 
Payr_oll 2-.10-17 , 11·420.20 
Payro!I. 2-24:-:-17 , r'Hi' · .. _ : 8849.14: 
15610 AFLAC 161.28 
15611 Avesis. (Vision)· . · .. 88.75' · 
· 15612 Am~ritas :(Dental) · . 830!67 
15613 NDPERS Def:'Comp 613.00 
15614 NDPERS Retirement 3762.53 
15617 NDPERS Health 8504.53 
15598AT&TMobUity· ·, 174.25 
15599 AT&T Mobility 133.24 
15616 West Plains, Inc., .. . 5549.00 · 

Mayor Cornett read .tne anrio'uhce
ments. There being no other business, 
motioned to adjourn. With n'O)Sbjection, 
meeting was adjoomed at 1.:30· p.tn. 

ATIEST:Todcf Com.en,. MAYOR 7 

ATIEST:Carla ,steffen;-AllDITOR 
··,,·(M_~rch 16):' 1 ' : • 
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

Southwest Water Authority 

4665 2nd Street SW 

Dickinson, ND 58601 

For more information contact: 

Sandy Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator 

Email: sburwick@swwater.com 

Phone: 701-225-0241 

SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY ACHIEVES CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT  
FOR SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 

 

Dickinson, ND – March 15, 2017 – Southwest Water Authority has received Certificate of Achievements for 
Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 from the North Dakota Department of Health. The Safe Drinking Water Act 
(SDWA) applies to every public water system in the United States. Southwest Water Authority’s five public water 
systems achieved this Certificate of Compliance. These public water systems include service from the Water 
Treatment Plant in Dickinson, the OMND Water Treatment Plant, the Crown Butte, Junction Inn and Tower Hill 
pocket areas in Morton County.  
 

By law, all public water systems are required by the SDWA to take actions to protect source water and provide 
safe drinking water. The SDWA was passed by Congress to protect public health by regulating the nation’s public 
drinking supplies. It was first passed in 1974, where it focused on treatment as means of providing safe drinking 
water at the tap. In was amended in 1986 and again in 1996. The 1996 amendments enhanced the existing law by 
recognizing source water protection, funding for water system improvements and public information as important 
components of safe drinking water. Southwest Water Authority Manager/CEO Mary Massad states, “Our number 
one priority has always been and will always be quality water for our customers.” She added, “I am very pleased 
to accept these Safe Drinking Water Act Certificates of Achievement on behalf of our Board of Directors, 
dedicated staff and the North Dakota State Water Commission who all work very hard to ensure consistent 
performance of our water quality.”  
 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency sets national standards for drinking water to ensure 
consistent quality in our nation’s water supply. The North Dakota Department of Health requires a yearly 
assessment for all of the State’s public water systems. Each year Southwest Water Authority has met the required 
standards to achieve a SDWA Certificate of Compliance. For more information on Southwest Water Authority’s 
quality water visit www.swwater.com.  
 

Since 1986, the Southwest Pipeline Project has been constructing an efficient network of pipelines, pump stations, 
reservoirs, and treatment facilities to bring quality water to the region. To date, 33 communities, more than 6,800 
rural service locations, 23 contract customers, 21 raw-water customers, two rural water systems, three crew camps 
and two raw water depots are served by the Pipeline. Reaching new rural areas is dependent on everyone’s 
support. Southwest Water Authority continues its mission of Quality Water for Southwest North Dakota.       

### 
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:,fl!!: NORTH DAKOTA 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION 

Gold Seal Center, 918 E. Divide Ave. 

~, DEPARTMENT of HEALTH 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

MEMORANDUM 

Southwest Water Authority (ND4501434) 

Division of Municipal Facilities 
Drinking Water Program 

March 6, 2017 

Bismarck, ND 58501-1947 
701.328.5200 {fax) 
www.ndhealth.gov 

RE: Safe Drinking Water Act Certificate of Achievement 

Public water systems, such as yours, are required by the Safe Drinking Water Act 
(SOWA) to take many actions to provide safe drinking water. 

The SOWA was passed by Congress in 1974 to protect public health by regulating the 
nation's public drinking (potable) water supplies. Over the years, there have been a 
number of changes to the Safe Drinking Water Act. These changes have made it more 
challenging to maintain compliance. The North Dakota Department of Health issues a 
Safe Drinking Water Act Certificate of Achievement as one way to recognize the public 
water systems that satisfied all applicable requirements during the previous calendar year. 

In 2016, Southwest Water Authority satisfied all applicable Safe Drinking Water Act 
requirements. Southwest Water Authority is commended for this accomplishment from 
which their consumers benefitted. 

To recognize Southwest Water Authority, the Department has issued the enclosed Safe 
Drinking Water Act ·certificate of Achievement. Please provide a copy of the certificate to 
each of your water system staff. Information is also enclosed for your consideration 
should you wish to pursue a local news story. 

Congratulations on a job well done. 

For more information, please contact Greg Wavra, Drinking Water Program Manager at 
701.328.5224. 

Encs. 

Environmental Health 
Section Chiefs Office 

701.328.5150 

Division of 
Air Quality 

701.328.5188 

Division of 
Municipal Facilities 

701.328.5211 

Printed on recycled paper. 

Division of 
Waste Management 

701.328.5166 

Division of 
Water Quality 
701.328.5210 
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION 
Gold Seal Center, 918 E. Divide Ave. ~il!flNORTH DAKOTA 

~, DEPARTMENT of HEALTH 
Bismarck, ND 58501-1947 

701.328.5200 (fax) 
www.ndhealth.gov 

SOUTHWEST WATER AUTHORITY RECOGNIZED FOR SAFE DRINKING 
WATER ACT COMPLIANCE 

Public water systems are required by the Safe Drinking Water Act (SOWA) to take many 
actions to provide safe drinking water. 

The SOWA was passed by Congress in 197 4 to protect public health by regulating the 
nation's public drinking (potable) water supplies. Over the years, there have been a 
number of changes to the Safe Drinking Water Act. These changes have made it more 
challenging to maintain compliance. The North Dakota Department of Health issues a 
Safe Drinking Water Act Certificate of Achievement as one way to recognize the public 
water systems that satisfied all applicable requirements during the previous calendar year. 

In 2016, Southwest Water Authority complied with all applicable Safe Drinking Water Act 
requirements. To recognize this accomplishment, the North Dakota Department of Health 
issued Southwest Water Authority a Safe Drinking Water Act Certificate of Achievement. 

Southwest Water Authority commends its water system staff for a job well done from 
which its consumers benefitted. 

(Option: The water system may wish to list staff members by name.) 

Environmental Health 
Section Chief's Office 

701.328.5150 

Division of 
Air Quality 

701.328.5188 

Division of 
Municipal Facilities 

701.328.5211 

Printed on recycled paper. 

Division of 
Waste Management 

701.328.5166 

Division of 
Water Quality 
701.328.5210 
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THE NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
presents 

Southwest 'Water }f.utliority 
this 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
for satisfying applicable requirements of the 

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 
for the year 2016. 

"-lJ. a)~~~ 
Division of Municipal Facilities 

March 6, 2017 
Date of Issuance 

©GOES 746 LITHOIN USA 
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THE NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT-OF HEALTH 
presents 

09,l:}((J) 'Water <Treatment <.Pfant 
this 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
for satisfying applicable requirements of the 

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 
for the year 2016. 

"-I), a}~ c{£4J 
Division of Municipal Facilities 

March 6, 2017 
Date of Issuance 

@GOES746 LITHO IN US.A 
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THE NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
presents 

Soutliwest W)f.-Crown (}Jutte(9dissouri West) 
this 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
for satisfying applicable requirements of the 

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 
for the year 2016. 

VJ. l(}~,., c:(.ev 
Division of Municipal Facilities 

March 6, 2017 
Date of Issua nee 

©GOES 746 LITHOINU SA 
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~ THE NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
presents 

Southwest 'W}I-Junction Inn(:M.issouri 'West) 
this 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
for satisfying applicable requirements of the 

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 
for the year 2016. 

March 6, 2017 
Date of Issua nee 

©GOES746 LITHO IN U SA 
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THE NORTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
presents 

Southwest 'WJf.-<Tower J{i[{ (9rf.issouri 'West) 
this 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 
for satisfying applicable requirements of the 

·SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT 
for the year 2016. 

March 6, 2017 
Date of Issuance 

©GOES 746 LITHO IN USA 
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MEMORANDUM  
 
To: Mary Massad, Manager/CEO 
 
From: Sandra Burwick, CFO/Office Administrator 
 
Subject: Legislative Employee Benefits Programs Committee – Incidental Information 
 
Date: March 29, 2017 
 
 
Attached are the Employee Benefits Programs Committee agenda for the March 23, 2017, 
meeting, along with HB 1403, HB 1436 and HB 2053.  
 
The committee considered comments and information relating to the following bill drafts 
pertinent to SWA:  
 
House Bill No. 1403  
Relates to public employee health benefits prescription drug coverage transparency. 
 
House Bill No. 1436  
Relates to the employee benefits program committee, public employee uniform group insurance 
health benefits coverage, and to provide for a retirement board line of credit. 
 
House Bill No. 2053 
Relates to technical corrections  
 
 
 
 

........ ..... SOUTHWESTWATER ,,.~RJTY 
Our Vision: People and Business Succeeding with Quality Water Our Mission: Quality Water for Southwest North Dakota 

West Industrial Park, 4665 2nd Street SW, Dickinson, ND 58601-7231 I p: 701.225.0241 1.888.425.0241 f: 701.225.4058 I www.SWwater.com 
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19.5007.02000 Revised
3/22/2017

NORTH DAKOTA LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT
Tentative Agenda

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PROGRAMS COMMITTEE
Thursday, March 23, 2017

Harvest Room, State Capitol
Bismarck, North Dakota

4:00 p.m. Call to order
Roll call
Consideration of the minutes of the February 16, 2017, meeting
Comments by the Chairman

4:05 p.m. Committee consideration and receipt of technical comments and actuarial information 
relating to House Bill No. 1436, regarding the Public Employees Retirement System 
health insurance plan and money in the health insurance reserve fund [17.1008.03000]

• Comments by interested persons
4:25 p.m. Committee consideration and receipt of technical comments and actuarial information 

relating to proposed amendments to Senate Bill No. 2053, relating to Public Employees 
Retirement System technical corrections [17.0118.03000]

• Comments by interested persons
4:35 p.m. Committee consideration and receipt of technical comments and actuarial information 

relating to proposed amendments to House Bill No. 1403, relating to public employee 
health benefits transparency [17.0720.02000]

• Comments by interested persons
4:45 p.m. Committee discussion and directives
5:00 p.m. Adjourn

Committee Members
Senators: Karen K. Krebsbach (Chairman), Dick Dever, Ralph Kilzer,  Carolyn C. Nelson, Erin Oban, 

Nicole Poolman
Representatives: Pamela  Anderson,  Randy Boehning,  Jason Dockter,  Ron  Guggisberg,  Gary Kreidt, 

Vernon Laning, Mary Schneider

Staff Contact: Alex J. Cronquist, Fiscal Analyst
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17.0720.02000

Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representatives Kasper, Rick C. Becker, Boehning, Headland, Keiser, Louser, Nathe, D. 
Ruby

Senators Anderson, Bekkedahl, Casper, O. Larsen

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, relating to public employee health benefits transparency; and to provide an 

exemption.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

and enacted as follows:

Health insurance benefits coverage - Prescription drug coverage - Transparency - 

Audits - Confidentiality.

1. If the prescription drug coverage component of the health insurance benefits coverage 

utilizes the services of a pharmacy benefits manager, the insurer's contract with the 

board must include the following terms:

a. The insurer shall provide the board with a copy of the insurer's current contract 

with the pharmacy benefit management company and if the contract is revised or 

a new contract is entered, within thirty days of the change the insurer shall 

provide the board with the revision or new contract.

b. The health insurer or pharmacy benefit manager shall provide with each invoice 

statement and for each annual audit a complete set of electronic prescription 

coverage claims data reflecting all submitted claims, including information fields 

identified by the board.

c. The health insurer shall provide the board a list of all programs that will be 

implemented or modified, including prior authorization programs, step therapy 

programs, quality limit programs, and mandatory generic programs. The list must 

include the drugs in each program and the specifics about each drug.

Page No. 1 17.0720.02000

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1403
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Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly

d. (1) The board may retain an auditor of the board's choice which is not a 

competitor of the pharmacy benefit manager, a pharmaceutical 

manufacturer representative, or any retail, mail, or specialty drug pharmacy 

representative or vendor.

(2) The board may conduct annual audits to verify the pharmacy benefit 

manager is satisfying the terms of its contract with the health insurer; 

assess the costs resulting from the health insurer's contract with the 

pharmacy benefit manager and make recommendations as to amendments 

in that contract which would decrease costs; and assess the programs 

being implemented and make recommendations as to improvements in 

those programs which would decrease cost or improve plan beneficiaries' 

health care treatment.

2. Information provided to the board under the contract provisions required under this 

section are confidential; however, the board may disclose the information to retained 

experts and the information retains its confidential status in the possession of these 

experts.

SECTION 2. EXEMPTION. This Act is exempt from the jurisdiction of the employee benefits 

programs committee under section 54-35-02.4.

Page No. 2 17.0720.02000
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17.1008.03000

Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Representatives Carlson, Bellew, Kasper, Keiser, Streyle, Vigesaa

Senators Bekkedahl, Casper, Laffen, Schaible

(Approved by the Delayed Bills Committee)

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 54-35-02.4, 54-52.1-04, 54-52.1-04.2, and 

54-52.1-04.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the employee benefits program 

committee, public employee uniform group insurance health benefits coverage, and to provide 

for a retirement board line of credit; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide for 

application; and to provide statements of legislative intent.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 54-35-02.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-35-02.4. Employee benefits programs committee - Standing committees   -   Powers 

and duties.

1. TheDuring the interim between regular legislative sessions, the employee benefits 

programs committee shall consider and report on those legislative measures and 

proposals sponsored by the executive branch, judicial branch, and legislative 

management over which itthe committee takes jurisdiction and which affect, actuarially 

or otherwise, the retirement programs of state employees or employees of any political 

subdivision, and health and retiree health plans of state employees or employees of 

any political subdivision. The committee shall make a thorough review of anya 

measure or proposal over which itthe committee takes under its jurisdiction, including 

an actuarial review. The committee shall take jurisdiction over any such measure or 

proposal that authorizes an automatic increase or other change in benefits beyond the 

ensuing biennium which would not require legislative approval. The committee 

mustshall include in the report of the committee a statement that the proposal would 

allow future changes without legislative involvement. The committee shall report its 
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findings and recommendations, along with any necessary legislation, to the legislative 

management and to the legislative assembly.

2. To carry out its responsibilities, the committee, or its designee, may:

a. Enter contracts, including retainer agreements, with an actuary or actuarial firm 

for expert assistance and consultation. Each retirement, insurance, or retiree 

insurance program shall pay, from its retirement, insurance, or retiree health 

benefits fund, as appropriate, and without the need for a prior appropriation, the 

cost of any actuarial report required by the committee or a standing committee as 

provided under subsection     6   which relates to that program.

b. Call on personnel from state agencies or political subdivisions to furnish such 

information and render such assistance as the committee may from time to time 

request.

c. Establish rules for its operation of the committee, including the submission and 

review of proposals and the establishing of standards for actuarial review.

3. TheDuring the interim between regular legislative sessions, the committee may solicit 

draft measures and proposals from interested persons during the interim between 

legislative sessionsthe executive branch, judicial branch, and legislative management, 

and may also study measures and proposals referred to itthe committee by the 

legislative assembly or the legislative management.

4. A copy of the committee's report concerning any legislative measure shall, if thatIf a 

legislative measure or proposal over which the committee took jurisdiction under 

subsection     1   is introduced for consideration by a legislative assembly, a copy of the 

related committee report must be appended to the copy of that measure which is 

referred to a standing committee.

5. A legislative measure affecting a public employees retirement program, public 

employees health insurance program, or public employee retiree health insurance 

program may not be introducedsubmitted by the executive branch, judicial branch, or 

legislative management for introduction in either house unless itthe measure is 

accompanied by a report from the committee. A majority of the members of the 

committee, acting through the chairman, has sole authority to determine whether anya 

legislative measure affects a program.
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6. AnyDuring a legislative session, if a standing committee recommends an amendment 

made during a legislative session to a legislative measure affectingwhich would affect 

a public employees retirement program, public employees health insurance program, 

or public employee retiree health insurance program may not be considered by a 

standing committee unless it is accompanied by a report from the employee benefits 

programs committee, the standing committee shall consider the impact, actuarily or 

otherwise, of the amendment and may request the affected program provide an 

analysis of the impact of the amendments. If an affected program provides an analysis 

under this subsection, the program may pay for the analysis in the same manner as 

provided under subdivision     a of subsection     2  .

7. Any legislation enacted in contravention of this section is invalid and of no force and 

effect, and any benefits provided under such legislation must be reduced to the level 

current prior to enactment.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04. Board to contract for insurance.

1. The board shall receive bids for the providing of hospital benefits coverage, medical 

benefits coverage, life insurance benefits coverage for a specified term, and employee 

assistance program services; may receive bids separately for prescription drug 

coverage; and shall accept one or more bids of and contract with the carriers that in 

the judgment of the board determines best servesserve the interests of the state and 

itsthe state's eligible employees. Solicitations must be made not later than ninety days 

before the expiration of an existing uniform group insurance contract. Bids must be 

solicited by advertisement in a manner selected by the board thatwhich will provide 

reasonable notice to prospective bidders. In preparing bid proposals and evaluating 

bids, the board may utilize the services of consultants on a contract basis in order 

thatto provide the bids received may be uniformly compared and properly evaluated. 

In determining which bid, if any, will best serve the interests of eligible employees and 

the state, the board shall give adequate consideration to the following factors:

1. a. The economy to be effected.

2. b. The ease of administration.
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3. c. The adequacy of the coverages.

4. d. The financial position of the carrier, with special emphasis as to itson the 

solvency of the carrier.

5. e. The reputation of the carrier and any other information that is available tending to 

show past experience with the carrier in matters of claim settlement, 

underwriting, and services.

2. The board may reject any or all bids and, in the event it does so,received under this 

section. If the board rejects all bids received, the board shall again solicit bids as 

provided in this section. The

3. Under section 54  -  52.1  -  04.1 or 54  -  52.1  -  04.2, the   board may contract with a health 

maintenance organization or establish a plan of self-insurance for providing health 

insuranceto provide hospital, medical, or prescription drug benefits coverage only 

under an administrative services only (ASO) contract or a third-party administrator 

(TPA) contract.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04.2. Self-insurance plan for hospital and, medical, and prescription drug 

benefits coverage.

1. The board may establishThis section applies to a self-insurance plan for providing:

a. Health insurancehospital, medical, and prescription drug benefits coverage;

b. Health insurancehospital and medical benefits coverage, excluding all or part 

of prescription drug benefits coverage; or

c. Allall or part of prescription drug benefits coverage. The board shall establish a 

self  -  insurance plan under this section if so directed by the legislative assembly. The   

board may establish a self  -  insurance plan under this section if the board determines a   

self  -  insurance plan is less costly than the lowest bid submitted by a carrier for   

underwriting the plan with equivalent contract benefits.

2. AnyA self-insurance plan established by the board under this section must be provided 

under an administrative services only (ASO) contract or a third-party administrator 

(TPA) contract under the uniform group insurance program, and may be established 

only if it is determined by the board that an administrative services only or third-party 
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administrator plan is less costly than the lowest bid submitted by a carrier for 

underwriting the plan with equivalent contract benefits. Upon establishing.

3. If the board establishes a self-insurance plan, the board shall solicit bids for anterm of 

the contract for administrative services only or a third-party administrator contract only 

every other biennium, and the board is authorized tomust be for two years and the 

board may renegotiate an existing administrative services only or third-party 

administrator contract during the interim. In addition,the contract for one additional 

two  -  year term. The board shall solicit bids for the contract for administrative services   

only or a third  -  party administrator at least once every four years. If the board   

establishes a self  -  insurance plan, the board shall make   individual stop-loss coverage 

insured by a carrier authorized to do business in this state must be made part of any 

self-insuredthe plan. All bids under this section are due no later than January first, and 

must be awarded no later than March first, preceding the end of each biennium. If the 

board solicits bids under this section, the board shall solicit bids for a contract for 

insurance or a health maintenance organization, or both. The board may transition 

from a self  -  insurance plan to a contract for insurance or a health maintenance   

organization if the board determines the self  -  insurance plan costs more than the   

lowest bid submitted for a contract or health maintenance organization plan with 

comparable benefits. All bids received by the board under this section must be opened 

at a public meeting of the board.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-04.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.1-04.3. Self  -  insurance -   Contingency reserve fund - Continuing appropriation - 

Bank of North Dakota line of credit.

The

1. If the board establishes a self-insurance plan under section 54  -  52.1  -  04.2, the   board 

shall establish under a self-insurance plan a contingency reserve fund to provide for 

adverse fluctuations in future charges, claims, costs, or expenses of the uniform group 

insurance program. TheAnnually, the board shall determine the amount necessary to 

provide a balance in the contingency reserve fund between one and one-half months 

and three months of claims paid based on the average monthly claims paid during the 
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preceding twelve-month period immediately preceding March first of each year. 

TheAnnually, the board also shall determine the amount necessary to provide an 

additional balance in the contingency reserve fund between one month and one and 

one-half months for claims incurred but not yet reported. The board may arrange for 

the services of an actuarial consultant to assist the board in making these 

determinations.

2. Upon the initial changeover from a contract for insurance pursuant tounder section 

54-52.1-04 or a health maintenance organization under section 54  -  52.1  -  04.1,   to a 

self-insurance plan pursuant tounder section 54-52.1-04.2, the board must haveshall 

adopt a plan in place which is reasonably calculated to meet the funding requirements 

of this chapter within sixty months. All moneys in the contingency reserve fund, not 

otherwise appropriated, are appropriated for the payment of claims and other costs of 

the uniform group insurance program during periods of adverse claims or cost 

fluctuations. If the board transitions from a self  -  insurance plan to a contract for   

insurance or a health maintenance organization, the board shall adopt a plan 

reasonably calculated to meet the remaining liabilities of the self  -  insurance plan.  

3. The Bank of North Dakota shall extend to the board a line of credit not to exceed fifty 

million dollars at an annual rate not to exceed one and three  -  quarters percent. The   

board shall repay the line of credit from health insurance premium revenue or from 

other funds, as appropriated by the legislative assembly. The board may access the 

line of credit, as necessary, to provide adequate reserve funds, to purchase stop  -  loss   

coverage, and to defray other expenditures of administration of the self  -  insurance   

plan.

SECTION 5. SELF-INSURANCE HEALTH PLANS - APPLICATION - STATEMENT OF 

LEGISLATIVE INTENT.

1. The retirement board shall establish a self-insurance plan for hospital, medical, and 

prescription drug benefits coverage under section 54-52.1-04.2. The self-insurance 

plan becomes effective January 1, 2018, is effective for a term of eighteen months, is 

subject to renewal and rebidding as provided under section 54-52.1-04.2, and must be 

based on the same plan design and benefits as the coverage in effect on July 1, 2017. 
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2. A uniform group insurance program contract for hospital, medical, and prescription 

drug benefits coverage in effect on the effective date of this Act terminates on 

December 31, 2017, after which the self-insurance plan becomes effective.

3. Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, it is the intent of the sixty-fifth legislative 

assembly that the uniform group insurance program contract for hospital, medical, and 

prescription drug benefits coverage signed by the retirement board which becomes 

effective July 1, 2017, be limited in duration to a six-month term.

SECTION 6. HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVE FUND. The retirement board shall use 

available moneys in the fund created under section 54-52.1-06 for the purpose of financing the 

self-insurance plan established under section 5 of this Act.

SECTION 7. EXEMPTION. This Act is not subject to review by the employee benefits 

programs committee under section 54-35-02.4.
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Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

Introduced by

Government and Veterans Affairs Committee

(At the request of the Public Employees Retirement System)

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 39-03.1-11.2, sections 54-52-01 

and 54-52-06.4, subsections 3 and 4 of section 54-52-17, subsection 4 of section 54-52-28, 

section 54-52.1-03, subsection 1 of section 54-52.1-03.3, subsection 2 of section 54-52.1-18, 

section 54-52.6-06, and subsection 2 of section 54-52.6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, 

relating to the definitions of retirement and retirement board, decreased employee contributions 

under the public employees retirement system for peace officers employed by the bureau of 

criminal investigation, eligibility for disability retirement and early retirement benefits under the 

public employees retirement system, employee enrollment, billing for the retiree health 

insurance credit, failure to maintain a health savings account when the high-deductible health 

plan is elected, payment of administrative expenses of the defined contribution plan, and 

penalties for employers failing to pay contributions under the defined contribution plan.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 39-03.1-11.2 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The rollover rules under section 401(a)(31) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, 

a distributee may elect to have an eligible rollover distribution, as defined in 

section 402(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, paid in a direct rollover to an eligible 

retirement plan, as defined in section 402(c)(8)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, 

specified by the distributee. For purposes of this section, "distributee" includes a 

beneficiary, other than a spouse, of a deceased member, provided however, in the 

case of a beneficiary other than a spouse, the direct rollover may be made only to an 

individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity described in section 408 

or 408A of the Internal Revenue Code which is established on behalf of the beneficiary 
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and will be treated as an inherited individual retirement account or individual 

retirement annuity under section 402(c)(11) of the Internal Revenue Code.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52-01. (Effective through July 31, 2017) Definition of terms.

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Account balance" means the total contributions made by the employee, vested 

employer contributions under section 54-52-11.1, the vested portion of the vesting 

fund as of June 30, 1977, and interest credited thereon at the rate established by the 

board.

2. "Beneficiary" means any person in receipt of a benefit provided by this plan or any 

person designated by a participating member to receive benefits.

3. "Correctional officer" means a participating member who is employed as a correctional 

officer by a political subdivision.

4. "Eligible employee" means all permanent employees who meet all of the eligibility 

requirements set by this chapter and who are eighteen years or more of age, and 

includes appointive and elective officials under sections 54-52-02.5, 54-52-02.11, and 

54-52-02.12, and nonteaching employees of the superintendent of public instruction, 

including the superintendent of public instruction, who elect to transfer from the 

teachers' fund for retirement to the public employees retirement system under section 

54-52-02.13, and employees of the state board for career and technical education who 

elect to transfer from the teachers' fund for retirement to the public employees 

retirement system under section 54-52-02.14. Eligible employee does not include state 

employees who elect to become members of the retirement plan established under 

chapter 54-52.6.

5. "Employee" means any person employed by a governmental unit, whose 

compensation is paid out of the governmental unit's funds, or funds controlled or 

administered by a governmental unit, or paid by the federal government through any of 

its executive or administrative officials; licensed employees of a school district means 

those employees eligible to participate in the teachers' fund for retirement who, except 
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under subsection 2 of section 54-52-17.2, are not eligible employees under this 

chapter.

6. "Employer" means a governmental unit.

7. "Funding agent" or "agents" means an investment firm, trust bank, or other financial 

institution which the retirement board may select to hold and invest the employers' and 

members' contributions.

8. "Governmental unit" means the state of North Dakota, except the highway patrol for 

members of the retirement plan created under chapter 39-03.1, or a participating 

political subdivision thereof.

9. "National guard security officer or firefighter" means a participating member who is:

a. A security police employee of the North Dakota national guard; or

b. A firefighter employee of the North Dakota national guard.

10. "Participating member" means all eligible employees who through payment into the 

plan have established a claim against the plan.

11. "Peace officer" means a participating member who is a peace officer as defined in 

section 12-63-01 and is employed as a peace officer by the bureau of criminal 

investigation or by a political subdivision and, notwithstanding subsection 12, for 

persons employed after August 1, 2005, is employed thirty-two hours or more per 

week and at least twenty weeks each year of employment. Participating members of 

the law enforcement retirement plan created by this chapter who begin employment 

after August 1, 2005, are ineligible to participate concurrently in any other retirement 

plan administered by the public employees retirement system.

12. "Permanent employee" means a governmental unit employee whose services are not 

limited in duration and who is filling an approved and regularly funded position in an 

eligible governmental unit, and is employed twenty hours or more per week and at 

least twenty weeks each year of employment.

13. "Prior service" means service or employment prior to July 1, 1966.

14. "Prior service credit" means such credit toward a retirement benefit as the retirement 

board may determine under the provisions of this chapter.

15. "Public employees retirement system" means the retirement plan and program 

established by this chapter.
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16. "Retirement" means the acceptance of a retirement allowance under this chapter upon 

either termination of employment or termination of participation in the retirement plan 

and meeting the normal retirement date.

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the governing authority created under section 

54-52-03.

18. "Seasonal employee" means a participating member who does not work twelve 

months a year.

19. "Service" means employment on or after July 1, 1966.

20. "Service benefit" means the credit toward retirement benefits as determined by the 

retirement board under the provisions of this chapter.

21. "Temporary employee" means a governmental unit employee who is not eligible to 

participate as a permanent employee, who is at least eighteen years old and not 

actively contributing to another employer-sponsored pension fund, and, if employed by 

a school district, occupies a noncertified teacher's position.

22. "Wages" and "salaries" means the member's earnings in eligible employment under 

this chapter reported as salary on the member's federal income tax withholding 

statements plus any salary reduction or salary deferral amounts under 26 U.S.C. 125, 

401(k), 403(b), 414(h), or 457. "Salary" does not include fringe benefits such as 

payments for unused sick leave, personal leave, vacation leave paid in a lump sum, 

overtime, housing allowances, transportation expenses, early retirement incentive pay, 

severance pay, medical insurance, workforce safety and insurance benefits, disability 

insurance premiums or benefits, or salary received by a member in lieu of previously 

employer-provided fringe benefits under an agreement between the member and 

participating employer. Bonuses may be considered as salary under this section if 

reported and annualized pursuant to rules adopted by the board.

(Effective after July 31, 2017) Definition of terms. As used in this chapter, unless the 

context otherwise requires:

1. "Account balance" means the total contributions made by the employee, vested 

employer contributions under section 54-52-11.1, the vested portion of the vesting 

fund as of June 30, 1977, and interest credited thereon at the rate established by the 

board.
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2. "Beneficiary" means any person in receipt of a benefit provided by this plan or any 

person designated by a participating member to receive benefits.

3. "Correctional officer" means a participating member who is employed as a correctional 

officer by a political subdivision.

4. "Eligible employee" means all permanent employees who meet all of the eligibility 

requirements set by this chapter and who are eighteen years or more of age, and 

includes appointive and elective officials under sections 54-52-02.5, 54-52-02.11, and 

54-52-02.12, and nonteaching employees of the superintendent of public instruction, 

including the superintendent of public instruction, who elect to transfer from the 

teachers' fund for retirement to the public employees retirement system under section 

54-52-02.13, and employees of the state board for career and technical education who 

elect to transfer from the teachers' fund for retirement to the public employees 

retirement system under section 54-52-02.14. Eligible employee does not include 

nonclassified state employees who elect to become members of the retirement plan 

established under chapter 54-52.6 but does include employees of the judicial branch 

and employees of the board of higher education and state institutions under the 

jurisdiction of the board.

5. "Employee" means any person employed by a governmental unit, whose 

compensation is paid out of the governmental unit's funds, or funds controlled or 

administered by a governmental unit, or paid by the federal government through any of 

its executive or administrative officials; licensed employees of a school district means 

those employees eligible to participate in the teachers' fund for retirement who, except 

under subsection 2 of section 54-52-17.2, are not eligible employees under this 

chapter.

6. "Employer" means a governmental unit.

7. "Funding agent" or "agents" means an investment firm, trust bank, or other financial 

institution which the retirement board may select to hold and invest the employers' and 

members' contributions.

8. "Governmental unit" means the state of North Dakota, except the highway patrol for 

members of the retirement plan created under chapter 39-03.1, or a participating 

political subdivision thereof.
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9. "National guard security officer or firefighter" means a participating member who is:

a. A security police employee of the North Dakota national guard; or

b. A firefighter employee of the North Dakota national guard.

10. "Participating member" means all eligible employees who through payment into the 

plan have established a claim against the plan.

11. "Peace officer" means a participating member who is a peace officer as defined in 

section 12-63-01 and is employed as a peace officer by the bureau of criminal 

investigation or by a political subdivision and, notwithstanding subsection 12, for 

persons employed after August 1, 2005, is employed thirty-two hours or more per 

week and at least twenty weeks each year of employment. Participating members of 

the law enforcement retirement plan created by this chapter who begin employment 

after August 1, 2005, are ineligible to participate concurrently in any other retirement 

plan administered by the public employees retirement system.

12. "Permanent employee" means a governmental unit employee whose services are not 

limited in duration and who is filling an approved and regularly funded position in an 

eligible governmental unit, and is employed twenty hours or more per week and at 

least twenty weeks each year of employment.

13. "Prior service" means service or employment prior to July 1, 1966.

14. "Prior service credit" means such credit toward a retirement benefit as the retirement 

board may determine under the provisions of this chapter.

15. "Public employees retirement system" means the retirement plan and program 

established by this chapter.

16. "Retirement" means the acceptance of a retirement allowance under this chapter upon 

either termination of employment or termination of participation in the retirement plan 

and meeting the normal retirement date.

17. "Retirement board" or "board" means the seven persons designated by this chapter as 

the governing authority for the retirement system created under section 54  -  52  -  03  .

18. "Seasonal employee" means a participating member who does not work twelve 

months a year.

19. "Service" means employment on or after July 1, 1966.
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20. "Service benefit" means the credit toward retirement benefits as determined by the 

retirement board under the provisions of this chapter.

21. "Temporary employee" means a governmental unit employee who is not eligible to 

participate as a permanent employee, who is at least eighteen years old and not 

actively contributing to another employer-sponsored pension fund, and, if employed by 

a school district, occupies a noncertified teacher's position.

22. "Wages" and "salaries" means the member's earnings in eligible employment under 

this chapter reported as salary on the member's federal income tax withholding 

statements plus any salary reduction or salary deferral amounts under 26 U.S.C. 125, 

401(k), 403(b), 414(h), or 457. "Salary" does not include fringe benefits such as 

payments for unused sick leave, personal leave, vacation leave paid in a lump sum, 

overtime, housing allowances, transportation expenses, early retirement incentive pay, 

severance pay, medical insurance, workforce safety and insurance benefits, disability 

insurance premiums or benefits, or salary received by a member in lieu of previously 

employer-provided fringe benefits under an agreement between the member and 

participating employer. Bonuses may be considered as salary under this section if 

reported and annualized pursuant to rules adopted by the board.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52-06.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52-06.4. Contribution by peace officers employed by the bureau of criminal 

investigation or security officers employed by the national guard - Employer 

contribution.

Each peace officer employed by the bureau of criminal investigation who is a member of the 

public employees retirement system is assessed and shall pay monthly four percent of the 

employee's monthly salary. Peace officer contributions increase by one percent of the member's 

monthly salary beginning with the monthly reporting period of January 2012, and; with an 

additional increase of one percent, beginning with the reporting period of January 2013; and 

thereafter peace officer contributions decrease by one  -  half of one percent of the member's   

monthly salary beginning with the monthly reporting period of January 2018. Effective August 1, 

2015, each national guard security officer who is a member of the public employee's retirement 

system is assessed and monthly shall pay six percent of the employee's monthly salary. 
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National guard security officer contributions decrease by one-half of one percent of the 

member's monthly salary beginning with the monthly reporting period of January 2016. The 

assessment must be deducted and retained out of the employee's salary in equal monthly 

installments. The peace officer's or security officer's employer shall contribute an amount 

determined by the board to be actuarially required to support the level of benefits specified in 

section 54-52-17. The employer's contribution must be paid from funds appropriated for salary 

or from any other funds available for such purposes. If the peace officer's or security officer's 

assessment is paid by the employer under subsection 3 of section 54-52-05, the employer shall 

contribute, in addition, an amount equal to the required peace officer's or security officer's 

assessment.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsections 3 and 4 of section 54-52-17 of the North Dakota 

Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

3. Retirement dates are defined as follows:

a. Normal retirement date, except for a national guard security officer or firefighter 

or a peace officer or correctional officer employed by the bureau of criminal 

investigation or by a political subdivision, is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the member 

attains the age of sixty-five years; or

(2) When the member has a combined total of years of service credit and years 

of age equal to eighty-five and has not received a retirement benefit under 

this chapter.

b. Normal retirement date for members first enrolled after December 31, 2015, 

except for a national guard security officer or firefighter, a peace officer or 

correctional officer employed by the bureau of criminal investigation or by a 

political subdivision, or a supreme court or district court judge, is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the member 

attains the age of sixty-five years; or

(2) When the member has a combined total of years of service credit and years 

of age equal to ninety and the member attains a minimum age of sixty and 

has not received a retirement benefit under this chapter.

c. Normal retirement date for a national guard security officer or firefighter is:
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(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the national 

guard security officer or firefighter attains the age of fifty-five years and has 

completed at least three eligible years of employment; or

(2) When the national guard security officer or firefighter has a combined total 

of years of service credit and years of age equal to eighty-five and has not 

received a retirement benefit under this chapter.

d. Normal retirement date for a peace officer or correctional officer employed by a 

political subdivision is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the peace 

officer or correctional officer attains the age of fifty-five years and has 

completed at least three eligible years of employment; or

(2) When the peace officer or correctional officer has a combined total of years 

of service credit and years of age equal to eighty-five and has not received 

a retirement benefit under this chapter.

e. Normal retirement date for a peace officer employed by the bureau of criminal 

investigation is:

(1) The first day of the month next following the month in which the peace 

officer attains the age of fifty-five years and has completed at least three 

eligible years of employment; or

(2) When the peace officer has a combined total of years of service credit and 

years of age equal to eighty-five and has not received a retirement benefit 

under this chapter.

f. Postponed retirement date is the first day of the month next following the month 

in which the member, on or after July 1, 1977, actually severs or has severed the 

member's employment after reaching the normal retirement date.

g. Early retirement date, except for a national guard security officer or firefighter or a 

peace officer or correctional officer employed by the bureau of criminal 

investigation or by a political subdivision, is the first day of the month next 

following the month in which the member attains the age of fifty-five years and 

has completed three years of eligible employment. For a national guard security 

officer or firefighter, early retirement date is the first day of the month next 

Page No. 9 17.0118.03000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

233



Sixty-fifth
Legislative Assembly

following the month in which the national guard security officer or firefighter 

attains the age of fifty years and has completed at least three years of eligible 

employment. For a peace officer or correctional officer employed by the bureau of 

criminal investigation or by a political subdivision, early retirement date is the first 

day of the month next following the month in which the peace officer or 

correctional officer attains the age of fifty years and has completed at least three 

years of eligible employment.

h. Disability retirement date is the first day of the month after a member becomes 

permanently and totally disabled, according to medical evidence called for under 

the rules of the board, and has completed at least one hundred eighty days of 

eligible employment. For supreme and district court judges, permanent and total 

disability is based solely on a judge's inability to perform judicial duties arising out 

of physical or mental impairment, as determined pursuant to rules adopted by the 

board or as provided by subdivision a of subsection 3 of section 27-23-03. 

(1) A member is eligible to receive disability retirement benefits only if the 

member:

(1) Became became disabled during the period of eligible employment; and

(2) Applies applies for disability retirement benefits within twelve months of the 

date the member terminates employment.

(2) A member is eligible to continue to receive disability benefits as long as the 

permanent and total disability continues and the member submits the 

necessary documentation and undergoes medical testing required by the 

board, or for as long as the member participates in a rehabilitation program 

required by the board, or both. If the board determines that a member no 

longer meets the eligibility definition, the board may discontinue the 

disability retirement benefit. The board may pay the cost of any medical 

testing or rehabilitation services itthe board deems necessary and these 

payments are appropriated from the retirement fund for those purposes. A 

member's receipt of disability benefits under this section is limited to receipt 

from the fund to which the member was actively contributing at the time the 

member became disabled.
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4. The board shall calculate retirement benefits as follows:

a. Normal retirement benefits for all retirees, except supreme and district court 

judges, reaching normal retirement date equal an annual amount, payable 

monthly, comprised of a service benefit and a prior service benefit, as defined in 

this chapter, which is determined as follows:

(1) Service benefit equals two percent of final average salary multiplied by the 

number of years of service employment.

(2) Prior service benefit equals two percent of final average salary multiplied by 

the number of years of prior service employment.

b. Normal retirement benefits for all supreme and district court judges under the 

public employees retirement system reaching normal retirement date equal an 

annual amount, payable monthly, comprised of a benefit as defined in this 

chapter, determined as follows:

(1) Benefits must be calculated from the time of appointment or election to the 

bench and must equal three and one-half percent of final average salary 

multiplied by the first ten years of judicial service, two and eighty hundredths 

percent of final average salary multiplied by the second ten years of judicial 

service, and one and one-fourth percent of final average salary multiplied by 

the number of years of judicial service exceeding twenty years.

(2) Service benefits must include, in addition, an amount equal to the percent 

specified in subdivision a of final average salary multiplied by the number of 

years of nonjudicial employee service and employment.

c. Postponed retirement benefits are calculated as for single life benefits for those 

members who retired on or after July 1, 1977.

d. Early retirement benefits are calculated as for single life benefits accrued to the 

date of termination of employment, but must be actuarially reduced to account for 

benefit payments beginning prior tobefore the normal retirement date, which is 

the earlier of age sixty-five or the age at which current service plus age equals 

eighty-fiveas determined under subsection     3  . Except for a national guard security 

officer or firefighter, a peace officer or correctional officer employed by the bureau 

of criminal investigation or by a political subdivision, or a supreme court or district 
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court judge, early retirement benefits for members first enrolled after December 

31, 2015, are calculated for single life benefits accrued to the date of termination 

of employment, but must be reduced by fixed rate of eight percent per year to 

account for benefit payments beginning before the normal retirement date. A 

retiree, other than a supreme or district court judge, is eligible for early retirement 

benefits only after having completed three years of eligible employment. A 

supreme or district court judge retiree is eligible for early retirement benefits only 

after having completed five years of eligible employment.

e. Except for supreme and district court judges, disability retirement benefits are 

twenty-five percent of the member's final average salary. Disability retirement 

benefits for supreme and district court judges are seventy percent of final 

average salary reduced by the member's primary social security benefits and by 

any workforce safety and insurance benefits paid. The minimum monthly 

disability retirement benefit under this section is one hundred dollars.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 54-52-28 of the North Dakota Century 

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The rollover rules under section 401(a)(31) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, 

a distributee may elect to have an eligible rollover distribution, as defined in 

section 402(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, paid in a direct rollover to an eligible 

retirement plan, as defined in section 402(c)(8)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, 

specified by the distributee. For purposes of this section, "distributee" includes a 

beneficiary, other than a spouse, of a deceased member, provided however, in the 

case of a beneficiary other than a spouse, the direct rollover may be made only to an 

individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity described in section 408 

or 408A of the Internal Revenue Code which is established on behalf of the beneficiary 

and will be treated as an inherited individual retirement account or individual 

retirement annuity under section 402(c)(11) of the Internal Revenue Code.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:
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54-52.1-03. Employee participation in plan - Employee to furnish information - 

Benefits to continue upon retirement or termination.

1. Any eligible employee may be enrolled in the uniform group insurance program 

created by this chapter by requesting enrollment with the employing department. If an 

eligible employee does not enroll in the uniform group insurance program at the time 

of beginning employment, in order to enroll at a later time the eligible employee must 

meet minimum requirements established by the board. An employing department may 

not require an active eligible employee to request coverage under the uniform group 

insurance program as a prerequisite to receive the minimum employer-paid life 

insurance benefits coverage or employee assistance program benefits coverage.

2. Within five days after the expiration of the payroll period during which enrollment was 

requested, the employing department shall enroll the employee with the board. The 

employee's insurance coverage becomes effective on the date of enrollment.

3. A retiree who has accepted a periodic distribution from the defined contribution 

retirement plan pursuant to section 54-52.6-13 who the board determines is eligible for 

participation in the uniform group insurance program or has accepted a retirement 

allowance from the public employees retirement system, the highway patrolmen's 

retirement system, the teachers' insurance and annuity association of America - 

college retirement equities fund for service credit earned while employed by North 

Dakota institutions of higher education, the retirement system established by job 

service North Dakota under section 52-11-01, the judges' retirement system 

established under chapter 27-17, or the teachers' fund for retirement may elect to 

participate in the uniform group under this chapter without meeting minimum 

requirements at age sixty-five, when the member's spouse reaches age sixty-five, 

upon the receipt of a benefit, or when the spouse terminates employment. If a retiree 

or surviving spouse does not elect to participate at the times specified in this 

subsection, the retiree or surviving spouse must meet the minimum requirements 

established by the board. Subject to sections 54-52.1-03.2 and 54-52.1-03.3, each 

retiree or surviving spouse shall pay directly to the board the premiums in effect for the 

coverage then being provided. A retiree or surviving spouse who has met the initial 

eligibility requirements of this subsection to begin participation in the uniform group 
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insurance program remains eligible as long as the retiree maintains the retiree's 

participation in the program by paying the required premium pursuant to rules adopted 

by the board.

4.3. Upon the termination of employment when the employee is not eligible to participate 

under subsection 32 or 54 or applicable federal law, that employee cannot continue as 

a member of the uniform group.

5.4. A member or former member of the legislative assembly or that person'sindividual's 

surviving spouse may elect to continue membership in the uniform group within the 

applicable time limitations after either termination of eligible employment as a member 

of the legislative assembly or termination of other eligible employment or, for a 

surviving spouse, upon the death of the member or former member of the legislative 

assembly. The member or former member of the legislative assembly or that 

person'sindividual's surviving spouse shall pay the premiums in effect for the coverage 

provided directly to the board.

6.5. Each eligible employee requesting enrollment shall furnish the appropriate 

personindividual in the employing department, board, or agency with such information 

and in such form as prescribed by the board to enable the enrollment of the employee, 

or employee and dependents, in the uniform group insurance program created by this 

chapter.

7.6. If the participating employee is a faculty member in a state charitable, penal, or 

educational institution who receives a salary or wages on less than a twelve-month 

basis and has signed a contract to teach for the next ensuing school year, the agency 

shall make arrangements to include that employee in the insurance program on a 

twelve-month basis and make the contribution authorized by this section for each 

month of the twelve-month period.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 54-52.1-03.3 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. The following personsindividuals are entitled to receive credit for hospital and medical 

benefits coverage and prescription drug coverage under any health insurance program 

and dental, vision, and long-term care benefits coverage under the uniform group 

insurance program under subsection 2:
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a. A member or surviving spouse of the highway patrolmen's retirement system is 

eligible for the credit beginning on the date retirement benefits are effective 

unless the premium is billed to the employer.

b. A member or surviving spouse of the public employees retirement system is 

eligible for the credit beginning on the date retirement benefits are effective 

unless the premium is billed to the employer.

c. A member or surviving spouse of the retirement program established by job 

service North Dakota under section 52-11-01 receiving retirement benefits is 

eligible for the credit beginning on the date retirement benefits are effective 

unless the premium is billed to the employer.

d. A retired judge or surviving spouse receiving retirement benefits under the 

retirement program established under chapter 27-17 is eligible for the credit 

beginning on the date retirement benefits are effective unless the premium is 

billed to the employer.

e. A former participating member of the defined contribution retirement plan 

receiving retirement benefits, or the surviving spouse of a former participating 

member of that retirement plan who was eligible to receive or was receiving 

benefits, under section 54-52.6-13, is eligible as determined by the board 

pursuant to its rules.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-52.1-18 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Health savings account fees for participating state employees must be paid by the 

employer. 

a. Except as provided in subdivision b, subject to the limits of section 223(b) of the 

Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 233(b)], the difference between the cost of the 

single and family premium for eligible state employees under section 54-52.1-06 

and the premium for those employees electing to participate under the 

high-deductible health plan under this section must be deposited in a health 

savings account for the benefit of each participating employee.

b. If the public employees retirement system is unable to establish a health savings 

account due to the employee's ineligibility under federal or state law or due to 
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failure of the employee to provide necessary information in order to establish the 

account, the system is not responsible for depositing the health savings account 

contribution. The member will remain a participant in the high-deductible health 

plan regardless of whether a health savings account is established.

c. If a member closes the health savings account established for that member 

under this section, the system is not responsible for depositing the health savings 

account contribution after that closure.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 54-52.6-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-52.6-06. Administrative expenses - Continuing appropriation.

TheParticipating members shall pay the administrative expenses of the plan must be paid 

by the participating members in a manner determined by the board. The board, or vendors 

contracted for by the board, may charge reasonable administrative expenses and deduct those 

expenses from a participating member's account in the defined contribution retirement plan 

established under this chapter. The board may also pay the administrative expenses of the plan 

from fines and fees collected from vendors in a manner determined by the board. The board 

shall place vendor fines and fees and any money deducted from participating members' 

accounts in an administrative expenses account with the state treasurer. The board may also 

use funds from the payroll clearing account established pursuant to section 54-52.3-03 to pay 

for consulting expenses. All moneys in the payroll clearing account, not otherwise appropriated, 

or so much of the moneys as may be necessary, are appropriated to the board on a continuing 

basis for the purpose of retaining a consultant as required for the administration of this chapter.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 54-52.6-09 of the North Dakota 

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. The employer shall contribute an amount equal to four and twelve-hundredths percent 

of the monthly salary or wage of a participating member. Employer contributions 

increase by one percent of the monthly salary or wage of a participating member 

beginning with the monthly reporting period of January 2012, and with an additional 

increase of one percent, beginning with the monthly reporting period of January 2013, 

and with an additional increase of one percent, beginning with the monthly reporting 

period of January 2014. If the employee's contribution is paid by the employer under 
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subsection 3, the employer shall contribute, in addition, an amount equal to the 

required employee's contribution. TheMonthly, the employer shall pay monthly such 

contribution into the participating member's account from itsthe employer's funds 

appropriated for payroll and salary or any other funds available for such purposes. If 

the employer fails to pay the contributions monthly, itthe employer is subject to a civil 

penalty of fifty dollars and, as interest, one percent of the amount due for each month 

of delay or fraction thereof after the payment became due. In lieu of assessing a civil 

penalty or one percent per month, or both, interest at the actuarial rate of return may 

be assessed for each month the contributions are delinquent. If contributions are paid 

within ninety days of the date the contributions became due, penalty and interest to be 

paid on delinquent contributions may be waived.
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Perkins County Rural Water System, Inc. 
104 West Main Street  PO Box 160 

Bison, SD 57620-0160 
Tele: (605)244-5608  Fax: (605)244-5926 

E-MAIL: pcrws@sdplains.com 
WEBSITE: www.pcrws.com 

 
March 9th, 2017 

 
The meeting was called to order by President Don Melling at 6:31 PM at the Perkins County Rural Water Sys. Inc. 
board room in Bison, SD. Other directors present were Brian Morris, Lynn Frey, Holly Waddell, Colin LaMont, 
Stanley Brixey and Art Pederson.  Board members absent were Luke Clements and Rodney LeFebre. Also in 
attendance were Rich Wells, AE2s, Shiloh Baysinger and Brandi Baysinger, staff. 

Agenda 

Motion by Lynn Frey, seconded by Colin LaMont, to approve agenda, motion passed. 

Minutes 

Motion by Colin LaMont, seconded by Brian Morris, to approve February 9th, 2017 minutes, motion passed. 

Financial Report 

Motion by Art Pederson, seconded by Brian Morris to approve paid and unpaid bills, motion passed. 

Motion by Don Melling, seconded by Art Pederson to approve financial reports, motion passed. 

Delegations 

None. 

Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services 

Rich Wells was present, see attached initial report sheet and maps, to report on the hydraulic modeling and 
pending construction. The hydraulic model has been completed and can be used as a tool to plan for the future. 
Also, the HWY 12 & 73 project should be completed this spring as DOT has gotten all the necessary easements. 

Managers Report 

Shiloh Baysinger presented his report. SDARWS safety training schedule has been sent and we will again ask the City 

of Lemmon and Town of Bison to cost share with us for the program. The new shop is complete and Cleary Building 

will be back to do some additional finish work. There are a few leaks the system will be fixing in the coming weeks. 

The upgrades to the SCADA system are working very well. We have a had about 5 more location requests for 2017. 

Jim with Badger visited the office and he may sent us new AMRs to test that have the new software as a beta site. 

Motion by Don Melling, seconded by Colin LaMont to approve the installation of a complete, entire, concrete floor 

in the shop building by BL Contracting, motion passed. 

 

Director’s Report 

None. 

All Other Matters 

The April 13th meeting will start the summer schedule of 7:30 pm meeting time. The board consensus was to pass 
on a donation to RuralX for 2017 and discussion was held regarding iPads/tablets for directors and staff for use in 
the field and during meetings. 

Adjourned 7:37 PM 

Next meeting April 13th, 2017, at 7:30 pm. 
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Planning Agenda 

 
DATE:         Monday, May 1, 2017                                                          TIME:       9:00 A.M.  MDT                                                 LOCATION:      SWA O&M Center Office     
ASSIGNMENTS 
 
q__Director Stang________ 
      Scribe/Flipchart 

q      Laura Jonio                                _ 
     Minutes 

q_______________________________
_ 
     Reporter 

q_______________________________
_ 
      

 
q_______________________________
_ 
     Timekeeper 

 
q___Director Brian Roth___________ 
     Process Observer 

 
q_______________________________
_ 
     Warm-up 

 
q_______________________________
_ 

 
MEETING OBJECTIVE___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PLAN ACTUAL 
CLOCK AGENDA ITEMS WHO METHOD DESIRED OUTCOMES TIME CLOCK START 

   Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance   Meeting readiness 

   Review Agenda   Additions, focus meeting 

   Consent Agenda  Voice Vote Meet legal requirements 

   Policy IV.C. Manager/CEO Compensation and Benefits  Roll Call  

   Policy I.A. Aims/Ends - Mission Statement  Roll Call  

   Policy II.H. Executive Limitations- Compensation for 
Annexation 

 Roll Call  

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

   Review issues pending / Parking Lot  / Plan next agenda    

   Monitoring    

   Adjourn    
   C 1994 BAILEY ASSOCIATES    ALL RIGHTS RESERVED             POBOX 1008 CARMEL IN 46082 317 846 3117 
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